T™ILLINGDON

LONDON

North Planning

Committee
Date: TUESDAY, 25 MARCH 2014
Time: 7.30 PM
OR AT THE RISING OF THE
MAJOR APPLICATIONS
COMMITTEE
Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5
CIVIC CENTRE
HIGH STREET
UXBRIDGE
uUuB8 1UW
Meeting Members of the Public and
Details: Press are welcome to attend

this meeting

This agenda and associated
reports can be made available
in other languages, in braille,
large print or on audio tape on
request. Please contact us for
further information.

This Agenda is available online at:

Public Document Pack

To Councillors on the Committee

Eddie Lavery (Chairman)
John Morgan (Vice-Chairman)
Raymond Graham

Michael Markham

Carol Melvin

David Yarrow

David Allam (Labour Lead)
Robin Sansarpuri

Published: Tuesday, 18 March 2014

Contact: Charles Francis

Tel: 01895 556454

Fax: 01895 277373
democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk

http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=116&MId=1717&Ver=4

Lloyd White
Head of Democratic Services
London Borough of Hillingdon,

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

www. hillingdon.gov.uk

R

ﬁi"
4

=

(—L“” -

INVESTOR IN PEOPLE



Useful information for
residents and visitors

Travel and parking g

=
\43“ A
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at o j

the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, X)%
Uxbri

with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a
short walk away. Limited parking is available at

x :
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and Mgl LA = i
how to book a parking space, please contact s il 5 Chimes

Centre }
Democratic Services / Shopping o

Please enter from the Council’s main reception |
where you will be directed to the Committee et ,m
Room.

Muzraring
rar park

Accessibility

An Induction Loop System is available for use in
the various meeting rooms. Please contact us for
further information.

Electronic devices

Please switch off any mobile devices before the meeting. Any recording of the meeting is
not allowed, either using electronic, mobile or visual devices.

Emergency procedures

If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless
instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer.

In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire
Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, should make
their way to the signed refuge locations.



A useful guide for those attending Planning Committee meetings

Security and Safety information

Fire Alarm - If there is a FIRE in the building the
fire alarm will sound continuously. If there is a
BOMB ALERT the alarm sounds intermittently.
Please make your way to the nearest FIRE EXIT.

Recording of meetings - This is not allowed,
either using electronic, mobile or visual devices.

Mobile telephones - Please switch off any mobile
telephones and BlackBerries before the meeting.

Petitions and Councillors

Petitions - Those who have organised a petition of
20 or more borough residents can speak at a
Planning Committee in support of or against an
application. Petitions must be submitted in
writing to the Council in advance of the meeting.
Where there is a petition opposing a planning
application there is also the right for the
applicant or their agent to address the meeting
for up to 5 minutes.

Ward Councillors - There is a right for local
councillors to speak at Planning Committees about
applications in their Ward.

Committee Members - The planning committee is
made up of the experienced Councillors who meet
in public every three weeks to make decisions on
applications.

How the Committee meeting works

The Planning Committees consider the most
complex and controversial proposals for
development or enforcement action.

Applications for smaller developments such as
householder extensions are generally dealt with
by the Council’s planning officers under delegated
powers.

An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which
comprises reports on each application

Reports with petitions will normally be taken at
the beginning of the meeting.

The procedure will be as follows:-

1. The Chairman will announce the report;

2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a
presentation of plans and photographs;

3. If there is a petition(s),the petition organiser
will speak, followed by the agent/applicant

followed by any Ward Councillors;

4. The Committee may ask questions of the
petition organiser or of the agent/applicant;

5. The Committee debate the item and may seek
clarification from officers;

6. The Committee will vote on the
recommendation in the report, or on an
alternative recommendation put forward by a
Member of the Committee, which has been
seconded.

About the Committee’s decision

The Committee must make its decisions by
having regard to legislation, policies laid down
by National Government, by the Greater London
Authority - under ‘The London Plan’ and
Hillingdon’s own planning policies as contained
in the ‘Unitary Development Plan 1998’ and
supporting guidance. The Committee must also
make its decision based on material planning
considerations and case law and material
presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s
report and any representations received.

Guidance on how Members of the Committee
must conduct themselves when dealing with
planning matters and when making their
decisions is contained in the ‘Planning Code of
Conduct’, which is part of the Council’s
Constitution.

When making their decision, the Committee
cannot take into account issues which are not
planning considerations such a the effect of a
development upon the value of surrounding
properties, nor the loss of a view (which in itself
is not sufficient ground for refusal of
permission), nor a subjective opinion relating to
the design of the property. When making a
decision to refuse an application, the Committee
will be asked to provide detailed reasons for
refusal based on material planning
considerations.

If a decision is made to refuse an application,
the applicant has the right of appeal against the
decision. A Planning Inspector appointed by the
Government will then consider the appeal.
There is no third party right of appeal, although
a third party can apply to the High Court for
Judicial Review, which must be done within 3
months of the date of the decision.



Agenda

Chairman's Announcements

1

a ~ W0 N

Apologies for Absence

Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting

To sign and receive the minutes of the previous meeting

Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent

To confirm that the items of business marked Part 1 will be considered
in public and that the items marked Part 2 will be considered in private

Reports - Part 1 - Members, Public and Press

Items are normally marked in the order that they will be considered, though the

Chairman may vary this. Reports are split into ‘major’ and ‘minor’ applications. The
name of the local ward area is also given in addition to the address of the premises or
land concerned.

Non Major Applications with a Petition

Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page
6 | 77 Eastcote Road, Eastcote & | Change of use from Use Class C3 1-16
Ruislip East (Dwelling House) to Use Class
Ruislip C3/D1 (Dwelling House/ Non- 162 - 165
62431/APP/2013/2341 Residential Institutions) for use of
childcare within the domestic
setting.
Recommendation: Refusal
7 | 4A Eastbury Avenue, | Northwood | Part two storey, part single storey 17 - 26
Northwood front/side/rear extension involving
raising of roof. 166 - 173
36828/APP/2014/184

Recommendation: Refusal




2 Linksway,
Northwood

36910/APP/2013/2338

Northwood

Two storey, 5-bed, detached
dwelling with habitable roofspace
involving demolition of existing
dwelling.

Deferred from North Committee
6" March 2014

Recommendation: Approval

27 - 48

174 - 182

28 & 28A Kingsend,
Ruislip

5740/APP/2013/3520

West
Ruislip

Variation of condition 27 of
Planning Permission Ref:
5740/APP/2008/1214 (Erection of
a three storey building to contain
7, two-bedroom and 1, one-
bedroom flats, together with
associated parking and amenity
space (Amendment to previous
approval ref. 5740/APP/2007/1043
to allow for an additional flat at
second floor level) to allow revised
landscape scheme including a
resiting of bin store to front and
hardstanding treatment (Part
Retrospective Application).

Recommendation: Had an
appeal against non-
determination not been lodged,
the application would have been
approved.

49 - 64

183 - 185

Non Major Applications without a

Petition

Address

Ward

Description & Recommendation

Page

10

Land adjacent to
Widewater Lock (Barn
Farm),

Moorhall Road,
Harefield

69682/APP/2014/32

Harefield

Change of use of land to a
residential caravan site for one
family, involving the siting of one
static and one touring caravan,
with associated parking for two
vehicles, water treatment plant,
hardstanding and landscaping
works (Part retrospective
application).

Recommendation: Refusal

65 -90

186 - 189




11| 37 Moor Park Road, Northwood | 2 x two-storey, 5-bed detached 91-112

Northwood dwellings with habitable roofspace
with associated parking and 190 - 198
4581/APP/2013/3765 amenity space, installation of

vehicular crossover to front,
installation of fence to front
involving demolition of existing
dwelling (Resubmission).

Recommendation: Approval
subject to a S106 Agreement

12| Land rear of 81 - 93 Northwood | 2 x two storey, 3- bed detached 113-132
Hilliard Road, Hills dwellings with associated parking
Northwood and amenity space, involving 199 - 209
demolition of existing material
64786/APP/2013/1434 shed, office building and material

storage shelter.

Recommendation: Approval
subject to a S106 Agreement

13| Middlesex Stadium, West Single storey front extension 133 - 142
Breakspear Road, Ruislip
Ruislip Recommendation: Approval 210 - 216
18443/APP/2013/3732

Part 2 - Members Only

The reports listed below are not made public because they contain confidential or
exempt information under paragraph 6 of Par 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

14 Enforcement Report 143 - 150
15 Enforcement Report 151 -160
Plans for North Planning Committee 161 - 216




Agenda ltem 6

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 77 EASTCOTE ROAD RUISLIP MIDDX

Development: Change of use from Use Class C3 (Dwelling House) to Use Class C3/D1
(Dwelling House/ Non-Residential Institutions) for childcare use during the
day and as a residence at night. (Retrospective Application)

LBH Ref Nos: 62431/APP/2013/2341

Drawing Nos: statement of intent
Location Plan
3248/01
Date Plans Received: 15/08/2013 Date(s) of Amendment(s):

Date Application Valid: 21/08/2013
1. SUMMARY

The application seeks retrospective permission for the part change of use from C3
(Residential) to D1 (Non-Residential Institution)in order to provide a children's nursery.

The site comprises a two-storey semi-detached property with a hipped roof profile and
finished in white render and brickwork, located on the northern side of Eastcote Road,
north of the junction with Bishop Ramsey Close. Eastcote Road is a Local Distributor
Road and connects Ruislip to the west with Eastcote to the west. To the east of the site
is the adjoining semi-detached property, No. 79 Eastcote Road. To the west of the site is
No. 75, the side flank wall of which is sited 1.6m away from the side flank wall of the
application site.

The development is considered to be detrimental to the amenities of the adjoining and
surrounding occupiers by reason of noise and general disturbance. Furthermore, the
parking and drop-off arrangements are inadequate, leading to overspill parking in
Eastcote Road, a Local Borough Distributor Road, which is be prejudicial to highway
safety.

The use involves up to 20 children on site at any one time which is considered excessive
given the residential surroundings within which the site is located.

As such the application is recommended for refusal.
2, RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The development is considered to represent an over-intensification of the use of the site,
which results in undue noise and general disturbance through the scale and nature of
activities involved, to the detriment of the amenities of nearby residential properties, and
as such constitutes an un-neighbourly form of development, resulting in a material loss of
residential amenity. The proposal is therefore contrary to policies OE1, OE3 and R13 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

2 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 1



The proposal provides insufficient parking for the D1 use and results in an increase in on-
street car parking in an area where on-parking is limited, leading to conditions which are
prejudicial to the operation of the highway network and pedestrian/highway safety. The
proposal is therefore contrary to policies AM7, AM14 and R13 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

3 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The development due to the lack of an on-site maneuvering area, the increased number
of vehicular movements using the vehicular access point, and the average speed of
vehicles within this part of Eastcote Road, results in a danger and inconvenience to
highway users, to the detriment of public and highway safety. Therefore the proposal
would not comply with policies AM7 and R13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all
relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies,
including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the
Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First
Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

R12 Use of premises to provide child care facilities

R13 Use of residential accommodation for educational and child care
premises

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures

LPP 3.6 (2011) Children and young people's play and informal recreation

(strategies) facilities

3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies.
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan:; Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 2



3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1  Site and Locality

The site comprises a two-storey semi-detached property with a hipped roof profile and
finished in white render and brickwork, located on the northern side of Eastcote Road,
north of the junction with Bishop Ramsey Close. Eastcote Road is a Local Distributor
Road and connects Ruislip to the west with Eastcote to the west.

The property has four bedrooms and two receptions rooms. The property has been
extended at the rear by way of a single storey rear extension beyond which is an area of
raised decking. The property benefits from a large rear garden extending 53m deep. The
property is set back from the highway by 12.5m and the front of the property is laid in
hardstanding for parking purposes.

To the east of the site is the adjoining semi-detached property, No. 79 Eastcote Road. To
the west of the site is No. 75, the side flank wall of which is sited 1.6m away from the side
flank wall of the application site.

The site is situated within the within the Developed Area, and is located within an
Archaeological Priority Area as identified in the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012). The site is covered by a blanket TPO 106.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposed development is a retrospective application for the part change of use from
C3 (Residential) to D1 (Non-Residential Institution)in order to provide a children's nursery.

The property was bought in June 2004 and was occupied as a family home. In January
2006 the applicant registered as an Ofstead childminder. At present the applicant is
registered with Ofstead as a 'childcare provider on domestic premises'.

The current facility has 8 staff, 6 present at any one time. 40 children are cared for per
month (however not all are present in the same day). There is capacity for 20 children at a
time on site up to the age of 5, with a maximum of 4 children per key worker. There is also
capacity for 6 children per key worker in the 5-7 years range. There is no limit for over 8
year olds.

The childcare facility (D1 use) operates (and is proposed to continue to operate) from
0700-1859 hours Monday to Friday. The domestic (C3 use) use operates between the
hours of 1900 to 0659 Monday to Sunday. Essentially, the childcare facility runs from
morning to evening, and the residential use operates from the evening, through the night
and early morning. A Breakfast Club is provided in the early morning for school aged
children, and an After School Club in run after school hours. At present a mini-bus shuttle
service is provided and has 9 seats, to take the school aged children to school and collect
them. The childcare service for under 5's is provided throughout the day.

The property has four bedrooms on the first floor. Three of the bedrooms are used as
activity and sleeping areas with collapsible travel cots (observed whilst on site). One
bedroom is used as a staff room /confidential meeting area. The other areas in the house
are used as activity areas for the children. The kitchen/dinner is also used as a
cooking/feeding area.

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 3



The hardstanding at the front of the property provides 3 spaces during the day whilst the
childcare service operates. 1 space is allocated for the mini-bus and 2 spaces are
allocated for parents collecting or dropping off their children. During the evening and early
hours of the morning, 1 parking space is provided for the mini bus and 2 spaces for family
cars.

The current traffic measures undertaken are as follows:

-Liaise with neighbours at 75 Eastcote Road when required

-Notify parents regarding good parking habits

-The service is prepared to terminate agreements with 'pushy parkers'

-The service only takes on new customers who drop off and collect outside busiest
periods

Current measures undertaken to alleviate noise are as follows:

-Children are looked after in groups of 4 by a key worker

-The service does not offer places to children that do not settle after the short term
-The single storey rear extension is insulated and sound proof

-The garden is large and noisy activity is undertaken at the bottom of the 150ft garden

3.3 Relevant Planning History
62431/APP/2013/2066 77 Eastcote Road Ruislip Middx
PROPOSED CERTIFICATE OF LAWFUL DEVELOPMENT
Decision: 21-08-2013  Withdrawn

Comment on Relevant Planning History

An enforcement case was opened on the 11 July 2013 following a complaint that the
premises was in operation as a Day Nursery (D1), which is now the subject of this current
application.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.CI1 (2012) Community Infrastructure Provision
PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

R12 Use of premises to provide child care facilities

R13 Use of residential accommodation for educational and child care premises

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 4



OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

LPP 3.6 (2011) Children and young people's play and informal recreation (strategies)
facilities
5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1  Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

6 neighbours and Ruislip Residents Association have been consulted on the application and a site
notice was erected on the 30 August 2013. 18 letters/emails of objection have been received and
14 letters/emails of support have been received. In addition, a petition with 75 signatories has been
received in support of the application.

A Ward Councillor has objected to the development.

Another Ward Councillor has written in support of the application and would like the application to
be deferred to committee if the application were to be recommended for refusal.

The main objections relate to highway safety, traffic, parking, noise and disturbance, loss of privacy
and general loss of amenity.

18 letters/emails of objection were received, relevant comments are detailed below:

Loss of amenity, noise and disturbance

i. The owner moved into 50 Eastcote Road in May 2013 where they spend much of their time
including overnight. They have expanded the business at No. 77 since then.

ii. Noise generation inside and out

iii. We are often woken up at 7am the owner or her staff moving equipment around on the decking
which is close to our bedroom window

iv. During the day children play and staff congregate on the decking and in the garden

v. The owner and staff frequently shout from the decking down the garden and vice versa.

vi. We have even heard the children in the back garden of No. 77 from the pavement. often made
to feel uncomfortable and feel unable to make full use of our own property.

vii. Noise also comes from the house when their doors are fully open.

viii. The property is semi-detached. Our only reception room is through the party wall of their
downstairs activity room. Noise is often heard through the party wall and open front windows. The
same is true of the room upstairs which is next to our bedroom.

ix. This business is too big for a domestic property& would be better suited to appropriate business
premise

X. This business alters the character of the road and is a nuisance,annoyance and intrusive to its
neighbours.

xi. If this business continues in a residential property it will set a bad precedent

xii. We strenuously object to this planning application on the following grounds; loss of amenity,
privacy & noise.

Highways Issues

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 5



i. Following an observation between 7.30am-9am 25 children were dropped off by parents. 22 by
car 3 on foot.

ii. Cars park illegally

iii. Cars reverse from site onto Eastcote Road

iv. Traffic generation outside property during peak hours

v. "Although | do not live near this house | feel | must object about this as | pass this place
everyday on my way to work. Several times now the people dropping off their children have parked
on the pavement"

vi. "Eastcote Road is an extremely busy road & there is several accidents there every year"

vii. "This is just an accident waiting to happen"

viii. " | have also seen Parents opening car doors onto the main road and children narrowly being
missed by heavy traffic"

ix. blocking access to other properties.

X. "parents that have stopped on the road get children out of cars into the traffic where they are in
danger of being hit by passing vehicles"

xi. unsafe place for a nursery and unsuitable in a residential house.

xii. "How can so many children be allowed in someones house?"

xiii. "there is a constant noise from member of staff calling out to the children and the children
crying/playing /screaming"

14 representations were made in support of the application, mainly in relation the quality of the
service provided, benefits to local community and minimal impact on highway and noise. Relevant
comments are detailed below:

i. "The children are always kept busy with activities and often split up into small groups, it is never
noisy and out of control and being part of the ofstead inspection which recently took place | can
quote the inspectors words as she stated "The environment is well controlled and a pleasure to be
in, the children are happy and all kept well entertained"

ii. "As a key worker here within the setting | can tell you that the children have small activities to do
and are moved around keeping them busy at all times this leaves little time for any children to get
bored, boisterous and cause any disruption"

iii. "We have outdoor play but this generally runs on a 20 minute slot for each group of small
children. We also take them out to the parks and the local facilitates so we aren't even always in all
together"

iv. "Parents arrive staggered and collect staggered so never have | seen a build up of cars and
traffic, the only traffic | have ever seen along eastcote road is just the normal build up to ruislip high
street or the cars turning into the opposite estate across the road"

v. Fantastic service the owner provides and the development of the children in her care is amazing
vi. If this service was to be taken away, it would have a devastating impact on peoples everyday
way of life.

vii. My Mums Away is one of the best OFSTED-rated childcare facilities in the Hillingdon area,
providing a consistent service based on a well-run, committed and organised team led

viii. "Without this vital network, parents throughout the country would struggle to make ends meet,
and this would undoubtedly have a severe impact on the economy, at both a micro and a macro
level"

ix. "As a local businessman, | struggle to understand why the council would question the benefits a
local business and a local employer are bringing to the community"

x. "There is risk of a dangerous precedent being set that may have huge ramifications not just
within the borough of Hillingdon but throughout every town and city in the UK"

xi. "The premises is on a busy main road and, as such, any traffic noise comes from the road rather
than parents dropping their children off"

xii. "house is never noisy despite there being several children at the premises"

xiii. "The staff ensure that they are well behaved and | have always found it to be well supervised"
xiv. "I am a Police Inspector in London and know how important it is to build solid community

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 6



support services. The childminding provision adds significant value to the parenting services in
Ruislip"

xv. "Being a working parent is very stressful and childcare is a vital part of our planning and ability
to work in a way which is responsive to our Children's needs but also for our employment needs
and we are extremely concerned that this may now be under threat"

xvi. The owner has created an amazing space for children and has an environment with great
facilities

xvii. "I think it is outrageous. At a time when the government is going on about supporting working
parents and how there is a lack of affordable child care, our councillor thinks it is a good use of
their time to help harass someone providing just this service. We have no after school clubs
available to us so what exactly do they expect us to do apart from use childminders. Without this
valuable service, | know | would not be able to work.

xviii. "She provides the local community with high quality, affordable childcare, and without her,
myself and many other parents would struggle”

xix. The service provided by the owner is exemplary, the need for good quality childcare is
imperative in Ruislip, Hillingdon

xx. "Govt policy towards childcare provision and local communities as championed by Nick Hurd
MP should have a positive effect on your decision making"

xxi. "Parents in the borough need childminders so they can work. This is an experienced
childminder providing a valuable service"

Internal Consultees
Highways Officer:

The development is for a retrospective change of use of an existing dwelling, to allow the operation
of a childcare facility within a domestic setting that will operate under the C3 and D1 Use Classes.
There are two car parking spaces provided with the front of the site that serve the existing
residential and commercial uses, which are accessed via an existing vehicle crossover located
along Eastcote Road. There is no cycle parking provided within the site.

It is understood that the childcare facility operates with 8 full and part time staff, with 6 staff in
attendance at the site at any one time. Under Ofsted capacity limits the existing childcare facility
can accommodate 20 children up to the age of 5 years and up to 6 children per key worker, for
those aged between 5 - 7 years. For children over the age of 8 years, there is no limit other than
the physical size of the facility.

It is noted that Eastcote Road is a busy classified highway and a main distributor route. From
speed surveys undertaken adjacent to the site, the 85th percentile speed has been identified 34
mph in both directions, which is in excess of the existing 30 mph speed limit. There are no formal
pedestrian crossing facilities located along the highway adjacent to the site.

Parking along the carriageway adjacent to the site is uncontrolled and occupied on a first come first
served basis, other than at the junction with Bishops Ramsey Close, where "No Waiting" at any
time parking restrictions are provided. Due to the number of vehicle crossovers that provide
access to adjacent dwellings along Eastcote Road, the number of kerbside parking spaces are
limited.

When assessing the proposals, it is noted from observations that the site is operating close to or at
its permitted capacity, based on the number of children that were brought to the site. In addition, it
was observed that nearly all children arrived at the site by car, with parents/guardians parking along
Eastcote Road or within the site itself. Those vehicles that park within the site were required to
reverse on/off the carriageway, into oncoming traffic and within the mouth of the junction of Bishop
Ramsey Close. Car parking at the kerbside was observed, which restricted the free flow of traffic
along the carriageway. In addition, vehicles were observed illegally parking on the adjacent

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 7



footway, obstructing the path of pedestrians.

When undertaking assessment of the PTAL index within the area of the site, it is noted that this is
rated as 2, which indicates that accessibility to public transport facilities is poor. Therefore, the
residential use within the site requires a maximum car parking provision of 2 parking spaces to be
provided while allowing vehicles to enter and exit the site in a forward gear.

While it is noted that 2 car parking spaces are provided, this will not allow formal car parking to be
provided for the use of the childcare facility including for the dropping off/picking up of pupils or for
staff parking and vehicles are required to either reverse in or out of the access, in to oncoming
traffic and within the mouth of an adjacent junction. As a result, it is considered that the car parking
provision within the site is not sufficient to serve the proposals.

Therefore, it is considered that the development would be contrary to Policies AM7 and AM14 of
the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan, 2012, (Part 2) and an objection is raised in relation to the
highway and transportation aspect of the proposals. In addition, it is considered that to allow the
development, would set an unacceptable president within the surrounding area.

Environmental Health Officer:

Given the information provided we recommend refusal due to the noise and disturbance affecting
nearby residential premises particularly the adjoining property.

The property is a semi detached residential property and | am not aware of any additional sound
insulation between this property and the adjoining one. This is particularly important in this case
due to the long hours and the use of the upstairs rooms.

The proposed hours start at 7am in the morning and there is the potential for disturbance as
children are dropped off particularly given the large number of children proposed.

They have not submitted sufficient details to show how they propose to deal with noise of children
in the garden for instance a solid close boarded fence and limits on the hours the garden is used
for.

The numbers of children that would be on the premises at any one time has not been clearly stated
however the numbers indicated suggest that it is likely to be well in excess of 20.

Access Officer

As the application appears to be for a straightforward change of use with no apparent material
alterations proposed, no accessibility improvements could reasonably be required within the remit
of planning.

However, the following informative should be attached to any grant of planning permission:

1. The Equality Act 2010 seeks to protect people accessing goods, facilities and services from
discrimination on the basis of a 'protected characteristic', which includes those with a disability. As
part of the Act, service providers are obliged to improve access to and within the structure of their
building, particularly in situations where reasonable adjustment can be incorporated with relative
ease. The Act states that service providers should think ahead to take steps to address barriers
that impede disabled people.

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 8



Conclusion: acceptable

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
The principle of the development

Policy R13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states that the use of residential accommodation for educational and childcare premises
will be acceptable where the following requirements are met:

i. Within residential areas, only part of a dwelling is used and the remainder is capable of
residential use;

i. The proposal would not result in an overconcentration of similar facilities in any
residential area;

iii. The proposal would not have an unacceptable impact on the amenity of neighbouring
properties arriving from:

(a) the size and relationship of properties and gardens

(b) car parking

(c) congestion and traffic generation

(d) and would not detract from the character of the area

iv. The premises are accessible by public transport and the dropping off and collection of
children can be carried out adequately and safely.

The development fails to meet the requirements of Policy R13 as it would have an
unacceptable impact on the amenity of neighbouring properties arriving from the size and
relationship of properties and gardens, car parking, congestion and traffic generation, and
would therefore not be considered acceptable in principle.

Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The site is located within an Archaeological Priority Area. Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) states that only in
exceptional circumstances would the LPA allow development to disturb remains of
importance within archaeological priority areas. The proposed development would not
result in any additions or building work and as such would be unlikely to disturb any
remains. Therefore, no objection is raised in this regard.

Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
requires all new development to maintain the quality of the built environment including
providing high quality urban design. Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) seek to ensure that new development
complements and improves the character and amenity of the area.

There are no external alterations proposed as part of this application and the existing
residential frontage will be retained. However, as noted in Section 07.09 of this report, the

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 9



proposed development would detract from the residential character of the area by virtue of
the intensity of the use and impact on adjoining residential occupiers. Therefore, the
proposal would fail to comply with Policy BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

7.08 Impact on neighbours

Policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states that uses that would become detrimental to the amenity of the adjoining occupiers
or surrounding area would not be approved. Policy OE5 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) requires measures to be undertaken to
alleviate potential disturbance where a development is acceptable in principle.

In terms of the impact on amenity, there are a number of important issues relating to the
site. The site is a semi-detached property and shares a party wall and boundary with the
adjoining semi-detached property. Furthermore, the adjoining building to the west, is
separated from the application site by 1.63m. The applicant has noted that a single storey
rear extension, has been sound insulated, however once the Patio doors are open, the
sound would escape. It is also noted that the remainder of the property is not sound
insulated.

The associated noise and activities generated by such a use may be controlled to a
degree within the building, however the children would need to go into the rear garden for
recreational time. The applicant has stated that the children go out in small groups with a
key worker and often congregate at the bottom of the garden for noisy activities. In
addition, the garden is extensive at 430 square metres. Although this would go some way
into controlling the noise of the children, the bottom of the garden abuts the bottom of the
gardens at 133 and 135 Evelyn Avenue to the north of the site and would be 6.85m away
from the rear gardens in Blaydon Close to the north-west, which have relatively small
gardens. In addition, there are no acoustic barriers in the rear garden (it is noted that the
applicant has stated that the side/rear boundary between the application site and No. 75
was heavily treed prior to November 2013, and photographic evidence of this has also
been provided) and there is no longer any form of tree or landscaping buffer.

The site is located within a residential area, and although it is acknowledged that Eastcote
Road is a busy road, with associated noise from cars and traffic; however given the high
numbers of children, the potential capacity, use of the rear garden, and number of
customers entering and leaving the premises, the D1 use, if continued would likely result
in noise and disturbance substantially over and above what would be acceptable in a
residential locality. This would be compounded by the semi-detached nature of the
property which shares a boundary party wall with the adjoining semi-detached property to
the east, No. 75 and the limited separation distances with the adjoining property to the
west, No 79. Moreover, the hours of operation, 12 hours per day Monday to Friday
exacerbates the detrimental impact.

Overall it is considered that the proposed use would be detrimental to nearby residential
occupiers, and adjoining the application site, by way of noise, disturbance. Environmental
Health have raised an objection in this regard. Therefore the proposed development
would be contrary to Policies OE1 and OE3 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012).

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable to this application.
7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The Public Transport Accessiblity Level (PTAL) of the site, is as 2, which indicates that

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 10



7.1

712

713

7.14

715

accessibility to public transport facilities is poor. Therefore, the residential use within the
site requires a maximum car parking provision of 2 parking spaces to be provided while
allowing vehicles to enter and exit the site in a forward gear. It is understood that these
parking spaces are provided during the residential hours of use.

As noted by the Highways Officer, it was evident whilst conducting a site survey that the
majority of children arrived by car and the parents/guardians were parking on Eastcote
Road or within the site. 2 car parking spaces are provided for the childcare use, which
would be insufficient for the dropping off/picking up of children, staff parking and the
provision of a mini-bus space. As a result, it is considered that the car parking provision
within the site is not sufficient to serve the proposals.

The number of kerb side spaces are limited in the vicinity is limited due to a lack of
available spaces, waiting restrictions and the number of vehicular crossovers. In addition,
the vehicles parking within the site were frequently required to reverse on/off the
carriageway, into oncoming traffic on Eastcote Road, adjacent to the junction of Bishop
Ramsey Close.

It is noted that Eastcote Road is a busy classified highway and a main distributor route.
Surveys have been undertaken which demonstrate that the average speed (in both
directions) is in excess of the existing 30 mph speed limit. In addition, there are no formal
pedestrian crossing facilities located along the highway adjacent to the site. This
excessive speeds on this part of Eastcote Road exacerbate the potential detrimental
effects of kerbside parking and reversing onto Eastcote Road.

The car parking provision at the site is inadequate to serve the development, which in turn
leads to pressure on on-street parking which in itself is limited and restricted. This has
resulted in kerb side parking. These conditions have been worsened by the excessive
vehicular speeds, lack of pedestrian crossings and reversing onto Eastcote Road.

Therefore, it is considered that the development would be contrary to Policies AM7 and
AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan, 2012, (Part 2). In this regard an objection has
been raised by the Highways Officer in relation to the highway and transportation aspect
of the proposals. In addition, it is considered that to allow the development, would set an
unacceptable president within the surrounding area.

Urban design, access and security

Not applicable to this application.
Disabled access

As the application is for a change of use with no apparent material alterations proposed,
no accessibility improvements could reasonably be required within the remit of planning,
as noted by the Access Officer.

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape features of merit
and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is appropriate. The
application site is covered by an area blanket TPO, however the development would not
and does not result in the removal or impact on any protected trees.

Sustainable waste management

Policy 5.6 of the London Plan requires development to have regard to and contribute to a

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 11



7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

reduction in waste produced. This could have been conditioned had the scheme been
recommended favourably.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Noise and disturbance has been considered in Section 7.08 of this report. Given the
nature and intensity of the use, objection is raised in terms of noise.
Comments on Public Consultations

The comments made by the individual responses are noted and are considered within the
main report, reflected in the refusal reasons, or are not material planning considerations.
Planning Obligations

Not applicable to this application.
Expediency of enforcement action

Given the noise issues, and that this is a retrospective application, if refused it would be
expedient to take enforcement action to ensure the use ceases.
Other Issues

The Council recognises the value and importance of suitable day care for pre-school
children. However, the LPA will seek to ensure that suitable premises are utilised to
prevent the establishment of facilities in inappropriate locations to the detriment of the
local area.

The explanatory paragraph 9.24 of Policy R12 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012) explains that the provision of full or sessional day care
facilities for nurseries, creches and playgroups will normally require planning permission
and states "Where such facilities are run from a private home the number of children
allowed will be carefully controlled and 10 children will normally be regarded as the
maximum".

Policy R13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states that the use of residential accommodation for educational and childcare premises
will be acceptable where the following requirements are met:

i. Within residential areas, only part of a dwelling is used and the remainder is capable of
residential use;

i. The proposal would not result in an overconcentration of similar facilities in any
residential area;

iii. The proposal would not have an unacceptable impact on the amenity of neighbouring
properties arriving from:

(a) the size and relationship of properties and gardens

(b) car parking

(c) congestion and traffic generation

(d) and would not detract from the character of the area

iv. The premises are accessible by public transport and the dropping off and collection of
children can be carried out adequately and safely.

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 12



The applicant has stated that the property will be used during the day (between the hours
of 0700 and 1859) as a child care domestic premises, and at night and early morning
(between the hours of 1900 and 0659) as a residential property. In this regard, each room
in the property has a different use dependant on the time of day.

Although their appears to be 'day and night' shift patterns, the property is in residential
use 50% of the time for a period of 12 hours Monday to Friday, and throughout the
weekend, thus it is considered that the site is capable of retaining residential use, albeit in
part.

The applicant has noted that the nearest childcare facilities in the vicinity are at least 5
minutes drive away from the site, and are currently operating at capacity. It has also been
noted whilst on site that there are no apparent similar establishments on Eastcote Road or
the immediate surroundings. Therefore, the development would not result in an
overconcentration of similar facilities in any residential area.

The impact on the neighbouring occupiers is discussed in Section 07.08
The impact on parking, congestion and traffic generation is discussed in Section 07.10

It is therefore considered that the proposed development would have an unacceptable
impact on the amenity of neighbouring properties arriving from the size and relationship of
properties and gardens, car parking, congestion and traffic generation and would not
detract from the character of the area; and would therefore fail to meet the provisions of
Policy R13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

GENERAL

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and
use of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to
the application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and
also the guidance contained in "Probity in Planning, 2009".

PLANNING CONDITIONS

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

PLANNING OBLIGATIONS
Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 13



agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related
to the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure
Levy 2010).

EQUALITIES AND HUMAN RIGHTS

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have "due regard" to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality
of opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different "protected
characteristics". The "protected characteristics" are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have "due regard" to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular "protected characteristics" would be affected by
a proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances."

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
None.

10. CONCLUSION

It is considered that overall the scheme is contrary to the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One -
Strategic Policies (November 2012) and the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012). The application is therefore recommended for refusal.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
The London Plan 2011

Supplementary Planning Document 'Accessible Hillingdon'

National Planning Policy Framework

Contact Officer: Henrietta Ashun Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 14



Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

77 Eastcote Road

Ruislip

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale
62431/APP/2013/2341 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
March 2014

North Appli¢ation

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



Agenda ltem 7

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 4A EASTBURY AVENUE NORTHWOOD
Development: Part two storey, part single storey front/side/rear extension involving raising
of roof

LBH Ref Nos: 36828/APP/2014/184

Drawing Nos: PL200
Location Plan (1:1250)
PL202
PL201
PL204
PL203

Date Plans Received:  20/01/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 27/01/2014

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.1 Site and Locality

The proposed site comprises a two storey detached property on the south side of
Eastbury Avenue. The site is located approximately 100m east of the junction with
Eastbury Road. The property has a front garden area partly laid to hardstanding for
vehicular parking and partly with mature shrubs, plants and flower beds. To the rear there
is a large garden area laid mainly to lawn with mature boundary planting.

The property benefits from a detached single storey garage / utility room on the west side
of the property. The property is constructed of brick beneath a tiled roof.

The wider area comprises similar sized properties of varying designs and scale all set on
reasonably sized plots.

The site is located outside but adjacent to the Northwood Frithwood Conservation Area,
whose boundary is the rear boundary of the application site.

The site is within the developed area as identified in the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2
Saved Policies (November 2012) and the site is covered by TPO 155.

1.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposed scheme comprises a part two storey, part single storey front, side and rear
extensions involving raising of the roof.

The proposed extension would extend at two storeys past the side elevation of the
dwelling and would incorporate the existing detached garage structure to the site. The part
two storey side extension measures 12.5m long, 3.2m wide and 5m high (to the eaves)
and would extend 2.5m beyond the rear part of the original house at ground floor level.
The side extension would be set flush with the further forward part of the building (the

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 17



ground floor with catslide roof above) and would create a two storey gable end feature in
place of the catslide roof. In addition a single storey front extension with canopy would
extend across the front of the building, in recessed section of the principal elevation. The
roof height of the building would be increased from 8.17m to 9.33m to incorporate the
increased width and depth of the building.

The part two storey rear extension measures 1.2m deep and 5m high (eaves) and spans
the width of the building. Their would be two single storey rear extensions measuring 2.5m
deep from the original rear elevation, 3.7m and 3.9m wide respectively and 3.3m high.

The proposed extensions would provide an extended living room, library, sun room, gym,
utility, garage and two additional bedrooms.

1.3 Relevant Planning History

36828/85/1768 4a Eastbury Avenue Northwood
Tree application (P)
Decision Date: 17-12-1985 Refused Appeal:
36828/A/88/1904 4a Eastbury Avenue Northwood
To fell T3 larch on TPO 155
Decision Date: 19-10-1988 Refused Appeal:
36828/B/89/1811 4a Eastbury Avenue Northwood
To fell Larch T3 on TPO 155
Decision Date: 14-12-1989 Refused Appeal:
36828/C/90/1429 4a Eastbury Avenue Northwood
To fell T3 (Larch) on TPO 155
Decision Date: 02-10-1990 Refused Appeal:27-JUL-92 Dismissed
36828/D/92/2103 4a Eastbury Avenue Northwood

To remove the two lowest whorls of branches from the mainstem of T3 (Larch) on TPO 155 and
to sever all roots which pass beneath the drive (on the west side of T3) to a depth of 200mm

Decision Date: 13-01-1993 Approved Appeal:
36828/E/93/0957 4a Eastbury Avenue Northwood
To fell one Larch (T3) on TPO 155
Decision Date: 25-02-1994 Refused Appeal:
36828/F/95/0365 4a Eastbury Avenue Northwood
To fell one Lime (T2) and one Larch (T3) on TPO 155
Decision Date: 07-07-1995 Refused Appeal:
36828/G/95/1766 4a Eastbury Avenue Northwood

To fell 1 Lime (T2) on TPO 155

Decision Date: 12-01-1996 Approved Appeal:
Comment on Planning History

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 18



There is no relevant planning history for this application, apart from applications for tree
works at the site which would not impact on the determination of the current application.

2. Advertisement and Site Notice
2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 26th February 2014

2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

3. Comments on Public Consultations

11 letters were sent to local residents and the Residents Association on 28 January 2014
and the site notices were posted on 4 February and 9 February 2014, and the the
application was advertised on 5 February 2014.

8 letters of objection were received in response to the public consultation

. Parking problems

. Too big

. Possible loft conversion in future

. Loss of privacy

. Increase flood risk

. Larch tree missing at the front on plans
. Sewer system cannot cope with enlarged house.
. Condition to limit working hours

. Loss of light

10. Increased traffic

11. Out of character with the area

O©CoOoO~NOOOPDWN -

In addition a petition was submitted with 22 signatures. The objections are:

1. Loss of privacy and light due to increased height

2. Too big increase from 3 bed to 5 bed and additional rooms such as a gym, sun room,
library, study and utility room.

3. Increased risk of surface water flooding and sewer overflow.

Officer Comment: Many of the points above are addressed in the planning assessment
below. However, the site does not fall in a flood risk zone or critical drainage area,
accordingly appropriate drainage could be secured by way of condition. The size of the
property in relation to extra bedrooms and other rooms is considered against the planning
policies but a refusal could not be justified solely on number of rooms. Sewer capability
will be addressed at the Building Regulations stage.

Internal Consultees
TREES AND LANDSCAPING OFFICER:

This site is covered by TPO 155 Significant trees / other vegetation of merit in terms of
Saved Policy BE38: There is a protected Larch (T3 on TPO 155) situated close to the
proposed extension. The tree will not be directly affected, however the soil around its
roots could be compacted by construction-related activities. There is also a Western Red
Cedar closer to the house. This does not constrain development and should probably be

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 19



removed. Recommendations: A plan should be submitted that shows the location of the
Larch and some form of ground protection around it. Conclusion (in terms of Saved Policy
BE38): Acceptable, subject to conditions RES8 and RES10.

CONSERVATION OFFICER:

BACKGROUND: This is a relatively unaltered modest inter-War detached property which
backs onto the Northwood,Frithwood Conservation Area. It is unpretentiously detailed
and well proportioned with a front projecting catslide roof and vertically tile-clad hipped
roof tower facet. It is set alongside other detached properties of the same size and similar
design. The area is characterised by such detached inter-War housing together with
some earlier properties. The property is tight onto the boundary of the conservation area
and any extension to the rear could impact its overall character and appearance.

COMMENTS: The two storey side/front extension is not subordinate to the existing
property. The juxtaposition of the front gable would be dominant and awkward, and
together with the other front extensions and alterations to the elevations would be
obtrusive, harming the well proportioned and modestly detailed front elevation. These,
together with the raising of the roof, would mean the property would dominate the
streetscene, and enclose the gap between the properties. This is against the advice given
in the Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement (HDAS) Supplementary Planning
Document - Residential Extensions. In particular, page 32 (Section 8.0) which states,
'Changes and extensions to the front of the house must be minor and not alter the overall
appearance of the house or dominate the character of the street.’ The proposals will
almost double the size of the existing house and will not maintain the standard of design
more generally in the area.

There will also be a moderate impact on the appearance of the conservation area. | am
concerned that when viewed from the rear, the adverse width, height and projection of the
extensions and resulting loss of spaciousness will not sustain its significance. No report
has been provided to assess this impact and consequential enlargement of the property
being obtrusive. HDAS is clear. Para. 6.2 states "Two storey rear or first floor rear
extensions will only be allowed where there is no significant over-dominance...'

These proposals are not subordinate to the existing property and spoil its simple
proportions. In addition, the proposal will not sustain the appearance of the ASLC and
therefore this application should be refused.

CONCLUSION: Unacceptable. The proposal will not sustain the significance of the
heritage asset or the appearance of the streetscene.

4, UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-
Part 1 Policies:
PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
Part 2 Policies:

AM14 New development and car parking standards.
BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 20



BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE18 Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new

planting and landscaping in development proposals.

HDAS-EXT Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

The main issues for consideration in determining this application relate to the effect of the
proposal on the character and appearance of the original dwelling, the impact on the
visual amenities of the surrounding area, the impact on residential amenity of the
neighbouring dwellings, provision of acceptable residential amenity for the application
property, the availability of parking and the impact to protected trees.

The proposed single and part storey extension extends across the full width of the
property to a depth of 2.5m. The depth is in line with the guidance in paragraph 3.3 and
6.4 of the HDAS Residential Extensions which advise that for detached properties such
extensions should have a maximum depth of 4m. The height of 3.3m,for the single storey
part and matching the original eaves and ridge line would be compliant with HDAS
guidance. The side extension replaces an existing single storey garage and in total width
is less than two thirds of the original width and therefore compliant with HDAS guidance in
this respect.

As part of the overall development the proposal comprises a part two storey / part single
storey front extension. The single storey extension effectively being a large porch area
with canopy. The two storey part extends the first floor bedroom space and involves the
creation of a large gable structure. Chapter 8 of the HDAS guidance advises that front
extensions should be subordinate and not dominate the character and appearance of the
building and the host property. The current proposal fails to comply with this guidance and
would form a dominant and incongruent feature out of keeping with the character of the
street scene. The porch is also a dominant feature, due to its width, and is not in
compliance with HDAS guidance in section 8 and has an unacceptable impact on the
appearance of the building.

Whilst compliance with guidance in HDAS :Residential Extensions is one part of the
consideration, it is important to also consider the impact on the character of the property
and area in line with the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 Saved Policies. As clearly identified
in the response by the Council's Conservation Officer the proposed development is not
subordinate to the main house and particularly from the from the front where the large two

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 21



storey extension is proposed. The infilling of the gap between the garage and the main
house and the significant increase in the height of the building contribute to the conclusion
that the proposed scheme is an incongruous feature in the streetscene and harmful to the
character and appearance of the main house. From the rear it is considered that the scale
and form of the extension will have a harmful impact on the character and appearance of
the adjoining conservation area.

Therefore, when taken as a whole the proposed extensions would not be subordinate to
the main house and constitutes an overdevelopment of the original property. As such it
does not comply with Policy BE4, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2
Saved Policies (November 2012) and guidance in HDAS Residential Extensions.

In terms of the impact on the neighbouring dwellings, the proposed side extension has no
windows in the side elevation which could not be conditioned to be obscure glazed and
therefore the proposals and would not give rise to any overlooking. The other windows are
in the front and rear elevation and are comparable to the outlook from the rear windows of
the existing property and again are not considered to lead to any overlooking of
neighbouring properties.

With regard to impact upon the outlook and light of neighbouring properties, the side
extension and the two storey rear extension would be sited close to the boundary with the
properties No 4 and 6 Eastbury Avenue. However, given the distance to these properties,
2.8m and 4m respectively it is considered that the proposed extensions would not have a
detrimental impact upon the amenity of the occupiers of these properties, given that they
would not breach the 45 degree guideline when taken from the neighbouring properties.

Therefore, it is considered that the development would comply with Policies BE20, BE21
and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 - Saved Policies (November 2012) or
guidance in HDAS Residential Extensions.

It is considered, that all the proposed habitable rooms, and those altered by the
development still maintain an adequate outlook and source of natural light, therefore
complying with Policies BE20 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 - Saved Policies
(November 2012) and 3.5 of the London Plan (2011).

Over 150 sq m of garden space would remain for the extended property which is
acceptable for a five bedroom property and therefore complying with Policy BE23 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 Saved Policies (November 2012).

The property would still retain parking for at least 2 cars to the front and therefore is
considered acceptable for a five bedroom property in accordance with policy AM7 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 Saved Policies (November 2012).

The Council's Tree Officer has confirmed that subject to suitable planning condition
relating to tree protection during building works, the proposed development is not harmful
to the trees that are subject to preservation orders, given the distance of these trees to
the proposed development. As such the proposed development complies with Policy
BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 Saved Policies (November 2012).

Due to the size of the extension there would be a CIL requirement of £4910.04 were
planning permission to be granted.

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 22



In conclusion, given the impact of the proposed extensions on the host property and the
wider character of the area the application is recommended for refusal

6. RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed part two storey part single storey side, rear and front extension, by virtue
of its siting, size, scale and overall design, would fail to appear as a subordinate addition
and would thus be detrimental to the character and appearance of the original house, the
visual amenities of the street scene and the character and appearance of the wider area,
inlcuding the adjacent Northwood Frithwood Conservation Area. The proposal would
therefore be contrary to Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic
Policies (November 2012), Policies BE4, BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two - UDP Saved Policies (November 2012) and the adopted Supplementary
Planning Document HDAS: Residential Extensions.

INFORMATIVES

1 On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic
Policies appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then
London Plan Policies. On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council
agreed the adoption of the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies.
Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from the old Unitary
Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in
September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

Standard Informatives

1 The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to
all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
(prohibition of discrimination).

2 The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to
the policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012)
set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant
material considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national

Part 1 Policies:
PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
Part 2 Policies:

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 23



guidance.

AM14
BE4
BE13

BE15
BE18
BE19

BE20
BE21
BE22

BE23
BE24

BE38

HDAS-EXT

Contact Officer: Mark Jones

New development and car parking standards.
New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

New development must harmonise with the existing street
scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings
Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

New development must improve or complement the character of
the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.
Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy
to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and
provision of new planting and landscaping in development
proposals.

Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 24



\
' The Limes

I

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database

rights 2013 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

4A Eastbury Avenue
Northwood

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale
36828/APP/2014/184 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
North Applicatieh | March2014

Ly
HILLINGDON

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26



Agenda Iltem 8

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 2 LINKSWAY NORTHWOOD

Development: Two storey, 5-bed, detached dwelling with habitable roofspace involving
demolition of existing dwelling.

LBH Ref Nos: 36910/APP/2013/2338

Drawing Nos: Proposed Perspectives
12/102/2 - Tree Report
12/120/2 Rev b
1440 P201 REV D
1440 P102 REV B

1440 P202

Design and Access Statement

1440 P101
Date Plans Received: 15/08/2013 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 13/02/2014
Date Application Valid: 04/09/2013 04/09/2013

15/08/2013
DEFERRED ON 6th March 2014 FOR SITE VISIT .

The application was deferred to allow for a member site visit which took place on Thursday
20th March ahead of the application being presented back to committee.

1. SUMMARY

The application seeks planning permission for the erection of a two storey, detached, 5-
bedroom, dwelling involving the demolition of the existing detached dwelling and
detached garage.

The site is a triangular corner plot which separates Copsewood Way (to the west) from
Linksway (to the east), located at the northern end of Linksway. Contained with the site is
an existing two-storey detached residential property and side/rear garage addition, which
is set back from the main highway by approximately 15.5 metres. The site forms part of
Copsewood Estate Area of Special Local Character as set out within the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), and is also covered by Tree
Preservation Order 391, with a number of large, mature trees on the boundary lines of
the site.

The amended design of the proposed scheme is considered to have an acceptable
impact on the character and appearance of the Copse Wood Estate Area of Special
Local Character. Sufficient details have been provided to show that the scheme would
ensure the protection of the protected trees within the site and also the protection of the
residential amenity of the neighboring occupiers.

At the time of writing the amended plans consultation had not expired, any further
submissions received before the committee meeting on the 6th March 2014 will be
reported via the addendum.

It is considered that overall the scheme is in compliance with the Policies of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), the Hillingdon

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 27



Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), HDAS Residential Layouts
and the London Plan (2011). The application is therefore recommended for approval.

2 RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 RES3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

2 RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 1440 P201 REV D &
1440 P202 and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development
remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (July 2011).

3 RES5 General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the following has been
completed in accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:

Car Parking [1440 P201 REV D]

Cycle Storage [1440 P201 REV D]

Amenity Space [1440 P201 REV D]

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure that the development complies with the objectives of Policies AM14 & BE23 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

4 RES6 Levels

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not
be carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in
accordance with policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012)

5 RES7 Materials (Submission)

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details and be

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 28



retained as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

6 RES8 Tree Protection

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or
development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum
height of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details. The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.

The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the
course of the works and in particular in these areas:

2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;

2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan:; Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

7 RES9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping
2.a Refuse Storage

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 29



2.d Hard Surfacing Materials

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance

3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within
the landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority
becomes seriously damaged or diseased.

4. Schedule for Implementation

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with
the approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13, BE38
and AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
Policies 5.11 (living walls and roofs) and 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan (July
2011)

8 RES12 No additional windows or doors

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall be
constructed in the walls or roof slopes of the development hereby approved facing, No.3
Copse Wood Way or No.4 Linksway.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

9 RES13 Obscure Glazing

The first floor window serving the en-suits and bathrooms and the second floor games
room/cinema room windows in the rear elevation facing No.3 Copse Wood Way and the
first floor window and roof light facing No.4 Linksway shall be glazed with permanently
obscured glass and non-opening below a height of 1.8 metres taken from internal
finished floor level for so long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

10 RES14 Outbuildings, extensions and roof alterations

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification); no garage(s), shed(s) or other outbuilding(s), nor extension or roof
alteration to any dwellinghouse(s) shall be erected without the grant of further specific
permission from the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To protect the character and appearance of the area and amenity of residential occupiers
in accordance with policies BE13, BE21, BE23 and BE24 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 30



11 RES15 Sustainable Water Management (changed from SUDS)

No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the
provision of sustainable water management has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly demonstrate that
sustainable drainage systems (SUDS) have been incorporated into the designs of the
development in accordance with the hierarchy set out in accordance with Policy 5.15 of
the London Plan and will:

i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed
to delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken
to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and

iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development
which shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory
undertaker and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme
throughout its lifetime.

The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with
Policy OE8 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
London Plan (July 2011) Policy 5.12.

12 RES16 Code for Sustainable Homes

The dwelling(s) shall achieve Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes. No
development shall commence until a signed design stage certificate confirming this level
has been received. The design stage certificate shall be retained and made available for
inspection by the Local Planning Authority on request.

The development must be completed in accordance with the principles of the design
stage certificate and the applicant shall ensure that completion stage certificate has been
attained prior to occupancy of each dwelling.

REASON

To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development identified in London Plan (July
2011) Policies 5.1 and 5.3.

13 RES18 Lifetime Homes/Wheelchair Units

All residential units within the development hereby approved shall be built in accordance
with 'Lifetime Homes' Standards.

REASON
To ensure that sufficient housing stock is provided to meet the needs of disabled and
elderly people in accordance with London Plan (July 2011) Policies 3.1, 3.8 and 7.2

14 RES23 Visibility Splays - Pedestrian
The access for the proposed car parking shall be provided with those parts of 2.4m x

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 31



2.4m pedestrian visibility splays which can be accommodated within the site in both
directions and shall be maintained free of all obstacles to the visibility between heights of
0.6m and 2.0m above the level of the adjoining highway.

REASON
In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety in accordance with policy AM7
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

15 RES24 Secured by Design

The dwelling(s) shall achieve 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the
Hillingdon Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the
Association of Chief Police Officers (ACPO). No dwelling shall be occupied until
accreditation has been achieved.

REASON

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote
the well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the
Local Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with London Plan (July 2011) Policies 7.1 and 7.3.

16 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification); no gate, fence, wall or other means of enclosure shall be erected
within 5 metres of the front boundary line of the site shared with the highway of Linksway

REASON

To protect the character and appearance of the area in accordance with Policies BES5,
BE13 & BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November
2012)

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 32



BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.
BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
BES New development within areas of special local character
BEG New development within Gate Hill Farm and Copsewood Estates
areas of special local character
AM14 New development and car parking standards.
AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
HDAS-EXT Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008
HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006
LPP 3.3 (2011) Increasing housing supply
LPP 3.4 (2011) Optimising housing potential
LPP 3.5 (2011) Quality and design of housing developments
LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction
LPP 5.7 (2011) Renewable energy
LPP 8.2 (2011) Planning obligations
LPP 8.3 (2011) Community infrastructure levy
3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies.
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan:; Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

4

You are advised that the development hereby approved represents chargeable
development under the Mayor's Community Infrastructure Levy. At this time the
Community Infrastructure Levy is estimated to be £8,257.80 from Section 8 of
Spreadsheet which is due on commencement of this development. The actual
Community Infrastructure Levy will be calculated at the time your development is first
permitted and a separate liability notice will be issued by the Local Planning Authority.
Should you require further information please refer to the Council's Website
www.hillingdon.gov.uk/index.jsp?articleid=24738.

5 147 Damage to Verge

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 33



development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex,
UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

6 1 Building to Approved Drawing

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

7 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Councilis Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out
construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

8 12 Encroachment

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by
either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application will
have to be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a development that results
in any form of encroachment.

9 13 Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at
least 6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed
plans must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 34



information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control,
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

10 14 Neighbourly Consideration - include on all residential exts

You have been granted planning permission to build a residential extension. When
undertaking demolition and/or building work, please be considerate to your neighbours
and do not undertake work in the early morning or late at night or at any time on Sundays
or Bank Holidays. Furthermore, please ensure that all vehicles associated with the
construction of the development hereby approved are properly washed and cleaned to
prevent the passage of mud and dirt onto the adjoining highway. You are advised that
the Council does have formal powers to control noise and nuisance under The Control of
Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other relevant legislation. For further
information and advice, please contact - Environmental Protection Unit, 4W/04, Civic
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250190).

11 15 Party Walls

The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal agreement
from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:

carry out work to an existing party wall;

build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;

in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining building.
Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building owner
and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls. The Building
Control Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any necessary agreements
with the adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by the Council should be taken as
removing the necessity for the building owner to comply fully with the Party Wall Act.
Further information and advice is to be found in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 -
explanatory booklet" published by the ODPM, available free of charge from the Planning
& Community Services Reception Desk, Level 3, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

12 16 Property Rights/Rights of Light

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not
empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the
owner. If you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

13 19 Community Safety - Designing Out Crime

Before the submission of reserved matters/details required by condition [ ], you are
advised to consult the Metropolitan Police's Crime Prevention Design Advisor, Planning &
Community Services, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250538).

14

You are advised that the development hereby approved represents chargeable
development under the Mayor's Community Infrastructure Levy. The actual Community
Infrastructure Levy will be calculated at the time your development is first permitted and a
separate liability notice will be issued by the Local Planning Authority. Should you require
further information please refer to the Council's Website
www.hillingdon.gov.uk/index.jsp?articleid=24738

3. CONSIDERATIONS

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 35



3.1 Site and Locality

The site is a triangular corner plot which separates Copse Wood Way (to the west) from
Linksway (to the east), located at the northern end of Linksway. Contained with the site is
an existing two-storey detached residential property and side/rear garage addition, which
is set back from the main highway by approximately 15.5 metres.

This is one of the original dark red brick houses on the estate, designed to face the corner
of Linksway and Copse Wood Way, of modest size, vernacular design and surrounded by
mature trees.

The site has an an existing vehicular access loacted at the southern end of the curtilage,
with access taken from Linksway. A large grass verge is located immediately north of the
site at the junction between Linksway and Copse Wood Way.

To the south of the site is No.4 Linksway, a two storey detached property with a width off
23.5 metres. To the rear of the site is No.3 Copse Wood Way which is also a two storey
detached dwelling.

The site forms part of Copsewood Estate Area of Special Local Character as set out
within the Hillingdon Local Plan; Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), and is
also covered by Tree Preservation Order 391.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks planning permission for the erection of a two storey, detached, 5-
bedroom, dwelling involving the demolition of the existing detached dwelling and detached
garage within the site.

The proposed building would have a cranked design and would be 23.3 metres wide at its
widest point. The building would be orientated to have its main frontage facing Linksway
with a maximum depth of 9.6 metres. The property would be located 1.5 metres away
from the southern boundary of the site shared with No.4 Linksway and would be set 9.5
metres from the front boundary line of the site. The building would be 9.9 metres in height
with a dormer in the principal roofslope and two dormer windows in the rear roof slope. A
integral garage and driveway would provide off-street parking within the site and a garden
space would be created to the rear of the building.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

36910/A/97/1948 2 Linksway Northwood

Erection of a single storey side extension and a detached double garage and workshop

Decision: 02-04-1998 Approved

36910/APP/2012/1981 2 Linksway Northwood

Two storey, detached, 7-bed dwelling with habitable roofspace and detached single storey
garage involving the demolition of the existing detached dwelling and detached garage

Decision: 18-10-2012 Withdrawn

36910/APP/2013/107 2 Linksway Northwood

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 36



Two storey, detached, 6-bedroom, dwelling involving the demolition of the existing detached
dwelling and detached garage

Decision: 26-06-2013  Withdrawn

36910/B/97/1954 2 Linksway Northwood
Tree surgery to two Oak trees in Area A1 on TPO 391

Decision: 25-03-1998 NFA

36910/C/98/0598 2 Linksway Northwood
To fell sixteen Thuja trees in area A1 on TPO 391

Decision: 17-08-1998 Approved

36910/D/98/1816 2 Linksway Northwood
Tree surgery to 3 Oaks in area A1 on TPO 391

Decision: 27-09-2001  NFA

36910/E/99/1387 2 Linksway Northwood

Tree surgery to three Oak trees in Area A1 on TPO 391, including branch reduction of two Oak
trees (N0s.26 and 27) to give a 1 metre clearance from the house and removal of three lowest
branches and one small branch growing towards the house from Oak (No.15)

Decision: 22-10-1999  Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History

The applicant entered pre-application discussions with the Council's Planning Department
and advice was provided regarding design and other planning matters, especially with
regards to the design, detailing and siting of the proposed development.

It should be noted that the design of the dwelling proposed within the current application
differs substantially from the designs within the previously withdrawn applications.
Significant amendments have been made by the applicant in order to seek a scheme
which addresses previous concerns.

On the 26 June 2013, a planning application ref. 36910/APP/2013/107 was withdrawn for
a development comprising a two storey, 5-bed, detached dwelling with habitable
roofspace involving demolition of existing dwelling.

On the 18 October 2012, a planning application ref. 36910/APP/2012/1981 was withdrawn
for a development comprising a two storey detached 7 bedroom house.

On the 2 April 1998, planning permission was granted for the erection of a single storey
side extension and a detached double garage and workshop application reference
36910/A/97/1948

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 37



Between 1997-1999 permission has been sought and approved to prune and reduce the
crown spread of protected trees within the property. Application references:
36910/E/99/1387, 36910/D/98/1816, 36910/C/98/0598 and 36910/B/97/1954.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

BE5 New development within areas of special local character

BEG6 New development within Gate Hill Farm and Copsewood Estates areas of special
local character

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

HDAS-EXT  Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted December 2008

HDAS-LAY  Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 3.3 (2011) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.4 (2011) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2011) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 5.7 (2011) Renewable energy

LPP 8.2 (2011) Planning obligations

LPP 8.3 (2011) Community infrastructure levy

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 38



5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

3 neighbours and Northwood Residents Association were notified by way of Letter on 6th
September 2013. A site notice was erected 6 individual representations objecting to the scheme
were received for the following reasons:

1. The development would adversely affect the street scene in that the existing house is one of two
matching properties (one on either side of Copsewood Way) that represent "gatehouses" to the
Copsewood estate;

2. Detrimental to the visual cohesion of the entrance to the estate;

3. Detracts from the open character and appearance of the Copse Wood Area of Special Local
Character;

4. This is a very sensitive site and its loss will be dramatic;

5. The present front elevation face of the 3 bedroom gate house will be replaced by an ugly North
facing side elevation dominated by 2 large chimneys;

6. The rear of the proposed house, due to its new orientation would look directly on the back of 3
Copse Wood and appears to break the 45 degree rule;

7. The dormers in the rear roof elevation would look directly onto No 3 Copse Wood;

8. There are serious flaws in the site plans;

9. Overdevelopment of the site;

10. Harm to the protected Trees within the site;

11. No details provided of the boundary treatments;

One response in support of the application was also received on the ground that it would be in
keeping with the surrounding area.

CASE OFFICER COMMENTS: The above comments will be addressed in the main body of the
report.

Northwood Residents Association:
A petition with 69 signatories has been received objecting on the following grounds:

1. The scale, width, architectural and proportions are out of keeping;

2. The roof line would fill the skyline;

3. There are anomalies in the site plan and design statement;

4. Loss of privacy to No.3;

5. Detrimental to the trees on the site;

6. Symmetrical design contrasts with the asymmetrical design of adjoining property in Linksway;

CASE OFFICER COMMENT: The above will be considered in the main body of the report.

During the course of the application process the applicant submitted amended plans and tree
surveys and reports in support of the application. A 14 day reconsult was stared on 14th February
2014, with no further responses received by 24th Februrary 2014. Any further responses received
will be reported to committee in the addendum.

One additional comment has been received from the lead petitioner. This states:

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 39



The main objections of the petitioners, against the proposed

development of 2 Linksway, on the Copse Wood Estate, were:

1. The proposed building was too large for the 2 Linksway plot.

2. The street scene would be destroyed by this overbearing property.

3. Because of the size of the building the security and privacy of the adjacent property, 3 Copse
Wood Way, would be seriously

compromised.

None of the above concerns have been addressed in the revised
plans.

The proposed development is still a 3 storey design resulting in a
significantly higher roof line compared with the adjacent properties, which are 2 storey dwellings.

Because of the bulk of the proposed building the symmetry of the
street scene would be lost.

Because of the size of the building the proposal is to construct it

much closer to the property at 3 Copse Wood Way, resulting in a

separation of less than 10 m between the windows of the two properties. This would seriously
reduce the value of 3 Copse Wood Way.

While the use of opaque glass in the windows overlooking the garden of No. 3 Copse Wood Way,
is appreciated, this situation could be easily reversed.

The petitioners have expressed their strong views on the proposed development and expect the
members on the Hillingdon Council who represent them to take the appropriate action and reject
the proposal.

Internal Consultees

TREES AND LANDSCAPING OFFICER:

Tree Preservation Order (TPO) / Conservation Area: This site is covered by TPO 391 Significant
trees / other vegetation of merit in terms of Saved Policy BE38: There are several, large, mature
protected trees (Oak and Western Red Cedar) along the site's eastern, northern and north-western
boundaries. These trees provide a green screen, and also significantly contribute to the arboreal /
wooded character of the Copse wood Estate Area of Special Local Character. These trees do not
appear to have been surveyed or taken into consideration (in this current application). Therefore, a
detailed tree tree survey, tree report and tree protection plan (in accordance with BS5837:2012) is
required, and it is also necessary to provide details of proposed

underground services.

Scope for new planting: N/A

Does scheme conform to HDAS: This matter can be dealt with by condition.

Does scheme conform to SUDS: This matter can be dealt with by condition.

Recommendations: In order to show that this scheme provides adequate protection for the various
protected trees on-site, in accordance with BS 5837:2012, a tree survey, tree report and tree
protection plan should be provided, along with a plan showing the location of the proposed

services.

Conclusion (in terms of Saved Policy BE38): As it stands, this application is unacceptable because
it does not make adequate provision for the protection and long-term retention of the important,
protected trees on-site. Please re-consult on receipt of the requested information.

CASE OFFICER COMMENT: The applicant has provided the required Tree Report and this has
been reviewed by the Trees and Landscaping Officer who is satisfied that the proposed

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 40



development would ensure the protection of the trees within the site.

HIGHWAYS OFFICER:

The development proposals are for the demolition of the existing dwelling and reconstruction, to
provide a two storey, 6 bedroom detached dwelling at the site. There are no chances in relation to
the existing or proposed parking provision or the means of access.

Therefore, it is considered that the development would not be contrary to the adopted Hillingdon
Local Plan, 2012, (Part 2) and an objection is not raised in relation to the highway aspect of the
proposals.

ACCESS OFFICER:

The proposal seeks demolition of an existing 3 bedroom detached dwelling and detached garage
and the erection of a new 5 bedroom detacheddwelling with integral garage. The Design & Access
Statement has no real information on disabled accessibility; it does state that the internal spaces
within the property have been designed to comply with Lifetimes Homes Standards.

In assessing this application, reference has been made to London Plan July 2011, Policy 3.8
(Housing Choice) and the Council's Supplementary Planning Document "Accessible Hillingdon"
adopted January 2010. Compliance with all 16 Lifetime Home standards (as relevant) should be
shown on plan.

The following access observations are provided:

1. Level access should be achieved. Entry to the proposed dwelling appears to be stepped, which
would be contrary to the above policy requirement. Should it not be possible, due to topographical
constraints, to achieve level access, it would be preferable to gently slope (maximum gradient 1:21)
the pathway leading to the ground floor entrance door.

2. Details of level access to and into the proposeddwelling should be submitted. A fall of 1:60 in
the areas local to the principal entrance should be incorporated to prevent rain and surface water
ingress. In additionto a levels plan showing internal and external levels, a section drawing of the
level access threshold substructure, and water bar to be installed, including any necessary
drainage, should be submitted.

3. The scheme does not include provision of a downstairs WC, compliant with the Lifetime Home
requirements. To this end, a minimum of 700 mm should be provided to one side of the toilet pan,
with 1100 mm in front to any obstruction opposite.

4. A minimum of one bathrooms/ensuite facility should be designed in accordance with Lifetime
Home standards. At least 700mm should be provided to one side of the WC, with 1100 mm
provided between the front edge of the toilet pan and a door or wall opposite.

5. To allow bathrooms to be used as wet rooms in future, plans should indicate floor gulley
drainage. #

6. The plans should indicate the location of a future 'through the ceiling' wheelchair

lift.

Conclusion: revised plans should be requested as a prerequisite to any planning approval.

CASE OFFICER COMMENT: The applicant has submitted amended plans which show that the
building will comply with the Lifetime Homes Standard and has overcome the objections of the
Access Officer

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The site is currently in residential use therefore the principle of a new residential
development is acceptable provided that it accords with the Council's policies and
enhances the characteristics of the local area.

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 41



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

Any planning proposal would need to accord with the design policies set out within
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), and the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and relevant design
guidance contained within HDAS Residential Layouts.

Density of the proposed development

In terms of the density of the proposed development, the proposal is replacing 1
residential unit within the site for another, therefore, the units per hectare density would
not change. Whilst the provision of 11 units per hectare would be below the standards
required by Policy 3.4 of the London Plan (July 2011), density is only an indicator of
acceptability of a scheme and the density of the development is similar to the surrounding
residential pattern of the Copse Wood Estate.

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

As detailed Section 7.07 of this report it is considered that the proposal would have an
acceptable impact on the character of the Copse wood Estate Area of Special Local
Character.

Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
requires all new development to maintain the quality of the built environment including
providing high quality urban design. Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) seek to ensure that new development
complements and improves the character and amenity of the area. Policy BE5 requires
new developments within Areas of Special Local Character to harmonise with the
materials, design features, architectural style and building heights predominant in the
area. Policy BE6 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) requires two-storey developments in the Copsewood Estate to be 1.5m set-in from
the side boundary.

Policy 3.5 of the London Plan states that The design of all new housing developments
should enhance the quality of local places, taking into account physical context and local
character and Policy 7.4 states that buildings, should provide a high quality design
response that has regard to the pattern and grain of the existing spaces and streets in
orientation, scale, proportion and mass and allows existing buildings and structures that
make a positive contribution to the character of a place to influence the future character of
the area is informed by the surrounding historic environment.

This is a prominent key site at the entrance to the Estate, one of the original dark red brick
houses on the Estate, designed to continue the building line of Links Way, whilst turning
the corner into Copse Wood Way. The proposed siting of the property is such that it
seeks to address its unique and established orientation. The building has been designed
with a cranked appearance in order to provide a design which compliments the layout of
the site. The design of the building with a centralised gable in the main front element of
the building is typical of the design of dwellings on Linksway. The size of the building at
23.3 metres in width is larger than the typical dwelling on Linksway, however, it is noted
that the unit sits comfortably within the plot, which is wider than a typical property in
Linksway and that the adjacent property, No.4 Linksway, also has a width of
approximately 25 metres. The overall depth of building at 9.5 metres is shallower than
other recently completed developments on Linksway. The depth of the building has also

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 42



allowed for a traditional pitched roof to be used in the design of the building, which is
again in keeping with the character of the original estate. A number of residents have
objected to the overall height of the building, citing that it would be out of character with
the estate. The height of 9.9 metres is taller than the existing building. However, the
height of the dwelling would be similar to other developments approved on the estate and
given the set back from the front boundary line, the level of harm from any increased
visual dominance would not be so great as to warrant a refusal of the application. It is
noted that some residents also objected to the scheme on the grounds of the loss of one
of the original gatehouses to the estate. Whilst the loss of this building is regrettable, the
building is not listed and their is no Policies within the Local Plan which prohibit the
demolition of this building, subject to its replacement according with the Policies of the
Local Plan. The overall size, height and design of the building is considered to relate
satisfactorily to the surrounding area and the overall plot. The building is set 1.5 metres
from the boundary line shared with No.4 Linksway, ensuring a sufficient distance
separation is maintained to provide a visual gap between the buildings.

The proposed development will ensure the protection of all the major trees within the site,
ensuring the protection of one of the key features on the Copse Wood Estate. The plans
show the existing front boundary treatement will be retained and a condition will be added
requiring details of all boundary treatments. Neighbours have expressed concern over the
potential for gates to the added to the front of the site which will be out of character with
the estate. Therefore, a condition would be added to remove permitted development rights
for boundary treatments at the site.

Therefore, it is considered that the proposed development would have an acceptable
impact on the Character and Appearance of the Copse Wood Estate Area of Special
Local Character, in accordance with Policies BE5, BE13, BE15, BE19 & BE38 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

7.08 Impact on neighbours

Paragraph 4.11 of HDAS Residential Layouts states that the 45° principle will be applied
to new development to ensure the amenity of adjoining occupiers and future occupiers are
protected. Paragraph 4.9 states that a minimum acceptable distance to minimise the
negative impact of overbearing and overshadowing is 15m. Paragraph 4.12 requires a
minimum of 21m distance between facing habitable room windows to prevent overlooking
and loss of privacy. Policy BE21 states that planning permission will not be granted for
new buildings which by reason of their siting, bulk and proximity would result in significant
loss of residential amenity.

The proposed development would decrease the separations distances between the
existing and adjoining properties. The property would be located 11.86m away from the
side flank wall of No. 3 Copse Wood Way to the west of the site. This property has a
window in the side flank wall which is not a primary window to a habitable room, therefore,
the proposed development would not result in significant harm to the residential amenity
of this neighbouring occupier. The proposed development would not breach the 45 degree
guideline when taken from the rear elevation of No.4 Linkway, ensuring that no significant
harm would occur to the residential amenity of this neighbouring occupier.

No.3 Copsewood Way has windows in the side elevation which face towards the rear
elevation of the proposed dwelling. However, these windows are obscure glazed and
serve a bathroom and staircase. Therefore, no significantly harmful overlooking of these
windows would occur from the proposed development.

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 43



During the course of the application concerns were raised that the proposed new dwelling
would provide oblique views from the rear elevation of the building into the windows in the
rear elevation of No.3 Copsewood Way. The windows in question were the windows in the
rear gable end at the southern side of the proposed building. The applicant has submitted
amended plans with the upper floor windows in question in the rear elevation being
obscured glazed, therefore, with a condition attached for these windows and the upper
floor windows in the side elevation facing No.4 Linksway being obscure glazed, the
proposed development is considered to have an acceptable impact on the residential
amenity of the neighbouring occupiers in terms of loss of privacy. Therefore, the proposed
development is considered to comply with Policies BE20, BE21 & BE24 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan (November 2012).
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

Paragraphs 4.6 to 4.8 and Table 2 of the Council's SPD HDAS: Residential Layouts
advises that 5 plus bedroom two-storey units should have a minimum floor area of 101
square metres. Furthermore, London Plan Policy 3.5 and Table 3.3 states that 5 bedroom
two-storey houses should have a minimum size of 107 square metres. The proposed
development meets minimum standards providing over 400 square metres of gross
internal floor area. The Mayor's Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (November
2012) requires the minimum area for a single bedroom to be 8 square metres and a
minimum floor area for a double bedroom to be 12 square metres. The proposed dwelling
exceeds these standards.

HDAS advises in Paragraph 4.15 that four bedroom plus houses should have a minimum
private amenity area of 100 square metres. The proposed development exceeds amenity
standards by providing approximately 282 square metres. This calculation takes into
account the side and rear amenity space due to the siting of the proposed development. It
is therefore considered that the proposed development would be in accordance with
Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) and Policy 3.5 and Table 3.3 of the London Plan (2011).
7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

2 parking spaces are proposed on the site as existing as per Policy 6.13 of the London
Plan and in compliance with Policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012). The proposed development would make use of the
existing crossover at the site and the Council's highways officer has raised no objection to
the proposed development.

The proposed garage would be of sufficient size to provide space to park 1 car and at
least 2 bicycles. Therefore, the proposed development is considered to comply with Policy
AMB9 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

7.11 Urban design, access and security

The proposed development would raise no issues with regards to urban design. A
condition will be added to any approval to ensure the proposed development would be
design in line with the principles of Secure By Design.

7.12 Disabled access

The Access Officer raised a number of objections to the original floor plans and elevations
as the scheme was not compliant with the lifetime homes standards. The applicant has
submitted amended plans which demonstrate compliance with the lifetime home
standards, ensuring the proposed development complies with Policy 3.8 of the London
Plan (July 2011) and the Council's SPD Accessible Hillingdon.

7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 44



7.14 Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

This site is covered by Tree Preservation Order 391. There are several, large, mature
protected trees (Oak and Western Red Cedar) along the site's eastern, northern and
north-western boundaries. These trees provide a green screen, and also significantly
contribute to the arboreal/wooded character of the Copse wood Estate Area of Special
Local Character. Further to the Tree Officer comments, a Tree Survey and Arboricultural
Report was submitted by the applicant. The Tree Officer has reviewed the plan and is
satisfied that no significant harm will occur to the protected trees.

The Tree which would be mosted impacted upon is tree number 18, a category B Oak
Tree. the existing house takes up about 7m2 of the RPA, which increases to about 22m2
with the proposed one, which is about 4.6 and 14% of the RPA respectively. The
additional incursion is well away from the trunk at the edge of the RPA, where large roots
are less likely to be present. This tree has some evidence of die back, but the lower
growth is reasonably healthy and root growth in other directions is not as constrained as
with the others on the eastern side of the garden, so that is well within what it would
tolerate. Ground in the working space round the new house would need to be protected,
but there would be no direct disturbance of roots there. The applicant hasn't provided any
significant detail as to tree protection measures during building work, therefore, conditions
relating to this and landscaping will be required by pre-commencment condition.

The proposed scheme would not result in the loss or unacceptable harm to the protected
trees at the site, therefore, the proposed development is considered to comply with Policy
BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

7.15 Sustainable waste management

Policy 5.6 of the London Plan requires development to have regard to and contribute to a
reduction in waste produced. The applicant has shown the location of a bin store adjacent
the side boundary line shared with No.4 Linksway. This location would allow for the bins to
be presented to adjacent the highway on bin collection days and would have an
acceptable impact on the visual amenities of the streetscene, given that they would be
screened by the proposed boundary treatment.

7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

Policy 5.3 of the London Plan requires the highest standards of sustainable design and
construction in all developments to improve the environmental performance of new
developments and to adapt to the effects of climate change over their lifetime.

The applicant has provided only very basic details of the sustainable measures or

renewable energy sources being proposed for the building with some reference water

conservation measures within the building. Whilst this level of information is not adequate

to determine the carbon dioxide reduction, a suitable condition requiring the building to be

design to Code for Sustainable Homes Level 4 would ensure that the proposed

development would comply with Policies 5.1, 5.2 & 5.3 of the London Plan (July 2011).
7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

The application site is not within a Flood Risk Area or a Critical Drainage Area. The

applicant has provided some basic details in the design and access statement as to water

conservation measures and the plans appear to show porous paving being used for the

driveway. However, a SUDS condition will be added to any approval to reduce any

potential for an increase in surface water flooding caused by the proposed development.
7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this application.
7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 45



The comments made are noted and are considered within the main report.
7.20 Planning Obligations

The proposed development would exceed 100sg.m and therefore there would be a
requirement to make a CIL contribution, which has been acknowledged by the applicant
for a sum of £8,257.80.

The proposed development would provide a net total of 5 habitable rooms which would
not trigger the requirement for Educational Contributions in accordance with Policy R17 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
7.22 Other Issues

The neighbouring residents have expressed concern that the land shown in the site forms
part of the public highway and is not in the applicant's ownership. This has been reviewed
by the Council's highways department and Planning Officers, who are satisified that the
land shown within the red line of the site is in the ownership of the applicant and not the
Council.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
None received.

10. CONCLUSION

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 46



The amended design of the proposed scheme is considered to have an acceptable impact
on the character and appearance of the Copse Wood Estate Area of Special Local
Character. Sufficient details have been provided to show that the scheme would ensure
the protection of the protected trees within the site and also the protection of the
residential amenity of the neighboring occupiers.

It is considered that overall the scheme is in compliance with the Policies of the Hillingdon
Local Plan:; Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), HDAS Residential Layouts and the London
Plan (2011). The application is therefore recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
HDAS: Residential Layouts

The London Plan 2011

The Mayor's London Housing Supplementary Planning Document
HDAS: Accessible Hillingdon

National Planning Policy Framework

Contact Officer: Alex Smith Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 47



I
babessg |/
’

Craigwood
Shelavin

Timbers

0

Linksway

L]

’ . o e ’
S e e . .
. 4 d s
_- . ’ e . )
- - % S S,
- - ., . ’
- - 7 . v /
. / L 2, |
- ", . S,
. . . .
. . . . .
. . ’ e [ .
, AR ‘. .
. . 2, . .
7 .
. . . .
! ’ ’ Ve s .
! | . e s .
i P e s .
. 0 e L
’ [ e .
’ /’/ ‘s -
-~ Ao 2, L >
~ ~- P [ -
-—-—. ~—_ s L
-— - . L7
—_ . ,
R p R
~—— X //' El Sub Sta e
BN (! .
7 v 4
i ’
.
, 4 [ s
. \ .
. v
. .
2, . 1 ,
v .
. . \
\
. < VoL .
. AT \ .
.
AR v
v .
S, .
. S -
AR " \
. < T~
. -0 v
e ’ \ \
. \ \
. . \ \
, v v
. . \
v
.
. . \
. v
v
i \
’ ’ \
. . \
v
. v —/
\ \
v
v

|
N Vi L
A a .
vt [l
I oy 1 \ .
b " - o LA e P
b | [ [N .
N I o ! ’
! "y S CE .
h " it .
, T
,
' e ,
| ,
! S _-]
r/ _————
r 1 - ’
| ,

ed Stacks

[

Notes Site Address

Site boundary

2 Linksway
Northwood

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

Scale

1:1,250

Planning Application Ref:
36910/APP/2013/2338

Date
March 2014

Planning Committee

North Application

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey
100019283

HILLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda ltem 9

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 28 & 28A KINGSEND RUISLIP

Development: Variation of condition 27 of Planning Permission Ref: 5740/APP/2008/1214
(Erection of a three storey building to contain 7, two-bedroom and 1, one-
bedroom flats, together with associated parking and amenity space
(Amendment to previous approval ref. 5740/APP/2007/1043 to allow for an
additional flat at second floor level) to allow revised landscape scheme
including a resiting of bin store to front and hardstanding treatment (Part
Retrospective Application).

LBH Ref Nos: 5740/APP/2013/3520

Drawing Nos: Agent's covering email dated 14/1/14
07/3127/50 Rev. K
07/3127/51 Rev. A
Un-numbered Existing Ground Floor Plan
Un-numbered Existing First Floor Plan
Design and Access Statement
07/3094/8
07/3094/10 (In part superseded by 07/3127/51 Rev. A)
07/3094/11 (In part superseded by 07/3127/51 Rev. A)
E-mail received 6/6/08
Location Plan
07/3094/9 Rev. B
E-mail received 13/6/08
Tree Protection Details
Energy Demand Statement

Date Plans Received:  27/11/2013 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 28/04/2008

Date Application Valid: 29/11/2013 14/01/2014
07/06/2008
06/06/2008
09/06/2008
12/04/2011
11/05/2007
13/06/2008

1. SUMMARY

This application seeks to vary condition 27 (Approved Plans) of planning permission
dated 24 July 2008 (App. No. 5740/APP/2008/1214 refers) to allow revision of the front
garden planting scheme. The main change involves the re-siting of the bin store from the
side of the building adjoining the shared driveway with No. 28b Kingsend to the front of
the site and the replacement of permeable block paviours on the driveway with tarmac
spray and pea shingle topping.

The bin store would be screened with fencing and planting. The Council's Urban
Design/Conservation Officer advises that although not ideal, no objection could be
sustained to the revised plans which now include doors being provided to the front of the
bin store, subject to adequate landscaping. The Council's Tree and Landscape Officer
advises that the planting is adequate and would provide an effective screen to the store.

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 49



Crucially the scheme now includes a 'feature tree' which was a request of the committee
(to replace a dead oak tree on the site frontage) when approving an earlier application on
the site.

No objections are raised to the siting of the store by the Highway Engineer or the
Council's Waste Services.

Furthermore, the Council's Urban Design/Conservation Officer considers that the use of
tarmac spray, topped with pea shingle provides an attractive surface and the Water and
Flood Management Officer raises no objections to the material, although advises that a
drain should be installed acroos the driveway at the front of the site to prevent any
surface water running onto the public highway. This has been conditioned.

As the application has now been appealed for non-determination, it is recommended that
the Planning Inspectorate be advised that had the application still been within the Local
Planning Authority's jurisdiction to determine, it would have been approved, subject to
condition.

2. RECOMMENDATION

That the Planning Inspectorate be informed that had an appeal for non-
determination not of been lodged, the application would have been approved,
subject to the following conditions:-

1 RES3 Time Limit

The bin store and landscaping scheme hereby permitted shall be implemented within
three months from the date of this permission and shall thereafter be permanently
retained to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that adequate facilities are provided and that the character and appearance of
the Conservation Area and visual amenities of the street scene are safeguarded, in
accordance with policies AM7, BE4, BE13 and BE38 of the The lounge, kitchen and w.c.
windows facing west and towards 26B Kingsend shall be glazed with obscured glass and
non-opening below a height of 1.8 metres taken from internal finished floor level for so
long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

2 RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 07/3094/8,
07/3094/9 Rev. B, 07/3094/10, 07/3094/11 and 07/3127/50 Rev. K and shall thereafter
be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (July 2011).

3 RES13 Obscure Glazing

The lounge, kitchen and w.c. windows facing west and towards 26B Kingsend shall be
glazed with obscured glass and non-opening below a height of 1.8 metres taken from

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 50



internal finished floor level for so long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

4 RES22 Parking Allocation

Within 2 months of this permission, a parking allocation scheme shall be submitted to,
and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the parking shall
remain allocated for the use of the units in accordance with the approved scheme and
remain under this allocation for the life of the development.

REASON

To ensure that an appropriate level of car parking provision is provided on site in
accordance with Policy AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan (July 2011).

5 RES10 Tree to be retained

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the
Local Planning Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely
damaged during construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree,
hedge or shrub shall be planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would
leave the new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in
a position to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a
size and species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be
planted in the first planting season following the completion of the development or the
occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a
schedule of remedial works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree
surgery, feeding or groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority. New planting should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1,
Specification for Trees and Shrubs'

Remedial work should be carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 'Tree work -
Recommendations’ and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape
Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first
planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to comply with Section 197 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

6 RES23 Visibility Splays - Pedestrian

The access for the proposed car parking shall be provided with those parts of 2.4m x
2.4m pedestrian visibility splays which can be accommodated within the site in both
directions and shall be maintained free of all obstacles to the visibility between heights of
0.6m and 2.0m above the level of the adjoining highway.

REASON
In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety in accordance with Policy AM7 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 51



7 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Within 2 months of the date of this permission, details of a drainage scheme that
prevents surface water draining onto the public highway shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be implemnented
within 2 months of being approved and shall thereafter be permanently retained.

REASON:

To limit surface water runoff in order to ensure the development does not cause a
surface water flooding in accordance with Policy OE7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

NPPF1

NPPF4

NPPF6

NPPF7

NPPF10

LPP 3.4 (2011) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2011) Quality and design of housing developments
LPP 3.8 (2011) Housing Choice

LPP 3.14 (2011) Existing Housing - Efficient use of stock
LPP 5.2 (2011) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 5.7 (2011) Renewable energy

LPP 5.12 (2011) Flood risk management

LPP 5.13 (2011) Sustainable drainage

LPP 5.14 (2011) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure
LPP 5.15 (2011) Water use and supplies

LPP 6.3 (2011) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity
LPP 6.9 (2011) Cycling

LPP 6.13 (2011) Parking

LPP 7.2 (2011) An inclusive environment

LPP 7.3 (2011) Designing out crime

LPP 7.4 (2011) Local character

LPP 7.6 (2011) Architecture

LPP 7.21 (2011) Trees and woodland

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 52



BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

OES8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

H3 Loss and replacement of residential accommodation

H4 Mix of housing units

R17 Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of
recreation, leisure and community facilities

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking
facilities

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010

SPD-PO Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document, adopted
July 2008

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site forms a 0.1 hectare roughly rectangular plot located on the northern
side of Kingsend, some 40m to the west of its junction with Sovereign Close. To the east
of the site lies Nos. 26 and 26B Kingsend. The site and its western side comprises a
shared access which also serves No. 28B Kingsend located at the rear of the site.

The development site is located in the Ruislip Village Conservation Area as set out in the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

This application seeks to vary condition 27 of planning permission ref:
5740/APP/2008/1214 to allow revise the landscaping scheme at the front of the site. The
main change involves resiting the bin store from the side of the flatted block adjoining the
shared access drive to the front corner of the site adjoining No. 26B Kingsend. The bin

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 53



store would be 3.46m wide by 1.35m deep, and sited adjacent to the side boundary with
NO. 26B, set back 3.0m from the front boundary and be comprised of 1.5m high close
boarded fencing with 300mm of trellis above. It would accommodate 2 x 1,100 litre
capacity wheelie bins. Revised plans have been received which show two sets of double
doors of a similar design added to the front to fully enclose the bin store. There would be
a small area of hardstanding in front of the bin store with access provided from the car
parking area between parking spaces 4 and 5. Planting is shown along the side
boundaries and along the front boundary of the site, including a Silver Birch tree in a
similar position adjacent to the bin store as previously agreed and notes added to the plan
stating that the existing hedge would be completed along the front boundary and
additional screening would be provided along the side boundary at the rear of the bin
store.

The plans also show that instead of permeable block pavers being used on all of the
shared drive/manoeuvring space and parking spaces, the former would now be finished
with spray tarmac, topped with natural coloured pea shingle. This element of the revised
landscape plan has been implemented and is therefore retrospective.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History

5740/APP/2007/1043 - Outline planning permission was granted on 15 January 2008 at
appeal for the erection of a three storey building containing 7 x two-bedroom flats,
together with associated access and parking.

5740/APP/2008/1214 - Full planning permission granted on 20 August 2008 for the
erection of a three storey building containing 7 x two-bedroom and 1 x one-bedroom flats,
together with associated parking and amenity Space (amendment to previous approval
ref. 5740/APP/2007/1043 to allow an additional flat to be provided at second floor level).

5740/APP/2011/882 - Application for approved reserved matter (landscaping) following
outline approval ref. 5740/APP/2008/1214 was approved on 26 August 2011.

5740/APP/2011/908 - Details in compliance with conditions 3 (bin and cycle storage), 4
(materials), 7 (boundary treatment), 9 (site survey), 11 (tree protection), 12 (landscape
scheme), 14 (landscape maintenance), 16 (education facilities), 20 (renewable energy),
21 (energy efficiency report), 22 (SUDS), 24 (demolition and construction management
plan), 25 (recessed windows) and 26 (parking) of planning permission ref
5740/APP/2008/1214 were approved on 26 August 2011.

As a result of the built scheme departing from the approved drawings the site has been
subject to enforcement action and associated on-going court proceedings.

The North Planning Committee agreed to serve an Enforcement Notice and a Breach of
Condition Notice.

The Breach of Condition Notice (Ref: 3E/04/NC) was served on 25 May 2012 with
compliance by 29 June 2012.

The Breach of Condition Notice required the following steps to be taken:

(i) Reduce the height of the roof along the eastern side of the building so that the height
accords with the approved planning permission reference 5740/APP/2008/1214 drawing
number 07/3094/10 Rev C.

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 54



(i) Remove from the land of all debris, building material, plant and machinery resulting
from compliance with requirement (i)

The reasons for the issue of the notice are the built scheme should be carried out in strict
accordance with the approved plans, unless consent to any variation is first obtained from
the local planning authority, to ensure that the external appearance of the development
hereby complies with Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007).

An Enforcement Notice (Ref: 03/04/NC) has also been served on other aspects of the
development and required the following steps to be taken:

1) Remove the unauthorised tarmacadam covering the access/manoeuvring and parking
area (between the building and the street) and install hard surfacing materials in
accordance with the approved planning permission reference 5740/APP/2011/908
drawing number 07/3127/50 Rev E, specifically installing permeable block pavers (colour
Brindle).

2) Remove the unauthorised paving and concrete slab covering the south eastern corner
of the property (between parking spaces 4 and 5, as shown on drawing number
07/3127/50 Rev E approved in permission reference 5740/APP/2011/908), and install
landscaping in accordance with the approved planning permission reference
5740/APP/2011/908 drawing number 07/3127/50 Rev E.

The black tarmac was previously considered very intrusive within the street scene and
detracted from the character and appearance of the conservation area. The tarmacadam
was also considered to detract from the landscape setting of the new building.

The previously approved landscape details showed the south eastern corner of the site
landscaped with a tree, grass and planting. Instead hard paving and a concrete slab have
been laid down in this area. The approved landscaping was necessary to soften the
appearance of the parking areas and views of the new building. The loss of the
landscaping with a replacement of a concrete slab in such a prominent location was
considered to be a very intrusive within the streetscene and detracted from the character
and appearance of the conservation area. The as built development was not considered
to preserve or enhance the appearance of the site or street scene (i.e. features which
contribute to their special architectural and visual qualities of the Conservation Area).

The Enforcement Notice was served on 25 May 2012 with compliance by 29 June 2012

5740/APP/2013/411 - This retrospective planning application to vary condition 27
(development in accordance with approved plans) to planning permission Ref;
5740/APP/2008/1214 (Erection of a three storey building to contain 7, two-bedroom and 1,
one-bedroom flats, together with associated parking and amenity space) to seek retention
of the existimng roof profile which is a departure from the approved roof profile was
allowed at appeal on 21 October 2013.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 55



The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1
PT1.EM1
PT1.EM6
PT1.EM8
PT1.CI1
PT1.30

PT1.39

(2012) Built Environment

(2012) Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation
(2012) Flood Risk Management

(2012) Land, Water, Air and Noise

(2012) Community Infrastructure Provision

To promote and improve opportunities for everyone in Hillingdon, including in
particular women, elderly people, people with disabilities and ethnic minorities.

To seek where appropriate planning obligations to achieve benefits to the
community related to the scale and type of development proposed.

Part 2 Policies:

NPPF1
NPPF4
NPPF6
NPPF7
NPPF10
LPP 3.4
LPP 3.5
LPP 3.8
LPP 3.14
LPP 5.2
LPP 5.3
LPP 5.7
LPP 5.12
LPP 5.13
LPP 5.14
LPP 5.15
LPP 6.3
LPP 6.9
LPP 6.13
LPP 7.2
LPP 7.3
LPP 7.4
LPP 7.6
LPP 7.21
BE4

(2011
(2011
(2011
(2011
(2011
(2011
(2011
(2011
(2011
(2011
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

Optimising housing potential

Quality and design of housing developments
Housing Choice

Existing Housing - Efficient use of stock
Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions
Sustainable design and construction
Renewable energy

Flood risk management

Sustainable drainage

Water quality and wastewater infrastructure
2011
2011
2011
2011
2011
2011
2011
2011
2011) Trees and woodland

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

Water use and supplies

Assessing effects of development on transport capacity
Cycling

Parking

An inclusive environment

Designing out crime

Local character

N~ N S S S e S S S e S S S S SN S

Architecture

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 56



BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OE8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

H3 Loss and replacement of residential accommodation

H4 Mix of housing units

R17 Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and
community facilities

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway

improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking facilities
AM14 New development and car parking standards.

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

SPD-PO Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2008
5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1  Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable

5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

57 neighbouring properties have been consulted on this application. A petition objecting to the
application and 4 individual responses from neighbours have been received.

The petition, with 20 signatories states:-

'The Council agreed the position of the bin store at the side of the building when granting planning
permission in 2008, after listening to residents' views about the development of new flats in
Kingsend.

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 57



The developer knew the conditions when taking on the development and should not be able to
come back to change the plan.'

The individual responses raise the following concerns:-
In objection:-

(i) The bin storage should remain where it was originally approved at the side of the block of flats
alongside the drive into No. 28b, away from public view. Having bins at the front is unsightly and
not characteristic of Kingsend,

(i) The bin store has not been built and wheelie bins are in the car park, in contravention of
Condition 6,

(iii) The building should never have been built to this size. There are 8 flats and only 8 parking
spaces, with no provision for guest parking. The original bin store was down the joint vehicle alley
way but the overbuild prevents room for a bin store. The only place to build a bin store is the rear
garden which will allow for an additional parking space to be provided,

(iv) 1t would be nice if the owners could complete other outstanding works, ie driveway, hedging
and trees,

(v) A semi-mature tree of diameter 16 - 18cm was approved at the front right hand corner of the
property whereas a tree of 5cm diameter has been planted in contravention of the plan agreed in
August 2011. The Silver Birch that has been planted at the front is impractical due to its potential
size,

(vi) Repeat arguments previously made that as a professional developer, the applicant should take
on the plans and inspect them before construction commences. It cannot be right that a plan
approved in 2008 in order to reduce the effect of the binstore on the street scene and then in 2013
to make an application to allow it to be changed because the developer never wanted to build it at
the side of the block of flats. This is just a way to get round the planning rules by submitting
dubious plans delivering a fait accompli,

(vii) Although we live at 34A Kingsend, and have corresponded with the Council on all the 8
previous applications, we were not consulted on this application. This has occurred on a number of
previous occasions on this and other sites and just adds to the Council's problems when the period
for consultation has to be extended and the applicant can then appeal for non-determination. This
needs to improve.

In general support:-

(viii) This has been ongoing since the property was built and more should have been done to
ensure the developer put the bin store in place before residents moved in. Without a proper place
for the bins, it has caused no end of grief for the residents and those in the property behind. Bins
will finally have a proper place where they will not be seen and there is no chance of them rolling
around,

Ruislip Residents' Association: No response.

Internal Consultees
CONSERVATION/URBAN DESIGN OFFICER:

Initial comments:

This site lies in the Ruislip Village CA, the front gardens of the properties on Kingsend are very
important and these make a positive contribution to the character and appearance of the area.
Placing a open fronted bin store in such a sensitive location would therefore be far from ideal and
other options for the siting of this structure should be considered ie placing further back into the
site. If all else fails, then the bin store should have doors and be fully screened from the road by

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 58



planting, this should include the retention of the existing bushes and the addition of appropriate
new planting to create a much denser and wider area of screening.

Revised comments:

Although not ideal, at least doors can now be closed on the paladins etc. We will need to ensure
that any planting on the frontage does the job re screening.

No objections to the tarmac spray and pea shingle topping on the drive which could be attractive.
TREE/LANDSCAPE OFFICER:

| refer to Macleod's amended drawing No. 07/3127/50 Rev K (minor amendments to the bin store)
and confirm that the planting to the roadside of the bin store should provide a satisfactory screen.

The existing boundary hedge is to be gapped up - where there was previously a footpath link.
Between the fence and the store an additional 12No. plants will be installed, a mix of Holly,
Pyracantha and Berberis stenophylla. This is a mix of hardy, prickly shrubs with ornamental value
and good for wildlife. If properly planted and maintained, they will form a dense evergreen mass
which can be maintained at a suitable height to screen the bin store.

No objection.
HIGHWAY ENGINEER:

As the proposals include 8 car parking spaces as previously approved, there is no objection from a
highways point of view.

FLOOD AND WATER MANAGEMENT OFFICER:

No objection. The scheme is acceptable subject to the provision of a drain across the drive at the
front. This could be secured by an appropriate condition.

WASTE SERVICES:

No objection.
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The principle of the residential scheme including the number of residential units within the
scheme built on site has already been established with the approved scheme for the site.

The only planning issues for consideration with this application in respect of the departure
from the approved scheme are limited to the consideration of the impacts of the new
landscape plan, which mainly involves the re-siting of the bin store and use of tarmac
spray and pea shingle on the driveway on the the visual amenity of the street scene and
impact upon the character and appearance of the Ruislip Village Conservation Area, the
implications for residential amenity, highway safety and flooding.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

The number of residential units and bedspaces on this site has already been established.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Policy BE4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
requires that new development within conservation areas preserves or enhances those

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 59



7.04

7.05

7.06

7.07

7.08

7.09

710

7.1

feature which contribute to their special architectural and/or visual qualities. Policy BE13
requires development to harmonise with the existing street scene.

The bin store would be sited on the south eastern corner of the site, adjacent to the side
boundary with No. 26B and set back approximately 3.0m from the front boundary.
Although bin stores within front gardens are not particularly characteristic within Kingsend,
the store being some 1.5m high with 300mm of trellis above would not be unduly
conspicuous within the street scene. Furthermore, planting to a depth of 3m would be
provided along and front boundary, including the provision of a Silver Birch tree (which
appears to have already been planted) and the existing hedging at the side of the site
would be supplemented. The Council's Tree/Landscape Officer advises that the
landscaping, if properly planted and maintained, will form a dense evergreen screen which
can be maintained at a suitable height to screen the bin store. Furthermore, although the
revised landscaping in this south eastern corner would be slightly less in extent than the
area of landscaping previously approved, it will provide an enhanced level of tree planting
compared to the previously approved scheme that will effectively screen the car parking
and assist with softening the views of the new building.

The tarmac spray with natural coloured pea shingle topping on the driveway and
manouvring area is also viewed as an improvement over the tarmacadam and by retaining
the permeable block pavers in the parking spaces, will assist with breaking up the visual
impact of the hardstanding. The Council's Conservation/Urban Design Officer raises no
further objections to the revised landscape plan.

Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
Environmental Impact

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

See Section 7.03.
Impact on neighbours

The proposed bin store would be sited some 19m from the front elevation of the adjoining
property at No. 26B Kingsend. This distance would ensure that the store would not have
any detrimental impacts upon their amenities by reason of overshadowing or dominance,
particularly as there is an existing hedge along this side boundary.

Living conditions for future occupiers

The bin store would be sited some 13m from the flatted block so that it would be sited
within a convenient distance for residents use.
Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The revision of the landscaping scheme retains the same general car layout for 8 vehicles
and cycle provision at the side of the block as that of the previously approved scheme.
The revised bin store provision would be located close to the entrance to the site. Both the
Council's Highway Engineer and the Waste Services Manager raise no objections to the
revised refuse store and associated collection arrangements.

Urban design, access and security

Urban Design: This is considered in Section 7.03 above.

Access: The only new access issue relates to access to the new bin store which is
considered in Section 7.10 above.

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 60



712

713

7.14

715

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Disabled access

Not applicable to this application.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

This is dealt with in Section 7.03 above.
Sustainable waste management

The proposed bin store would make adequate provision for refuse and waste storage on
site.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

The permeable block pavers which were to cover all the drive/manoevring area and
parking spaces have been replaced by spray tarmac topped with natural coloured pea
shingle. The Council's Flood and Water Management Officer has considered the
proposals and raises no objection subject to a condition requiring the provision of a drain
along the site frontage.

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Comments on Public Consultations

As regards the issue raised by the petitioners and in point (vi), specific provision has been
made within the Planning Acts to allow approved schemes and plans to be amended.
Local Planning Authorities have a duty to consider any revised plans on their planning
merits. As regards point (i), there are practical difficulties to providing the bin storage at
the side of the building and the impact of providing a bin store on the conservation area
and street scene are considered in the report. As regards points (ii) and (iv), a condition is
recommended to ensure that the revised landscape plan is implemented within the
specified time frame. As regards point (iii) the building and parking provision has already
been established and it would be impractical to site the bin store in the rear garden. As
regards point (v), no objections are raised to the species of tree, given its siting and it is
likely to soon become established. Points (vi), (vii) and (viii) are noted.

Planning Obligations

Not applicable to this application.
Expediency of enforcement action

There are no outstanding enforcement issues on this site.
Other Issues

There are no other relevant planning issues raised by this application.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and
use of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 61



the application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and
also the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related
to the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure
Levy 2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality
of opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

The revised landscape scheme, involving the resiting of the bin store is acceptable. The
location of the bin store would be convenient for residents and collection vehicles and the
existing and proposed landscaping would provide effective screening to the bin store, car
parking area and also help soften views of the building.

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 62



Furthermore, the tarmac spray with pea shingle topping provides an attractive, more
traditional setting for the building that is appropriate within the conservation area and
represents a significant improvement upon the tarmacadam of the as built development.

The application is recommended accordingly.

11. Reference Documents

NPPF (March 2012)

The London Plan (July 2011)
Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012)
Planning History

Consultation Responses

Contact Officer: Richard Phillips Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 63



’mr{\-’—\l

[P

Ruislip
Methodist

Church

;

v i

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database

rights 2013 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

28 & 28A Kingsend
Ruislip

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

North Application

Planning Application Ref: Scale
5740/APP/2013/3520 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date

March 2014

LONDON




Agenda ltem 10

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address LAND ADJACENT TO WIDEWATER LOCK (BARN FARM) MOORHALL
ROAD HAREFIELD

Development: Change of use of land to a residential caravan site for one Gypsy family,
involving the siting of one static and one touring caravan, with associated
parking for two vehicles, water treatment plant, hardstanding and
landscaping works (Part retrospective application).

LBH Ref Nos: 69682/APP/2014/32

Drawing Nos: 1:1250 Location Plan
BLP-01
Design and Access Statement

Date Plans Received:  06/01/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 06/01/2014
1. SUMMARY

This application seeks part retrospective permission to change the use of the site from a
paddock to a residential caravan site for one Gypsy family with the siting of one static
and one touring caravan, parking for two vehicles with associated hardstanding,
landscaping and water treatment plant. The change of use has been implemented, with a
wooden outbuilding having been sited/erected and a touring caravan sited along the
western boundary of the site. The application site has been separated from the rest of
the field in which it is located by the erection of post and rail fencing and close boarded
fencing has also been erected along the southern (Moorhall Road) and eastern
boundaries of the field.

The site forms part of the Green Belt. The development represents inappropriate
development and no compelling reasons have been put forward or are evident to suggest
that 'very special circumstances' exist to outweigh Green Belt policy.

The use and associated structures are also detrimental to the character and appearance
of the adjoining Widewater Lock Conservation Area.

Furthermore, the site lies within Flood Zone 2 where the siting of caravans, mobile
homes and park homes intended for permanent residential use represents a highly
vulnerable use. A Flood Risk Assessment as required by the NPPF has not been
submitted with the application and the development does not meet the Sequential and
Exceptions Tests. The Environment Agency and the Council's Flood and Water
Management Officer therefore raise objection to the development. The Environment
Agency have also lodged an objection on the grounds of the inclusion of a water
treatment plant within this sensitive area forming part of a Source Protection Zone
(SP2)1.

The application is recommended for refusal.
2, RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 65



1 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The residential use and associated development represents inappropriate development
within the Green Belt in terms of the guidance contained in the National Planning Policy
Framework which is harmful by definition to its open character and appearance.
Furthermore, there are no very special circumstances provided or which are evident
which either singularly or cumulatively justify the permanent retention of the residential
use which would overcome the presumption against inappropriate development in the
Green Belt. The development is therefore harmful to the Green Belt and the landscape of
the Countryside Conservation Area, contrary to the National Planning Policy Framework
(including the accompanying Government Guidance 'Planning Policy for Traveller sites'),
Policy 7.16 of the London Plan (July 2011), Policy EM2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
One - Strategic Policies (November 2012) and Policies OL1 and OL4 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

2 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The introduction of a residential use to the site and the siting of caravans and associated
landscaping works, including an extensive area of hardstanding, together with the
paraphernalia associated with a residential use would be detrimental to the character and
appearance of the adjoining Widewater Lock Conservation Area, contrary to the NPPF
(March 2012), Policy 7.8 of the London Plan (March 2012) and Policy BE4 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

3 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The application site is located within Flood Zone 2 and the proposal involves a highly
vulnerable use. No Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) has been submitted and the location of
a vulnerable use with occupants in an area at risk of flooding and potentially increases
the risks of flooding elsewhere is contrary to the NPPF and its Technical Guidance,
March 2012, Policy 5.12 of the London Plan (July 2011), Policy EM1 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012) and Policy OE7 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

4 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The application site is close to a groundwater abstraction for public water supply and lies
in a Source Protection Zone (SPZ)1. An additional discharge to ground from a non-mains
drainage system in this area could cause pollution of the public water supply abstraction
and with groundwater being very shallow in this area, a discharge to ground could be
ineffective, causing the treatment system to back up. In the absense of a full and detailed
drainage assessment, the risks of pollution to ground and surface waters arising from the
development can not be assessed. The development is therefore contrary to the NPPF,
Policy 5.14 of the London Plan (July 2011) and Policy EM1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all
relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies,
including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the
Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First
Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 66



The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

NPPF6
NPPF9
NPPF10
NPPF11
LPP 3.1
LPP 3.8
LPP 5.2
LPP 5.3
LPP 5.12
LPP 5.13
LPP 5.14
LPP 5.15
LPP 6.3
LPP 6.13
LPP 7.2
LPP 7.4
LPP 7.8
LPP 7.16
LPP 7.19
LPP 7.30
OoL1

OoL4
EC1

EC3

BE4

BE20
BE21
BE23
BE24

BE32

BE38

OE1

OE7

AM7
AM14
HDAS-LAY

LDF-AH

(2011) Ensuring equal life chances for all
(2011) Housing Choice

(2011) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions
(2011) Sustainable design and construction
(2011) Flood risk management
(2011) Sustainable drainage
(2011) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure

(2011) Water use and supplies

(2011) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity
(2011) Parking

(2011) An inclusive environment

(2011) Local character

(2011) Heritage assets and archaeology

(2011) Green Belt

(2011) Biodiversity and access to nature

(2011) London's canals and other rivers and waterspaces

Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new
development

Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings

Protection of sites of special scientific interest, nature conservation
importance and nature reserves Replaced by PT1.EM7 (2012)
Potential effects of development on sites of nature conservation
importance

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas
Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

Development proposals adjacent to or affecting the Grand Union
Canal

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood
protection measures

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

New development and car parking standards.

Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 67



Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010

3

The Applicant is advised that part of the application site falls within land that may
potentially be required to construct and/or operate Phase One of a high speed rail line
between London and the West Midlands, known as High Speed Two (HS2). Powers to
construct and operate HS2 are to be sought by the promotion of a hybrid Bill deposited in
Parliament on 25th November 2013. As a result the

application site, or part of it, may be compulsorily purchased. More information can be
found at

www.hs2.org.uk.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The 0.08 hectare application site forms the north eastern corner of a field located within
the River Colne valley on the western edge of the borough and is set back 35m from the
northern side of Moorhall Road, some 90m to the west of Widewater Lock on the Grand
Union Canal. The R. Colne lies some 1km to the west which in this vicinity forms the
borough boundary. An access road runs along the eastern boundary of the field and a
drain runs along the northern boundary, beyond which is a lake and aggregates works.
The access road serves a number of commercial enterprises and residential properties to
the north, including the aggregates works. On the opposite side of the access road is
Lock Cottage and Widewater Lock, beyond which is an office development. On the
opposite side of Moorhall Road is the Horse and Barge PH.

The site appears to be already in use for residential purposes. A wooden outbuilding has
been erected on a concrete slab within the centre of the site, adjacent to a stable building
and a mobile caravan is sited to the rear of the site, adjacent to the western boundary and
the site has been separated from the rest of the field by post and rail fencing. New close
boarded fencing has been erected along the access road and Moorhall Road boundaries
of the field with a gate installed at the northern end of access road boundary to provide
vehicular access into the site. A sign reading 'Barn Farm' has been displayed on the gate
and coaching lamps and a letterbox have been installed at the entrance. At the time of the
officer's site visit, a car and 2 lorries were parked on site.

The character of the area is pre-dominantly rural, with the site mainly surrounded by lakes
and woodland. The site forms part of the Metropolitan Green Belt and the Colne Valley
Regional Park with the Widewater Lock Conservation Area immediately adjoining the site
on the eastern side of the access road and on the northern side of Moorhall Road. The
site is identified as being within Flood Zones 2 and 3b and the site is also located within a
safeguarding area for High Speed Two (HS2). The lakes and associated woodland
immediately to the north and east of the site form a Site of Special Scientific Interest
(SSSI) and a Nature Conservation Site of Metropolitan or Borough Grade 1 Importance.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The red lined site relates to a roughly rectangular, 0.08 hectare site which forms the north
eastern corner of the field, with the eastern portion of the field marked in blue. The
development is for a change of use of the land to a residential caravan site for one Gypsy
family, involving the siting of one static and one mobile caravan, with associated parking
for two vehicles, water treatment plant, hardstanding and landscaping works. The static

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 68



caravan would be sited centrally on the site, with the mobile caravan sited towards the
rear, adjacent to the western boundary. Two car parking spaces are shown located
between the static caravan and the northern boundary, with the water treatment behind.
The site would be hardsurfaced, including a 6m wide strip along the whole of the eastern
boundary of the field, adjacent to the access road which would be outside of the red line
boundary of the application site. The area within the blue line is shown as 'grazing'.

The scheme is part retrospective as the site is in residential use with a single storey
wooden building having been erected on site, a touring caravan sited to the rear with
some fencing and planting having been undertaken.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History
There is no relevant planning history on this site.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.30 To promote and improve opportunities for everyone in Hillingdon, including in
particular women, elderly people, people with disabilities and ethnic minorities.

PT1.H3 (2012) Gypsy and Traveller Pitch Provision
PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

PT1.EM1 (2012) Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation
PT1.EM2 (2012) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains
PT1.EM3 (2012) Blue Ribbon Network

PT1.EM6 (2012) Flood Risk Management

PT1.EM7 (2012) Biodiversity and Geological Conservation
PT1.EM8 (2012) Land, Water, Air and Noise

Part 2 Policies:

NPPF6

NPPF9

NPPF10

NPPF11

LPP 3.1 (2011) Ensuring equal life chances for all

LPP 3.8 (2011) Housing Choice

LPP 5.2 (2011) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions
LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 5.12 (2011) Flood risk management

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 69



LPP 5.13

2011) Sustainable drainage

(2011)

LPP 5.14 (2011) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure

LPP 5.15 (2011) Water use and supplies

LPP 6.3 (2011) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity

LPP 6.13 (2011) Parking

LPP 7.2 (2011) An inclusive environment

LPP 7.4 (2011) Local character

LPP 7.8 (2011) Heritage assets and archaeology

LPP 7.16 (2011) Green Belt

LPP 7.19 (2011) Biodiversity and access to nature

LPP 7.30 (2011) London's canals and other rivers and waterspaces

OL1 Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new development

oL4 Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings

EC1 Protection of sites of special scientific interest, nature conservation importance
and nature reserves Replaced by PT1.EM7 (2012)

EC3 Potential effects of development on sites of nature conservation importance

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE32 Development proposals adjacent to or affecting the Grand Union Canal

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OE7 Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood protection
measures

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

HDAS-LAY  Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 12th February 2014
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable
6. Consultations

External Consultees

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 70



22 neighbouring properties have been consulted, the application has been advertised as affecting
the Widewater Conservation Area in the local press on 22/1/14 and a site notice has been
displayed on site.

17 responses (2 from same objector, making further comments) have been received, raising the
following concerns:

(i) The application is on green belt land and a residential building is inappropriate development in
this particularly sensitive area and no special circumstances have been put forward to outweigh
green belt policy, namely the NPPF (March 2012), particularly paragraphs 79, 87 and 89, the
Government's Planning Policy for Traveller Sites (March 2012), paragraghs 11, 22 and 23 and
Policy 14, Policy 7.16 of The London Plan (July 2011) and Policies OL1, OL2 and OL4 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007) and Policies EM2, H3 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012),

(i) The introduction of caravans and hardstanding for vehicles to provide two residential pitches
would erode the openness of what is currently an undeveloped field and encroach into the
countryside beyond the existing built form and conflicts with the purposes of including land in the
Green Belt,

(iii) Land has traditionally been used as a paddock. It was associated with the neighbouring Moor
House before the house was sold separateley in 2010. The previous owner retained the paddock to
graze ponies, keep geese and chickens until mid-2013. The paddock and wooden stable which is
still on site were then sold to the applicant,

(iv) Development has already taken place, at variance to the application, with a large wooden
building having been erected next to the stables and a 2m high fence erected along two boundaries
of the site with post and rail fencing erected within the site. A gate at the entrance from the private
road has been installed with exterior lights, a mail box and CCTV. A caravan on site and the
wooden outbuilding appear to already occupied since late 2013, changing status of a paddock to a
small holding. The paddock continues to be developed with industrial vehicles moving through the
site during the day,

(v) The large wooded chalet type building is very visible, particularly from Moorhall Road (contrary
to answer given to Q24 on application form) and neighbouring homes. The close boarded fencing
erected along Moorhall Road is detrimental to the open aspect of the site and blocks open views
across the site,

(vi) The external lighting which has been erected around the site and general glow from the
occupied part of the site during the night is very bright and intrusive to neighbouring properties,

(vii) Development overlooks our bathroom window, compromising our privacy,

(viii) Development detracts from views of the Conservation Area

(ix) Contrary to answer given at Q13 on application form, application site adjoins the Mid Colne
Valley Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) and a Nature Conservation Site of Metropolitan
Importance Grade 1. The area includes a number of protected species, including bats and owls and
overwintering birds use the lakes. A Habitat Survey has not been submitted to assess possible
damage to wildlife considerations, contrary to Policy EC3 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan (Saved Policies September 2007),

(x) Contrary to information given at Q15, the development is adjacent to trees and hedging along
the boundary with Harefield Moor Lake. The character of the landscape has already been adversely
affected by development that has taken place,

(xi) The close boarded fencing around the site (described at Q9 on the application form as
'existing') was erected by the applicant upon purchase of the site and is visually intrusive and the
leylandii planted around the exterior of the fence will only aggravate this effect,

(xii) The Laurel that has been planted is an invasive species and not native planting,

(xiii) Land is regularly flooded by heavy rains, the surrounding lakes and problems at the nearby
Affinity Water site. There is a concern about any development that would worsen the already poor
drainage on the site and aggragate local flooding,

(xiv) The site's proximity to Harleyford Aggregates, itself the subject of ongoing complaints about

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 71



noise, dust and traffic, makes it unsuitable for residential use,

(xv) No evidence that alternative gypsy sites have been considered, including the Colne Park which
is in a more sustainable location,

(xvi) The proposed site is not environmentally acceptable for residential occupation,

(xvii) The hard-standing area as shown on the plans is larger than that needed for the parking of
two cars indicating that site may also be used for some sort of business. The site is already
regularly useed for parking of vans, light industrial vehicles and other larger vehicles,

(xviii) Object to barking dogs at the property,

(xix) At night the lighting from these properties could disturb owls and bats, as well as local
residents,

(xx) The site, contrary to answer given at Q12 on application form, is very close to watercourses,
including Harefield Moor Lake. A ditch runs along the edge of the site and continues through the
garden of Moor House towards Lock Cottage where it joins another stream before discharging into
the Grand Union Canal. The siting of a water treatment plant close to these watercourses seems
particularly inappropriate, particularly as site in a flood risk area and a Groundwater Source
Protection Zone 1,

(xxi) The site is unfortunately on land safeguarded for HS2, being adjacent to one of the planned
construction sites,

(xxii) Some of the applicants answers on the application form are misleading but this may not be
deliberate,

(xxiii) As development has already taken place and continues, more blighting of this Green Belt
land may result in damage being irreversible,

(xxiv) Change of use of land from a grazing paddock adversely affects the setting of the Grade Il
Listed Lock Cottage,

(xxv) The grazing of horses from this site within the public park on Moorhall Road and the riding of
a trap has caused a public nuisance and safety issues which are likely to increase,

(xxvi) If planning permission is granted, more residential units will appear and size of site increase
without permission,

(xxvii) Unauthorised buildings should be removed,

(xxviii) Permission was refused on 26/1/01 for temporary parking for up to 25 static caravans on
land at Broadwater Farm, Moorhall Road, Harefield, close to the application site (App. No.
2382/APP/2000/2225 refers) on grounds that proposal failed to provide special circumstances to
outweigh inappropriate development and would harm openness of the Green Belt and visual
amenities of the area, and it would have detrimental impact on the Mid Colne Valley SSSI and
Grand Union Canal Area of Metropolitan Imporatance for Nature Conservation.

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY:
We object to the proposals as submitted on two grounds which are detailed below.

Obijection 1
In the absence of a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA), we object to this application and recommend
refusal of planning permission until a satisfactory FRA has been submitted.

Reasons

The application site lies within Flood Zone 2 defined by the Environment Agency Flood Map as
having a medium probability of flooding. Paragraph 103, footnote 20 of the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF) requires applicants for planning permission to submit an FRA when
development is proposed in such locations. Table 3 of the Technical Guide to the National Planning
Policy Framework (NPPF) states that an exceptions test is required for highly vulnerable
development proposed in Flood Zone 2.

An FRA is vital if the Local Planning Authority is to make informed planning decisions. In the
absence of an FRA, the flood risks resulting from the proposed development are unknown. The

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 72



absence of an FRA is therefore sufficient reason in itself for a refusal of planning permission.

Advice to Local Planning Authority

Our most recent modelling (2010) shows the site to be Flood Zone 2 and outside of the 1 in 100yr
plus allowance for climate change outline. The site must therefore pass the Sequential Test for the
development to be considered appropriate at this location. If the site does not pass the Sequential
Test then you should refuse this application on for this reason.

Hillingdon's Strategic Flood Risk Assessment shows that the site falls within Flood Zone 3b,
functional floodplain. The Technical Guidance to the National Planning Policy Framework states
that highly vulnerable development in Flood Zone 3b should not be permitted. If you consider the
site as Flood Zone 3b you may also wish to refuse this application on for this reason.

Objection 2

We object to the proposed development as submitted because it involves the use of a non-mains
foul drainage system but no assessment of the risks of pollution to ground and surface waters has
been provided by the applicant. We recommend that planning permission should be refused on this
basis.

Reasons

The site is very close to a groundwater abstraction for public water supply and groundwater is very
shallow in this area. The site also lies in a Source Protection Zone (SPZ)1. An additional discharge
to ground from a non-mains drainage system in this area could cause pollution of the public water
supply abstraction. Furthermore, a discharge to ground will be ineffective where groundwater is
shallow and may cause the treatment system to back up.

The application form indicates that foul drainage is to be discharged to a non-mains
drainage system. In these circumstances DETR Circular 03/99 advises that a full and
detailed consideration be given to the environmental criteria listed in Annex A of the
Circular in order to justify the use of non-mains drainage facilities. In this instance no
such information has been submitted. The planning application has not been duly made.

The application does not therefore, provide a sufficient basis for an assessment to be made of the
risks of pollution to ground and surface waters arising from the proposed development.

In particular, the submitted application fails to:

1. address the following issues as set out in Annex A of DETR Circular 03/99

2. justify the use of a discharge to ground over preferred alternative means of foul disposal, for
example mains foul sewage system, in accordance with the hierarchy set out in DETR Circular
03/99/WO Circular 10/99 and Building Regulations Approved Document H.

3. provide assessment of the risks to ground and surface waters and the adjacent Special Site of
Scientific Interest.

In accordance with Groundwater Protection: Principles and Practice
http://www.environmentagency.gov.uk/research/library/publications/144346.aspx we will maintain
our objection until we receive a satisfactory risk assessment that demonstrates that the risks posed
by this development can be satisfactorily managed.

The National Planning Policy Framework paragraph 109 states that the planning system should
contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by preventing both new and existing
development from contributing to or being put at unacceptable risk from, or being adversely
affected by unacceptable levels of water pollution.

CANAL AND RIVERS TRUST:

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 73



There will not be any direct impact on the canal environment, and therefore we have no objections.
HS2 LTD:

As you will be aware the Government has announced its intention to construct and operate Phase
One of a high speed railway, known as High Speed Two (HS2), between London and Birmingham;
and Phase Two between Birmingham Manchester and Leeds. As you will also be aware, on the 25
th November 2013 HS2 Ltd deposited the hybrid Bill in Parliament which confirms the government's
intention to proceed with a new high speed rail link between London and the West Midlands. Visit
our dedicated hybrid Bill section on our website for further details: http://www.hs2.org.uk/hs2-
phase-one-hybrid-bill.

On 9th July 2013, the Secretary of State for Transport announced that safeguarding directions had
been issued for the majority of Phase One of HS2. On 24th October 2013, these directions were
subsequently replaced with an updated set of directions which included two sections in Northolt
and Bromford which had previously not been published. Further details and maps are available on
our dedicated safeguarding page at: http://www.hs2.org.uk/safeguarding and with reference to
Volume 2,map no.17 you can see that the site lies within the limits of land subject to the
Safeguarding Direction and therefore may be required to construct and/or operate HS2.

As required by law and Parliamentary rules, the Government has also provided Parliament with a
detailed statement assessing the likely significant effects of the project on the environment - an
Environmental Statement (ES), see: https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/hs2-phaseone-
environmental-statement.

With reference to Volume 2 map book for Community Forum Area (CFA) 7 - Colne Valley and
specifically 'Construction Phase' drawing CT-05-020, you can see that access to the application site
is proposed from a road HS2 Ltd has identified as potentially being needed during construction. In
addition 'Proposed Scheme' drawing CT-06-020 shows the shows the creation of wetland habitat to
the north of the site.

However, HS2 Ltd is satisfied that the two developments can coexist alongside each other and
accordingly we would not wish to raise an objection to planning permission being granted in this
instance. In the event you are minded to approve the application, HS2 Ltd requests that the
following informative is placed on any decision notice:

"Informative:

The Applicant is advised that part of the application site falls within land that may potentially be
required to construct and/or operate Phase One of a high speed rail line between London and the
West Midlands, known as High Speed Two (HS2). Powers to construct and operate HS2 are to be
sought by the promotion of a hybrid Bill deposited in Parliament on 25th November 2013. As a
result the

application site, or part of it, may be compulsorily purchased. More information can be found at
www.hs2.org.uk."

NATURAL ENGLAND:

This application is in close proximity to Mid Colne Valley SSSI. Natural England is unclear whether
the proposed development (in particular the waste water treatment works) will damage or destroy
the interest features for which the site has been notified through nutrient enrichment. We
understand that the Environment Agency (EA) has requested further information from the applicant
with regards to flood risk and potential impact on the adjacent designated site. So, given the nature
of the proposal, we believe that the EA is best placed to advise further on these issues.

HAREFIELD VILLAGE CONSERVATION AREA ADVISORY PANEL:

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 74



The Panel objects to the proposal as it represents a highly undesirable intrusion by new
development into the Green Belt.

HERTS & MIDDLESEX WILDLIFE TRUST:

Herts & Middlesex Wildlife Trust objects to the proposed change of use and development of the
site on the basis of lack of information on its potential environmental impact and risks of harm to
nature conservation interests.

The application site is adjacent to the south of Harefield Moor Lake - part of the Mid Colne Valley
Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) and Site of Metropolitan Importance for Nature
Conservation. A track and band of trees/vegetation separates the application site from the lake.
The application site is also about 175 metres to the east from HMWT's Broadwater Lake Nature
Reserve.

I note that the application is part-retrospective, and that some if not all of the development work has
already been carried out.

The development involves creation of hardstanding across the entirety of the site, which was
previously a grass field. Screening vegetation is indicated on the plans, and the application form
specifies laurel and native trees. A water treatment plant is also shown in the north west corner of
the site, near to the lake.

The Environment Agency's Flood Map shows the site is in Flood Zone 2. Its proximity to the lake
prompts concern about the potential flood risk at the site. Furthermore, we consider there may be
a potential risk to the SSSI of pollution during any flood event, in connection to the proposed water
treatment plant, waste and refuse storage, and storage of vehicles and other items within the
application site. Placement of hardstanding across the whole site will increase the rate surface
water runoff into the adjacent SSSI and the paddock, both exacerbating flood risk and increasing
risks of pollution and reduced water quality.

The Colne Valley is known as an important habitat corridor for Daubenton's bats in particular, which
feed and commute over its water and woodland habitats and roost in nearby structures, trees and
bat boxes. The proximity of the development to habitats used by bats within the SSSI is a concern.
Lighting associated with the development has the potential to disturb bat activity, harm roost sites
and adversely impact habitat connectivity. The council is required to consider the potential impact
of the development on bats, which are protected under European law.

No information has been submitted relating to the potential impact of the development on the SSSI,
on the water quality of the adjacent lake, or on flood risk. Furthermore, the plans do not propose
any precautionary measures or mitigation to manage and reduce the potential risks of harm to the
SSSI and its wildlife, including as a result of flooding.

We object to the application due to the lack of information on its likely impact and as a result of its
potential adverse impact on the nature conservation interest of the SSSI, SMINC and HMWT's
Broadwater Lake Nature Reserve. We consider that the application is contrary to Policies EMS3,
EM6 and EM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (2012), and paragraphs 117
and 118 of the NPPF.

However, in the event that the council is minded to grant permission, we strongly advise the
implementation of robust and enforceable conditions to manage any risks of flooding, pollution and
other direct or indirect damage or degradation of the SSSI, SMINC and nature reserve as a result
of the development.

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 75



We would recommend also:

- Minimising the amount and intensity of exterior lighting and ensuring that it is downward facing
and directed away from trees, hedgerows, water bodies or any other features which may be used
by bats.

- Landscaping associated with the scheme should comprise entirely native species suitable to the
Colne Valley, and of local provenance where possible. Laurel is not a native species so should not
be planted.

- The quantity of hard standing should be reduced to minimise surface water runoff

- Sustainable Drainage techniques should be used where appropriate to reduce runoff, capture
sediment and pollutants, and help to improve water quality. Sustainable Drainage scheme should
follow guidance in 'The SUDS Manual' (CIRIA, 2007 - C697)

Advice should be sought from the Environment Agency in respect of flooding, water quality and
associated ecological impacts. Natural England should be consulted due to the proximity of the
SSSI.

Internal Consultees
CONSERVATION/URBAN DESIGN OFFICER:

Background:

This proposal lies just outside and opposite the Widewater Lock Conservation Area - a heritage
asset. It is a very visible location and the immediate vicinity is characterised by its rural
appearance of green openness, trees and the absence of any development. The significance of
the Widewater Lock Conservation Area is derived from part of the 18th century Grand (Junction)
Union Canal, distinctive features and buildings related to the canal network and the wider semi-
rural waterscape and landscape setting of this part of the canal. The site is also located in the
Green Belt and the Colne Valley SSSI. Any development will therefore not only have an effect on
the significance and views of the conservation area, but also the general streetscene, Green Belt
and SSSI

Comments:

I consider the proposal unacceptable in principle. Any development on this site would be
detrimental to the character and appearance of the conservation area, because of the sites
proximity. It would also be detrimental to the openness of the Green Belt. The proposed caravan
structures as well as the associated (and necessary) residential paraphernalia associated with
residential use would spoil the open semi-rural setting. Furthermore, the hardstanding and 'post
and rail fence' would unacceptably dominate the area to the detriment of the character and
appearance of the conservation area. For the same reasons, the proposal would appear ugly and
incongruous within the streetscene and the Greenbelt. This would cause harm to the character and
appearance of the Conservation Area.

Having regard to the National Planning Policy Framework | find for the above reasons that the harm
is not outweighed by any public benefit. In addition, it does not meet the Framework's core
principles; particularly that planning should be seeking to conserve heritage assets in a manner
appropriate to their significance.

Conclusion:
Unacceptable. The proposal will not sustain the significance of the heritage asset or the Green Belt.

TREE AND LANDSCAPE OFFICER:
There are no Tree Preservation Orders covering the site and the site does not form part od a
Conservation Area.

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 76



There are no significant trees or other vegetation of merit on the site in terms of Saved Policy
BE38.

Screening has been shown on the plans but more detail is needed (species, size, numbers etc).
This matter can be dealt with by condition.

Conclusion: Acceptable, subject to condition RES9.

HIGHWAY ENGINEER:

The development is for the change of use of existing agricultural land to allow a residential caravan
site for the siting of one static and one touring caravan. As part of the proposals, two car parking
spaces will be provided within the site for the use of residents. Access to the site will be provided
from the adjacent highway via an existing private access road, which also serves an adjacent
quarry.

When undertaking assessment of the proposals, it is noted that the Council does not have specific
parking standards for this type of use. However, as the site will contain a static caravan, it is
considered that the parking standards associated with a residential use, would be appropriate to be
used in this instance. As a result, the provision of 2 car parking spaces is acceptable to serve the
proposed static caravan. From considering the parking requirements associated with the touring
caravan, it is noted that parking is not provided for towing vehicles. Nevertheless, due to the size of
the site, it is clear that a towing vehicle can be accommodated within the site

curtilage.

In addition, when reviewing access to the site, it is considered that there is adequate visibility
provided along the adjacent highway, based on the speed limit along Moorhall Road.

Therefore, it is considered that the development would not be contrary to the Policies of the
adopted Hillingdon Local Plan, 2012, (Part 2) and an objection is not raised in relation to the
highway aspect of the proposals, provided that the following details are made conditional to any
planning consent.

Three car parking spaces shall be provided within the boundary of the site, which shall be
maintained and retained at all time for the use of residents. Each car parking space shall be a
minimum of 4.8m long and 2.4m wide and constructed from a bound material.

The development site shall only be permitted to accommodate one static and one touring caravan.
Any increase in the number ofcaravans, either static or mobile will first require the permission of the
LPA.

SUSTAINABILTY OFFICER:
Given the scale and nature of the development, no objections are raised on sustainability or
ecological grounds.

FLOOD AND WATER MANAGEMENT OFFICER:
The site appears to be in Flood Zone 3b and 2 but not Flood Zone 3.

To explain the reason for this.

Flood Zone 3b was established when the Council did our Strategic Flood Risk Assessment a few
years ago. This shows the functional flood plain and so an area critical to allow flood water to flow.
However since that time the Environment Agency have undertaken more modelling on the River
Colne and this reduced the extents of Flood Zones. However we have not updated flood zone 3b
which is why it appears that the site is in contradictory Flood Zones.

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 77



In terms of risk the site, | would consider that the site lies in Flood Zone 2 based on the fact that it
represents the best available data:

Flood Zone 2 comprises land assessed as having between a 1 in 100 and 1 in 1000 annual
probability of river flooding (1% - 0.1%) or between a 1 in 200 and 1 in 1000 annual probability of
sea flooding (0. 5% - 0.1%) in any year.

PPS25 requires the Local Planning Authority (LPA) to demonstrate that they have applied a
Sequential Test and ruled out alternative sites, that have less flood risk, on which the development
could take place instead. The LPA must provide evidence for public record that they have
considered alternative sites prior to allowing development on a site at risk of flooding.

LPAs must apply the Exception Test in addition to and once it has applied the Sequential Test ,
and in the circumstances set out in table D3 of PPS25. Where applicable, the Exception Test
ensures that development is permitted in flood risk areas only in exceptional circumstances and
when strict qualifying conditions have been met.

Highly Vulnerable Uses in Flood Zone 2 are only considered appropriate if the Exception test has
been passed - Highly Vulnerable uses include:
Caravans, mobile homes and park homes intended for permanent residential use.

The Council are also aware of flooding issues along Moorhall Road restricting safe access.
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

7.01 The principle of the development

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and Government's policy for traveller sites,
March 2012

The NPPF advises that the purpose of the planning system is to contribute towards
achieving sustainable development and that this has three dimensions, namely economic,
social and environmental which are mutually dependent. It states that there is a
presumption in favour of sustainable development, although it clarifies that planning law
requires applications for planning permission must be determined in accordance with the
development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise and therefore the
NPPF does not change the statutory status of the development plan which should be the
starting point for decision making.

The application site is designated as forming part of the Green Belt in the Hillingdon Local
Plan (November 2012). Paragraph 79 of the National Planning Policy Framework (March
2012) advises that the fundamental aim of Green Belt policy is to prevent urban sprawl by
keeping land permanently open so that the essential characteristics of Green Belts are
their openness and permanence. Paragraph 87 goes on to advise that inappropriate
development is harmful to the Green Belt and should not be approved except in very
special circumstances. Paragraph 88 advises that "very special circumstances' will not
exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and any
other harm, is clearly outweighed by other considerations.' At paragraph 89, the NPPF
states that the construction of new buildings should be regarded as inappropriate, and
then lists a number of specific exceptions to this general presumption, including buildings
for agriculture and forestry; appropriate fascilities for outdoor sport and recreation and for
cemeteries, providing the openness of the Greebn Belt is preserved; the extension or
alteration of a building, providing that the addition(s) are not disproportionate to the
original building; building replacement providing the new buuildiong is in the same use and
not materially larger than the one it replaces; and limited infilling in villages, and limited
affordable housing for local community needs under policies set out in the Local Plan and
limited infilling or the partial or complete redevelopment of previously developed sites
(brownfield land).

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 78



The Government also published in March 2012 alongside the NPPF, 'Planning policy for
traveller sites'. This advises that the 'Government's overarching aim is to ensure fair and
equal treatment for travellers, in a way that facilities the traditional and nomadic way of life
of travellers while respecting the interests of the settled community.'

To help to achieve this, the Government's aims in respect of traveller sites are stated at
Paragraph 4. Among other matters, these are:

- to promote more private traveller site provision while recognising that there will always
be those travellers who cnnot provide their own sites,

- to increase the number of traveller sites in appropriate locations with planning
permission, to address under provision and maintain an appropriate level of supply, and

- to enable provision of suitable accommodation from which travellers can access
education, health, welfare and employment infrastructure.

Specifically in relation to Green Belts, at Paragraph 14, the guidance states that:-

'Inappropriate development is harmful to the Green Belt and should not be approved,
except in very special circumstances. Traveller sites (temporary or permanent) in the
Green Belt are inappropriate development.'

Paragraph 15 goes on to advise that Green Belt boundaries should only be altered in
exceptional circumstances and that if the local planning authority wishes to make an
exceptional limited alteration, to meet a specific, identified need for a traveller site, this
should be done through the plan-making process and not in response to a planning
application.

Paragraph 20 emphasises that planning law requires applications for planning permission
to be determined in accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations
indicate otherwise and paragraph 21 highlights the need for applications should be
assessed and determined in accordance with the presumption in favour of sustainable
development and the application of specific policies in the NPPF and this guidance for
traveller sites.

Paragraph 22 then lists the issues amongst other relevant matters that need to be
considered when determining planning applications for traveller sites, namely:

a) the existing level of local provision and need for sites,

b) the availability (or lack) of alternative accommodation for the applicants,

c) other personal circumstances of the applicant,

d) that the locally specific criteria used to guide the allocation of sites in plans or which
form the policy where there is no identified need for pitches/plots should be used to
assess applications that may come forward on unallocated sites,

e) that they should determine applications for sites from any travellers and not just those
with local connections.

Paragraph 23 then goes on to advise that new traveller sites in open countryside away
from existing settlements or outside areas allocated in the development plan should be
strictly limited.

Further clarification of Government policy in relation to Traveller sites in the Green Belt
was provided in a written Ministerial Statement, originally given at the House of Commons
by Local Government Minister, Brandon Lewis MP on 1 July 2013, which reads:

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 79



'Our policy document, Planning policy for traveller sites, was issued in March 2012. It
makes clear that both temporary and permanent traveller sites are inappropriate
development in the green belt and that planning decisions should protect green belt land
from such inappropriate development.

As set out in that document and in March 2012's National Planning Policy Framework,
inappropriate development in the green belt should not be approved except in very special
circumstances. Having considered recent planning decisions by councils and the Planning
Inspectorate, it has become apparent that, in some cases, the green belt is not always
being given the sufficient protection that was the explicit policy intent of ministers.

The Secretary of State wishes to make clear that, in considering planning applications,
although each case will depend on its facts, he considers that the single issue of unmet
demand, whether for traveller sites or for conventional housing, is unlikely to outweigh
harm to the green belt and other harm to constitute the 'very special circumstances'
justifying inappropriate development in the green belt.

The Secretary of State wishes to give particular scrutiny to traveller site appeals in the
green belt, so that he can consider the extent to which Planning policy for traveller sites is
meeting this government's clear policy intentions. To this end he is hereby revising the
appeals recovery criteria issued on 30 June 2008 and will consider for recovery appeals
involving traveller sites in the green belt.

For the avoidance of doubt, this does not mean that all such appeals will be recovered,
but that the Secretary of State will likely recover a number of appeals in order to test the
relevant policies at national level. The Secretary of State will apply this criteria for a period
of 6 months, after which it will be reviewed.'

The Government is also considering further revisions to both planning policy and practice
guidance to strengthen Green Belt protection from both housing schemes and Traveller
developments. That prospect emerged in a written Commons statement on the 17th
January 2014 by the Local Government Minister Brandon Lewis. He told MPs: "We also
want to consider the case for changes to the planning definition of 'travellers' to reflect
whether it should only refer to those who actually travel and have a mobile or transitory
lifestyle.

"We are open to representations on these matters and will be launching a consultation in
due course."

He pointed out that the Coalition's planning policy was clear that "both temporary and
permanent traveller sites are inappropriate development in the green belt and that
planning decisions should protect green belt land from such inappropriate development".

He reminded Parliament that the Secretary of State's policy position on unmet need,
whether for Traveller sites or for conventional housing, was that this was "unlikely to
outweigh harm to the green belt and other harm" and would not constitute the "very
special circumstances” justifying inappropriate development in the Green Belt.

The minister re-emphasised that point for both local planning authorities and planning
inspectors as a material consideration in their planning decisions.

The minister said that for the past six months the Communities Secretary had been
looking at the way policy was being applied on the ground by recovering more appeals

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 80



involving Traveller projects in Green Belt locations.

He said: "The Secretary of State remains concerned about the extent to which planning
appeal decisions are meeting the Government's clear policy intentions, particularly as to
whether sufficient weight is being given to the importance of green belt protection.
Therefore, he intends to continue to consider for recovery appeals involving traveller sites
in the green belt."

London Plan

Policy 7.16 of the London Plan relates to the Green Belt. Overall, the Mayor strongly
supports the current extent of London's Green Belt, its extension in appropriate
circumstances and its protection from inappropriate development.

In relation to planning decisions, the policy states that 'the strongest protection should be
given to London's Green Belt, in accordance with national guidance. Inappropriate
development should be refused, except in very special circumstances. Development will
be supported if it is appropriate and helps secure the objectives of improving the Green
Belt as set out in national guidance.’

The Plan refers to Gypsies and Travellers in the supporting text to Policy 3.8: Housing
Choice. Paragraph 3.57 states that:

"The Mayor considers that boroughs are best placed to assess the needs of, and make
provision for these groups whether through new pitch provision, protection or
enhancement of existing pitches, or by other means. As in the rest of the country, they
will be responsible for determining the right level of site provision in their areas and in
consultation with local communities. They will set targets for provision based on robust
evidence of local need. These targets, and the robustness of the evidence on which they
are based, will be tested through the process of consultation on, and public examination
of, local plans.'

Hillingdon Local Plan

Policy H3 of the Hillingdon Local Plan; Part One: Strategic Policies (November 2012)
deals with Gypsy and Traveller pitch provision. This states:

"The Council will ensure that:

a. The existing Colne Park site will be protected for its current use;

b. Targets for additional pitch provision take account of need and the availability of
suitable sites; and

c. Proposals for sites to accommodate the specific needs of Travellers (lrish and
Scottish), Gypsies, Roma, Sinti and Travelling Show People should:

i) Be located on a site and in an area that is environmentally acceptable for residential
occupation;

ii) Have no significant adverse effects on the amenity of occupiers of adjoining land;

iii) Have acceptable road and pedestrian access and be accessible to local services and
public transport; and

iv) Be consistent with other relevant Local Plan policies.'

Policy EM2 deals with the Green Belt and other open land. This states:

"The Council will seek to maintain the current extent, hierarchy and strategic functions of

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 81



the Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains. Notwithstanding this, Green
Chains will be reviewed for designation as Metropolitan Open Land in the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part 2- Site Specific Allocations LDD and in accordance with the London Plan
policies.

Minor adjustments to Green Belt and Metropolitan Open Land will be undertaken in the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2- Site Specific Allocations LDD.

Any proposals for development in Green Belt and Metropolitan Open Land will be
assessed against national and London Plan policies, including the very special
circumstances test.

Any proposals for development in Green Chains will be firmly resisted unless they
maintain the positive contribution of the Green Chain in providing a visual and physical
break in the built-up area; conserve and enhance the visual amenity and nature
conservation value of the landscape; encourage appropriate public access and
recreational facilities where they are compatible with the conservation value of the area,
and retain the openness of the Green Chain."’

Retained UDP policies in the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) generally endorse national and regional guidance. In particular, policy
OL1 assesses appropriate uses in the Green Belt and policy OL4 assesses new buildings.

As made clear in ministerial advice, the development represents inappropriate
development within the Green Belt. Therefore 'very special circumstances' would need to
be demonstrated to justify the development.

Applicant's Case

The Design & Access Statement submitted with the application advises that a case of very
special circumstances is detailed in the document and a following health report, but to
date, no such health report has been received. The D & A Statement goes on to describe
the personal circumstances of the applicant, stating that Mr S. Smith and family are
members of the Gypsy Traveller community and they have Gypsy Status for planning
purposes. It goes on to advise that:

"It is important that the Smith family have a stable place to live, so consistent health care
can be maintained.

Both Mr Smith and his wife have close interdependent relationships with their families
(many of which live close by) and it is seen as vital that they are able to live close to family
(particularly parents) and continue to contribute to providing care and everyday assistance
to the family'.

The D & A Statement goes on to advise that the visual impact of the development is
minimal and there is screening around the site which improves during each growing
season.

It goes on to consider policy and legislation, noting that the Government's Planning policy
for traveller sites promotes more private traveller site provision and paragraph 23 of policy
H makes it clear that it does not seek to exclude all new sites from the countryside, and
this is a semi-rural location, with the backdrop of the existing aggregate extraction
business with associated commercial activity.

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 82



The document then states that having regard to the Government's Planning policy for
traveller sites - Impact assessment (March 2012), it is clear the new policy was prepared
in the knowledge that nationally there remains a significant need for more sites. According
to this document, the total number of Gypsy and traveller caravans counted in the
biannual counts has gone up by 39% between 2000 and 2011 but over the same period,
the percentage of caravans on authorised sites has only increased by 2%. There has
been a 22% increase in caravans on authorised sites between 2006 - 2011 but there are
still more caravans on unauthorised developments than when Circular 1/2006 came in.

The document therefore goes on to advise that the very special circumstances that are
particularly relevent in this instance relate to health, unmet need for sites and the Gypsy
Status of the family. Firstly, there is a lack of available sites in the area, secondly there is
a lack of a five year supply of land for Gypsy site provision and thirdly, there is a need for
the family to be able to access regular health care.

The document goes on to advise that there is a substantial unmet need for more pitches
in the greater region as a whole and this needs to be given substantial weight, particularly
as the current figures for unmet need are likely to be an underestimate. This lack of
provision also has implications for Article 8 of the Human Rights Act. There also appears
to be no Development Plan Document in place that covers Gypsy sites and there will not
be any new plans or policy in place for some time.

The document also advises that if permanent permission is deemed to be unacceptable,
temporary permission may be acceptable to the family.

Officer Consideration

The NPPF makes clear that sustainable development comprises social, economic and
environmental dimensions and that these should not be pursued in isolation as they are
'mutually dependant'. By its nature, the development compromises the openness of the
Green Belt and therefore the environmental dimension of sustainability. The site is also
located within Flood Zone 2 and therefore not generally suitable for residential use (see
Section  below) and being sited away from other built development, would involve
additional resources to access and service, which also compromises the social and
economic dimensions. Such compromises are contrary to the spirit of mutual dependency
and its environmental, social and economic impacts make the development inherently
unsustainable and contrary to the definition of sustainable development contained in the
NPPF.

The NPPF states that planning applications must be determined in accordance with the
development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. New residential uses
and buildings within the Green Belt represent inappropriate development and therefore
'very special circumstances' need to be demonstrated.

The submitted Design & Access Statement advises that the applicant's case revolves
around the issues of unmet need for sites, health and the Gypsy Status of the family.

As regards unmet need for additional sites, the information contained in the Design and
Access Statement suggests that there is need for additional pitch provision at the national
level, but little/no information has been submitted which relates to the local area. Having
regard to the criteria in paragraph 22 of the NPPF, at a) the existing level of local
provision and need for sites needs to be assessed.

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 83



In this regards, Hillingdon contains one authorised traveller site, Colne Park at Cricketfield
Road, West Drayton, which provides 22 Gypsy and traveller site pitches. An initial
assessment undertaken as part of an appeal on a site on Jacket Lane, Northwood (App.
No. 57685/APP/2011/1450 refers) in October last year acknowledged that assessment of
need was difficult, particularly predicting in-migration from other areas. However, Council
records reveal that in the last 10 years, it only received the one proposal for an additional
Gypsy and traveller pitch which was on that site. A number of unauthorised encampments
have also been the subject of enforcement proceedings, but the Council does not
consider these to be a reliable indicator of need. The assessment concluded that the
Colne Park site would be likely to be capable of accommodating new demand for
additional pitch provision. Although it does not currently have any vacant pitches,
anticipated turnover rates at the site (5 pitches have become available over the last 5
years) and an assessment of likely new householder formation rates amongst the
Gypsy/traveller community suggest that the site could accommodate likely demand, at
least over the next 5 years. The Council will also be undertaking a full assessment of the
need for Gypsy and traveller provision as part of the production of its Site Allocations
document for the Local Plan.

As regards criterion b) the availability (or lack) of alternative accommodation for the
applicants, the Council uses Locata Housing Services (LHS) to manage the letting of
available vacancies on pitches and in bricks and mortar accommodation. Housing need is
determined by assessing the current housing circumstances of the applicants. A priority
'‘band' is then allocated according to the urgency of the housing need. The applicant's
housing needs would be assessed through this system to determine the level of priority
and therefore the availability of suitable accommodation. However, as it appears that the
applicant has not registereed with the Council as being in housing need, it has not been
possible to assess the suitablility of alternative accommodation.

Notwithstanding the issues regarding unmet need, the Secretary of State has confirmed
that unmet need, whether for Traveller sites or for conventional housing, was "unlikely to
outweigh harm to the green belt and other harm" and would not constitute the "very
special circumstances" justifying inappropriate development in the Green Belt.

As regards the other personal circumstances of the applicant (criterion c) of paragraph 22
of the NPPF), whilst the family's desire to live in the area is understandable in order to be
close to other family members, particularly parents in order to provide everyday care and
support, this does not amount to very special circumstances that would clearly outweigh
the presumption against development in the Green Belt. On the contrary, these
circumstances are not 'very special' or even 'special', but rather ordinary and
commonplace and could be cited by many prospective families wishing to locate in the
area. Furthermore, any arguements made concerning Article 8 of the Human Rights Act
would not be supported, as this site is located within a flood zone and therefore its
residential use presents a direct threat to its inhabitants. This is dealt with in Section
below.

As regards criteria d) and €), the assessment of this site in terms of locally specific policy
has been addressed in this and other sections of the officer's report and criterion €) is not
directly applicable in this instance.

The residential use of the site involving the proposed siting of a static caravan within the
centre of the site, the siting of a mobile caravan adjacent to the western boundary with
associated parking spaces for two vehicles and hardstanding covering the entirety of the
site, together with associated residential paraphenalia would give the site an urban

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 84



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

7.09

appearance, out of keeping with its rural location. Furthermore, additional works have
been carried out in comnnection with the residential use, such as 1.8 - 2.0m high close
boarded fencing has been erected along two boundaries of the field which has detracted
from the openness of the site and added to its urban appearance.

The development therefore represents inappropriate development, the retention of which
is harmful by definition, to the Green Belt contrary to the NPPF (March 2012), Planning
policy for traveller sites (March 2012), Policy 7.16 of the London Plan (July 2011), Policy
EM2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012) and
Policies OL1 and OL4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The western boundary of the Widewater Lock Conservation Area lies adjacent to the site,
on the opposite side of the access road.

The development has introduced a residential use and involve caravans being sited on the
fringe of the conservation area, where previously there was an open paddock. The
Council's Conservation and Urban Design Officer advises that the development, due to its
proximity to the conservation area, is detrimental to its character and appearance which is
derived its rural location, surrounded by open fields, lakes and trees and the 18th century
Grand Union Canal with its distinctive features and buildings. The proposed caravan
structures as well as the associated (and necessary) residential paraphernalia associated
with the residential use would spoil the open semi-rural setting. Furthermore, the
hardstanding and 'post and rail fence' would unacceptably dominate the area to the
detriment of the character and appearance of the conservation area.

The development is therefore contrary to the NPPF, Policy 7.8 of the London Plan and
Policy BE4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (Novembeer
2012).

Airport safeguarding

There are no airport safeguarding concerns raised by this application.
Impact on the green belt

This is considered in Section 7.01 above.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

This is considered in Section 7.01 above.
Impact on neighbours

The nearest residential property to the application site is Lock Cottage, sited some 35m to
the east of the applicatiion site on the opposite side of the access road. Having regard to
the nature and scale of the development and the existing use made of the access road
which also serves a sand and gravel works, the residential use of the site and associated
building works are not considered to be harmful to the residential amenities of the
occupiers of this or any other residential property, by reason of overshadowing,
dominance, loss of privacy, noise generation and/or general disturbance. The
development therefore complies with Policies BE20, BE21, BE24 and OE1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP POlicies (November 2012).

Living conditions for future occupiers

The Council's guidelines relating to internal floor space standards are not applicable to
mobile homes and caravans.

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 85



7.10

7.1

712

713

7.14

7.15

7.16

717

The area around the static and mobile caravans would provide adequate amenity space
for the occupiers of the site.
Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The proposal shows two parking spaces on site. The Council's Highway Engineer advises
that the access to the site is acceptable, but that in view of the need to provide space for a
towing vehicle, three spaces would be needed to serve the static and mobile caravans.
However, given the size of the site, additional space could be provided and therefore no
objections are raised, subject to conditions. The development is considered to comply with
Policies AM7 and AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

Urban design, access and security

The relevant issues have been considered in other sections of this report.
Disabled access

Not applicable to this development.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this development.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan advises that new development should retain
topographical and landscape features of merit and that new planting and landscaping
should be provided wherever it is appropriate.

The Council's Tree/Landscaping Officer advises that there are no significant trees or other
vegetation of merit on the site. Although screen planting has been shown on the plans,
more detail is needed such as species, size, number etc. This could have been
conditioned had the application been recommended favourably.

Policies EC1 and EC3 of the Hillingdon Local Plan safeguards designated ecology sites
and advises that if development is proposed on or near such sites, an ecological
assessment may be required to demonstrate that the development would not have
unacceptable ecological effects.

Notwithstanding the possible impact of the water treatment plant on water quality, which
forms a reason for refusal, given the scale and nature of the development, it is considered
that the development would be unlikely to have a detrimental impact on the ecology of
these sites, or have any implications for protected species in the area.

Sustainable waste management

An area adjacent to the entrance of the sited has been shown as providing storage space
for waste and recycling, the details of which could have been conditioned had the
application not of been recommended for refusal.

Renewable energy / Sustainability

The Council's Sustainability Officer advises that given the scale and nature of the
development, no objections are raised on renewal energy/ sustainability grounds.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

The Council's Flood and Water Management Officer provides an explanation as to why
the site has 2 contradictory zonings in terms of its flood risk and then goes on to advise
that it should be considered to lie within Flood Zone 2 as this is based upon more up-to-
date and accurate data.

The NPPF (March 2012) advises that inappropriate development in areas at risk of
flooding (Flood Zones 2 and 3 and those parts of Zone 1 which have critical drainage

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 86



problems) should be avoided by directing development away from areas at highest risk. It
goes on to advise that a sequential approach should be used in areas known to be at risk
of flooding and that the aim of the Sequential Test is to steer new development to areas
with the lowest probability of flooding and that development should not be allocated or
permitted if there are reasonably available sites appropriate for the proposed development
in areas of a lower probability of flooding. It specifies that a flood risk assessment is
required for all new development in Flood Zones 2 and 3.

Technical Guidance to the National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) identifies
caravans, mobile homes and park homes intended for permanent residential use are
highly vulnerable uses within Flood Zone 2 and proposals for a change of use, the
Sequential and Exception Test should be applied.

The application has not been accompanied by a Flood Risk Assessment which would
need to apply the Sequential and Exception Tests. Indeed, having regard to the nature of
the proposed development and location of the site, it is difficult to envisage any
circumstances in which the proposal could satisfy these tests. On this basis, the
Environment Agency and the Council's Flood and Water Management Officer advise that
the flooding risks associated with the development are unknown and object to the
scheme.

This is also a Source Protection Zone (SPZ)1 and a groundwater abstraction point is
located nearby. The Environment Agency also raise objection to the scheme on the basis
of the inclusion of a water treatment plant. They advise that an additional discharge to
ground from a non-mains drainage system could cause pollution to the water supply and
given that groundwater is shallow in this area, a discharge to ground may be ineffective.

In the absense of a drainage risk assessment, the potential risks of pollution can not be
assesseed and the scheme fails to comply with the NPPF, Policy 5.14 of the London Plan
(July 2011) and Policy EM1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies
(November 2012).

7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

The proposal does not give rise to any concerns relating to noise or air quality.
7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

As regards the points raised to public consultation, points (i), (i), (v), (viii) - (x), (xii), (xiii) -
(xvi), (xix) - (xxi) have been dealt with in the officer's report. Points (iii), (iv), (xxii), (xxvii)
and (xxviii) are noted. As regards point (vi), the lighting from the residential use of the
outbuilding and external lighting is typical of a residential plot and is not unduly detrimental
on the amenities of surrounding properties as to warrant a separate reason for refusal. As
regards point (xi) the close boarded fencing around the wider site is to be considered in a
separate enforcement report. Point (xvii) represents speculation and a commercial use of
the site is not being proposed as part of this application. Points (xviii) and (xxv) do not
raise a material planning concern. As regards point (xxiv), it is considered that the site is
adequately separated from the Grade Il listed Lock Cottage so that its setting would not
be advesely affected.

The relevant planning issues raised have been dealt with in the officer's report.
7.20 Planning Obligations

Not applicable to this development.
7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

A further report which considers the expediency of taking enforcement action on this site

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 87



will be presented to this committee.
7.22 Other Issues

The application site is located within an area that has been safeguarded by High Speed
Two Ltd. They advise that access to the application site is from a road HS2 has identified
as potentially being needed during construction and wetland habitat is intended to be
created to the north of the application site. However, they advise that the two
developments can coexist alongside each other, and on this basis, they do not object to
the application, although they do advise of the need for an informative, advising the
applicant that the site may be conmpulsory purchased in the future, which has been
attached.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and
use of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to
the application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and
also the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related
to the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure
Levy 2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality
of opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 88



consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

The site forms part of the Green Belt. The development represents inappropriate
development and no compelling reasons have been put forward or are evident to suggest
that 'very special circumstances' exist to outweigh Green Belt policy.

The use and associated structures are also detrimental to the character and appearance
of the adjoining Widewater Lock Conservation Area.

Furthermore, the site lies within Flood Zone 2 where the siting of caravans, mobile homes
and park homes intended for permanent residential use represents a highly vulnerable
use. A Flood Risk Assessment as required by the NPPF has not been submitted with the
application and the development does not meet the Sequential and Exceptions Tests. The
Environment Agency and the Council's Flood and Water Management Officer therefore
raise objection to the development. The Environment Agency have also lodged an
objection on the grounds of the inclusion of a water treatment plant within this sensitive
area forming part of a Source Protection Zone (SPZ)1.

The application is recommended for refusal.

11. Reference Documents

NPPF (March 2012)

Planning policy for traveller sites (March 2012)
Technical Guidance for NPPF (March 2012)
National Planning Practice Guidance (March 2014)
London Plan (July 2011)

Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012)

HDAS: Residential Layouts & Accessible Hillingdon
Consultation responses

Contact Officer: Richard Phillips Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 89



37.2m
The Horse
and Barge (PH)

Notes Site Address

LONDON BOROUGH
Site boundary OF HILLINGDON
For identification purposes only. Land Adjacent to Wldewater LOCk Residents Services
This copy has been made by or with (Bal’n Farm), Moorha" Road, Harefleld . . .
the authority of the Head of Committee Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Mlddx' UB8 1uW
) . Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale
Act 1988 (the Act). 1 _1 250
Unless the Act provides a relevant 69682/APP/2014/32 "0
exception to copyright. - -
Planning Committee Date

© Crown copyright and database

qgg:;gg;g Ordnance Survey North Appl im March 2014

LONDON




Agenda ltem 11

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 37 MOOR PARK ROAD NORTHWOOD

Development: 2 x two-storey, 5-bed detached dwellings with habitable roofspace with
associated parking and amenity space, installation of vehicular crossover to
front, installation of fence to front involving demolition of existing dwelling
(Resubmission)

LBH Ref Nos: 4581/APP/2013/3765

Drawing Nos: P12b
P13b
P11a
P15a
Design and Access Statement
Drainage Statement
Tree Survey
5377/01A
P06
PO7

Date Plans Received: 17/12/2013 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 17/12/2013
Date Application Valid: 17/12/2013
1. SUMMARY

The application proposes to demolish the existing house and to erect two, two-storey
houses with habitable accommodation in the roof space, together with a single garage
and two parking spaces as well as installation of a new vehicular crossover.

It is considered that the design of the proposal would be in keeping with the character
and appearance of the surrounding area and that it would not be harmful to the amenity
of nearby residents or future occupiers. The proposal would be of low density and the
internal floor space would provide an adequate level of amenity for future occupants. As
such, the proposal is considered acceptable and is recommended for approval subject to
conditions.

2. RECOMMENDATION

a) That the Council enters into a legal agreement with the applicant under Section
106 of the 1990 Town & Country Planning Act (as amended) or other appropriate
legislation to secure:

i) Educational facilties contribution of £12,796.

b) That in respect of the application for planning permission, the applicant meets
the Council's reasonable costs in preparation of the legal agreement and any
abortive work as a result of the agreement not being completed.

c) That planning officers be authorised to negotiate and agree details of the legal
agreement.

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 91



d) If the Legal Agreement has not been finalised before before the 31st May 2014,
delegated authority be given to the Head of Planning, Green Spaces and Culture to
refuse planning permission for the following reason:

'The applicant has failed to provide contributions towards the improvement of
services and facilities as a consequence of demands created by the proposed
development (in respect of capacity enhancements in educational facilities). The
proposal therefore conflicts with Policy R17 of the adopted Local Plan and the
Council's Planning Obligations SPG.

e) That subject to the above, the application be deferred for determination by the
Head of Planning Green Spaces and Culture under delegated powers, subject to
the completion of the agreement.

f) That if the application is approved, the following conditions be attached:

1 HO1 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 HO2 Accordance with approved

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers P11a, P12a, P13a,
P15a, Design and Access Statement, Drainage Statement, Tree Survey, 5377/01A, P06,
PO7.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (July 2011).

3 RES7 Materials (Submission)

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces,
including details of windows and doors have been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the development shall be constructed in
accordance with the approved details and be retained as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

4 RES5 General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the following has been
completed in accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:

Amenity space (Plan No.P11a)
Parking (Plan No.P11a)

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 92



Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure that the development complies with the objectives of Policies AM14 and AM23
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

5 HO5 No additional windows or doors

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall be
constructed in the walls or roof slopes of the development hereby approved.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

6 HOG6 Obscure Glazing

The first floor side windows and the side windows in the roofspace of Plot 2 shall be
glazed with permanently obscured glass and non-opening below a height of 1.8 metres
taken from internal finished floor level for so long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 Hillingdon
Local Plan; Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

7 RES8 Tree Protection

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or
development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum
height of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details. The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.

The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the
course of the works and in particular in these areas:

2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;

2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 93



REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

8 RES9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments

2.d Car Parking Layouts

2.e Hard Surfacing Materials, inlcuding hard surfacing to the front of the dwellings
2.f External Lighting

6. Other
6.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
6.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with
the approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual

amenities of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13,
BE38 and AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
and Policies 5.11 (living walls and roofs) and 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan
(July 2011).

9 RES10 Tree to be retained

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the
Local Planning Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely
damaged during construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree,
hedge or shrub shall be planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would
leave the new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in
a position to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a
size and species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be
planted in the first planting season following the completion of the development or the
occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a
schedule of remedial works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree
surgery, feeding or groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority. New planting should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1,
Specification for Trees and Shrubs'

Remedial work should be carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 'Tree work -
Recommendations’ and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape
Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 94



planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to comply with Section 197 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

10 RES23 Visibility Splays - Pedestrian

The access for the proposed car parking shall be provided with those parts of 2.4m x
2.4m pedestrian visibility splays which can be accommodated within the site in both
directions and shall be maintained free of all obstacles to the visibility between heights of
0.6m and 2.0m above the level of the adjoining highway.

REASON
In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety in accordance with policy AM7
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

1 RES18 Lifetime Homes/Wheelchair Units

The development hereby approved shall be built in accordance with 'Lifetime Homes'
Standards.

REASON

To ensure that sufficient housing stock is provided to meet the needs of disabled and
elderly people in accordance with London Plan (July 2011) Policies 3.1, 3.8 and 7.2.

12 RES24 Secured by Design

The dwellings shall achieve 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the Hillingdon
Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the
Association of Chief Police Officers (ACPO). No dwelling shall be occupied until
accreditation has been achieved.

REASON

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote
the well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the
Local Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with London Plan (July 2011) Policies 7.1 and 7.3.

13 RES16 Code for Sustainable Homes

The dwellings shall achieve Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes. No development
shall commence until a signed design stage certificate confirming this level has been
received. The design stage certificate shall be retained and made available for
inspection by the Local Planning Authority on request.

The development must be completed in accordance with the principles of the design
stage certificate and the applicant shall ensure that completion stage certificate has been
attained prior to occupancy of each dwelling.

REASON
To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development identified in London Plan (July

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 95



2011) Policies 5.1 and 5.3.

14 RES15 Sustainable Water Management (changed from SUDS)

No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the
provision of sustainable water management has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly demonstrate that
sustainable drainage systems (SUDS) have been incorporated into the designs of the
development in accordance with the hierarchy set out in accordance with Policy 5.15 of
the London Plan and will:

i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed
to delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken
to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and

iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development
which shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory
undertaker and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme
throughout its lifetime.

The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with
Policy OES8 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
London Plan (July 2011) Policy 5.12.

15 COM6 Levels

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not
be carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in
accordance with policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

16 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Level access shall be provided to and into the dwelling houses, designed in accordance
with technical measurements and tolerances specified by Part M to the Building
Regulations 2000 (2004 edition), and shall be retained in perpetuity.

REASON:

To ensure adequate access for all, in accordance with London Plan policy 3.8, is
achieved and maintained, and to ensure an appropriate standard of accessibility in
accordance with the Building Regulations.

17 RES14 Outbuildings, extensions and roof alterations

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 96



Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General

Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that

Order with or without modification); no garage(s), shed(s) or other outbuilding(s), nor
extension or roof alteration to any dwellinghouse(s) shall be erected without the grant of
further specific permission from the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To protect the character and appearance of the area and amenity of residential occupiers
in accordance with policies BE13, BE21, BE23 and BE24 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

18 RES20 Traffic Arrangements - submission of details

Development shall not begin until details of the proposed cross over, including position,
design, surfacing and dimensions have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The approved development shall not be occupied until all such
works have been constructed in accordance with the approved details.

REASON

To ensure pedestrian and vehicular safety and convenience and to ensure adequate off-
street parking, and loading facilities in compliance with Policy AM14 Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan
(July 2011).

INFORMATIVES

1 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies.
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan:; Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

2 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

3 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM13 AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people
and people with disabilities in development schemes through
(where appropriate): -

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 97



(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(i) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

OE11 Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated
land - requirement for ameliorative measures

R16 Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and
children

H4 Mix of housing units

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 3.1 (2011) Ensuring equal life chances for all

LPP 3.3 (2011) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.4 (2011) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2011) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 3.8 (2011) Housing Choice

LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 5.7 (2011) Renewable energy

LPP 5.13 (2011) Sustainable drainage

LPP 7.2 (2011) An inclusive environment

LPP 7.4 (2011) Local character

PO-EDU Revised Chapter 4: Education Facilities of the Planning Obligations
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted 23 September 2010

4 11 Building to Approved Drawing

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

5 12 Encroachment

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by
either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application will
have to be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a development that results
in any form of encroachment.

6 13 Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 98



Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at
least 6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed
plans must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control,
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

7 15 Party Walls

The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal agreement
from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:

carry out work to an existing party wall;

build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;

in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining building.
Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building owner
and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls. The Building
Control Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any necessary agreements
with the adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by the Council should be taken as
removing the necessity for the building owner to comply fully with the Party Wall Act.
Further information and advice is to be found in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 -
explanatory booklet" published by the ODPM, available free of charge from the Planning
& Community Services Reception Desk, Level 3, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

8 16 Property Rights/Rights of Light

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not
empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the
owner. If you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

9 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.
You are advised to consult the Councilis Environmental Protection Unit

(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 99



61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out
construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

10 123 Works affecting the Public Highway - Vehicle Crossover

The development requires the formation of a vehicular crossover, which will be
constructed by the Council. This work is also subject to the issuing of a separate licence
to obstruct or open up the public highway. For further information and advice contact: -
Highways Maintenance Operations, 4W/07, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1TUW.

1 147 Damage to Verge

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex,
UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

12

You are advised that the development hereby approved represents chargeable
development under the Mayor's Community Infrastructure Levy. At this time the
Community Infrastructure Levy is estimated to be £17,360.00 which is due on
commencement of this development. The actual Community Infrastructure Levy will be
calculated at the time your development is first permitted and a separate liability notice
will be issued by the Local Planning Authority. Should you require further information
please refer to the Council's Website www.hillingdon.gov.uk/index.jsp?articleid=24738.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located on the south western side of Moor Park Road, on the corner
with Hill Road and contained within the site is a large detached property with single and
two storey elements to the building on a substantial plot. To the south of the site is
Elmside, Hill Road, while another detached property, curtilage of No.39 abuts the site on
the western side and Hill Road on the eastern side. The area is relatively flat.

The application site is within an established residential area. Moor park Road comprises
large detached properties with a variety of designs. The site is within the 'Dene Road Area
of Special Local Character' as identified in the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012). The site is also covered by TPO 90.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application proposes to demolish the existing house and erect two, two-storey houses
with habitable accommodation in the roof space to provide 5 bedroom houses, together
with a single attached garage and two parking spaces to the front, landscaping,

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 100



installation of vehicular crossover and bin and recycling store.
The proposed buildings would be approximately:

Plot 1: 12.45m wide, 18m deep and 8.50m high. Plot 1 would provide approximately
372sqg.m of internal floor area and some 452sq.m of amenity space. The existing garage
to the bottom of the garden would be refurbished and retained.

Plot 2: 15.90m wide, 15m deep and 8.50m high. Plot 2 would provide 412sq.m of internal
floor area and some 368sg.m of amenity space.

The building would have a hipped roof with a small crown roof and a catslide roof over the
single storey garage joining the main roof of the house. There would be two, two storey
forward projecting hip ended element to the front of the property and would be set down
from the main ridge of the house by 0.95m for plot 2 and 1.30m for plot 1. This design
feature would also be reflected to the rear of the property with a single storey rear
extension and rear dormer windows. Plot 2 has a front dormer window.

Each building would maintain a minimum 1m distance from the side boundaries. Plot 1
would maintain a minimum 9.50m from the boundary along Hill Road. The buildings would
be set back from the highway by a minimum 15m and approximately in line with the
building line of the adjacent properties. Parking is shown for one car to the front and an
integral single garage would be provided. The existing crossover would be reinstated and
a new crossover provided in front of Plot 1 would be provided to access both properties.

The elevations of the building would comprise white render and the roof would be of clay
tiles. A 1m high pallisade fence would be erected along the front boundary and 1.8m close
boarded fence surrounding the rear gardens.

Revised plans were submitted increasing the width of the garages to 3m wide, showing
visibility splays and lifetime homes standard were revised.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

4581/A/82/1662 37 Moor Park Road Northwood
Tree application (P)

Decision: 12-01-1983  Approved

4581/APP/2013/2765 37 Moor Park Road Northwood

3 x two storey, 5-bed, detached dwellings with habitable roofspace, with associated parking and
amenity space, installation of vehicular crossover to front, installation of fence to front involving
demolition of existing dwelling

Decision: 03-12-2013  Withdrawn

4581/B/88/1992 37 Moor Park Road Northwood
To carry out tree surgery to G5 on TPO 90.

Decision: 29-09-1988 Approved

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 101



4581/TRE/2000/124 37 Moor Park Road Northwood
TO FELL ONE LAWSON CYPRESS (T102) ON TPO 90

Decision: 15-11-2000 Approved

4581/TRE/2001/146 37 Moor Park Road Northwood
TO FELL THE MONTEREY CYPRESS TREES IN GROUP G5 ON TPO 90

Decision: 14-03-2002 Approved

4581/TRE/2005/90 Land East Of Hill Road/Adjacent To 37 Moor Park Road Northwood
TO CARRY OUT TREE SURGERY TO ONE BEECH (T4) AND ONE ASH (IN GROUP G1) ON
TPO 366

Decision: 18-11-2005 Approved

4581/TRE/2006/106 37 Moor Park Road Northwood
TO FELL ONE LAWSON'S CYPRESS (T107) ON TPO NO. 90

Decision: 05-01-2007  Approved

4581/TRE/2008/47 37 Moor Park Road Northwood
To fell one cedar tree (T105)

Decision: 01-07-2008 Withdrawn

4581/TRE/2008/51 37 Moor Park Road Northwood

To fell one Cedar tree (T105) on Tree Preservation Order 90

Decision: 03-02-2009 Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History

4581/APP/2013/2765 - 3 x two storey, 5-bed, detached dwellings with habitable
roofspace, with associated parking and amenity space, installation of vehicular crossover
to front, installation of fence to front involving demolition of existing dwelling. Withdrawn.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 102



Part 2 Policies:

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM13 AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people
with disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): -
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(i) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

OE11 Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated land -
requirement for ameliorative measures

R16 Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and children

H4 Mix of housing units

HDAS-LAY  Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 3.1 (2011) Ensuring equal life chances for all

LPP 3.3 (2011) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.4 (2011) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2011) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 3.8 (2011) Housing Choice

LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 5.7 (2011) Renewable energy

LPP 5.13 (2011) Sustainable drainage

LPP 7.2 (2011) An inclusive environment

LPP 7.4 (2011) Local character

PO-EDU Revised Chapter 4: Education Facilities of the Planning Obligations
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted 23 September 2010

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1  Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 103



6. Consultations
External Consultees

14 neighbouring properties have been consulted on 20 December 2013 and a site notice was also
displayed on 2 January 2014. Five letters were received with the following objections summarised
below:

1. Overbearing to No.37: Plot 2 is in fact bigger than Plot 1 and therefore no account has been
taken of its overbearing impact;

2. Loss of daylight and sunlight; particularly to No.39's side window serving a living room and also
the window serving bathroom and utility room.

3. Loss of privacy;

4. The use of single entry shared drive is not in keeping with that of adjacent properties in Moor
Park Road;

5. Additional trees on the boundary between No.37 and Elmside, Hill Road may adversely affect the
paths, drains and buildings on my property;

6. There is a mature hedgerow full of wildlife on the current boundary between 37 Moor Park Road
and 'Elmside’, Hill Road. It provides a natural screen between the development and my property. It
seems a pity that the existing hedgerow will be lost.

7. Drainage surface water disposal item 12 on the Application for Planning permission form
indicates x against soakaway but conflicts with the Drainage statement item 4.2 where it states 'the
underlying geology of the area is predominately clay and precludes the use of soakaways';

8. No building vehicles allowed to use Hill Road at any time;

9. | consider these houses to be an attractive development, but they seem rather too large for the
overall plot. Why could the current house not be developed and an additional house be built
alongside?

10. It appears that the window to the utility room and/or the dining room window of Plot 2 may
overlook our side window serving our living room and this will infringe our privacy in breach of
BE24.

11. The proposed development infringes the 45 degree principle and would breach the side window
serving the living room at No.39.

Northwood Residents Association:
Northwood Residents' Association objects to this application because of the loss of a large number
of trees which are proposed to be felled contrary to Policy BE38.

Internal Consultees

Conservation and Urban Design:

| have looked at the application drawings and have no objection to the scheme in principle.
Materials for the external finishes for the buildings should be conditioned as should elements such
as windows and doors. We should also condition the treatment of the frontage parking areas, to
ensure that the materials used for the hard surfacing retain the character of the street and that
appropriate planting is introduced to maintain the "green" appearance of the road. Boundary
treatments should also be conditioned.

Otherwise no objections.

Trees and Landscape:

Tree Preservation Order (TPO) / Conservation Area: This site is covered by TPO 90 and, partly, by
TPO 366.

Significant trees / other vegetation of merit in terms of Saved Policy BE38: The most obvious
feature at this location is the linear group of mature, protected trees to the eastern side of the site.
A previous application proposed 3 new dwellings which may have put future pressure on some of
the trees to be removed; that application was withdrawn. This current application proposes 2

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 104



dwellings and this should not put undue pressure on the nearby trees. The submitted tree report
provides an adequate level of protection for these trees and they can be successfully retained (as
part of the demolition and re-building process).

Scope for new planting (yes/no): Further details of soft and hard landscaping should be provided
and should strengthen the existing front boundary screening and replace removed protected trees
(where possible). This matter can be dealt with by condition.

Recommendations: As above.

Conclusion (in terms of Saved Policy BE38): Acceptable, subject to conditions RES8
(implementation of submitted details); RES9 (1, 2, 6) and RES10.

Access Observations:

In assessing this application, reference has been made to London Plan July 2011, Policy 3.8
(Housing Choice) and the Council's Supplementary Planning Document "Accessible Hillingdon"
adopted May 2013. Compliance with all 16 Lifetime Home standards (as relevant) should be shown
on plan.

The current dwelling occupies a plot of around 1868sqgm on the southern side of Moor Park Road,
and is occupied by a circa 1920/30s dwellinghouse. The proposal, which sets out to erect two, five
bedroom detached properties, is said to have been designed to accord withthe Lifetime Home
Standards. However a condition is required to ensure that the design is compliant, in addition a
further condition is required relating to level access:

'Level access shall be provided to and into the dwelling houses, designed in accordance with
technical measurements and tolerances specified by Part M to the Building Regulations 2010 (2004
edition, incorporating 2010/13 amendments), and shall be retained in perpetuity.

REASON: to ensure adequate access for all, in accordance with London Plan policy 3.8, is
achieved and maintained, and to ensure an appropriate standard of accessibility in accordance with
the Building Regulations."

Highways:
Garage internal width needs to be 3.0 m minimum. Only two parking spaces per dwelling ought to
be shown on plans.

New cross over does not show splays either side where it meets the carriageway. This will need to
be resolved, details should submitted to and checked by the Council. Subject to conditions to
ensure the visibility splays and cross overs are adequate, no objections would be raised on
highway grounds.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The proposed site is located within the 'Developed Area' as identified in the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012). The site is not located in a
conservation area and the building is not listed. There are no policies which prevent the
demolition of the existing building, in principle.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

The London Plan 2011 requires that new housing within a suburban setting and a PTAL
score of 1a to generally be in the range of 150-200 habitable rooms per hectare (hr/ha)
and 35-55 units per hectare (u/ha). The residential density of the proposed development
equates to 111.11 hr/ha and 11.11 u/ha. As such, the proposed scheme is consistent
within the London Plan Density matrix guidelines. However, density is only one
consideration and the proposal needs to comply with other Council and London Plan
policies and standards.

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 105



7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The site is located within an Area of Special Local Character and there is no objection in
principle to houses on the site subject to the proposal satisfying other policies in the plan
and supplementary planning documents.

Local Plan Policies BE13 and BE15 resist any development which would fail to harmonise
with the existing street scene or would fail to safeguard the design of existing and
adjoining sites.

The street scene is characterised by large detached properties individually designed. The
proposed houses would be well designed, rectangular in shape with a small crown roof. It
is proposed that the buildings would follow the existing front building line of the adjacent
properties and it would retain a large front garden which, despite the provision of parking
on the frontage, would still entail a considerable level of soft landscaping. This would
ensure that the buildings would integrate well into its surroundings and that the front
garden would not have the appearance of a car park.

Moor Park Road consists of large properties in spacious surroundings. This proposal
results in a building which is sited a minimum 15m back from the front boundary, on a
similar building line as the adjoining properties and in fact further back than the existing
property. The proposed building would also be set in from the side boundaries by a
minimum of 1m and approximately 9.50m from Hill Road retaining the open character of
the corner site and the spacious nature of the setting of the properties in Moor Park Road.
The siting of the property and its overall footprint is thus considered to be in character with
the existing character of the road.

Moor Park Road comprises of, in the main large detached properties, of varying designs.
It does not have a homogenous character and thus the provision of a modern building
designed in a traditional style, with a crown roof, would not in itself be alien to the street.

Overall, it is considered that the proposed development, in terms of its siting, size, scale,
bulk and design would be in keeping with the character and appearance of the
surrounding area and that its visual impact is acceptable, in accordance with Policies
BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (November 2012).

Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

See section 7.03.
Impact on neighbours

Policy BE21 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012
states that planning permission will not be granted for new development which by reason
of its siting, bulk and proximity, would result in a significant loss in residential amenity.
Likewise Policies BE20 and BE24 resist any development which would have an adverse
impact upon the amenity of nearby residents and occupants through loss of daylight and
privacy.

In relation to the adjoining properties, No. 39 has secondary windows in the side elevation.
These windows serve a living/dining room and utility room on ground floor and ensuite on

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 106



first floor. The proposed house on plot 2 is set 1m from the adjoining boundary with
No.39, however this distance would be measured to the single storey side garage with a
catslide roof sloping away from No.39. It is considered the proposal would not result in
overshadowing adjoining properties or loss of light.

The application complies with the Council's 45 degree angle in terms of habitable room
windows on the rear elevation of both adjoining properties, due to the changes made to
the size of the building. As a result it is considered that the proposal would not impede
upon the daylight serving these properties or result in loss of outlook. The building would
be a sufficient distance from the side boundary and the neighbouring properties to not
result in an overbearing impact. The first floor rear windows and dormer windows would
not directly overlook the neighbouring properties and their gardens anymore than the
existing rear windows, as the rear elevation would be approximately 18m to the rear
boundary and even more to the neighbours nearest windows. The first floor side windows
serving en-suites can be conditioned to be obscure glazed and fixed shut below 1.8m to
prevent any unacceptable overlooking to the neighbouring properties. The first floor side
window serving a bedroom in Plot 1 would look out on to Hill Road and not directly
overlook any neighbouring properties. The roof space would have rooflights on the side
elevation, however due to the angle of these windows, they would not directly overlook the
adjacent properties. Furthermore, the study windows in the roof space, due to their angle
would have oblique views of the roof of Plot 2. The roof lights in the side elevation of plot
2 are secondary windows serving bedrooms and could be conditioned to be obscure
glazed and fixed shut to prevent any overlooking.

As a result it is considered that the proposal would not be harmful to the amenity of
nearby residents through loss of privacy, loss of light and overbearing impact. It would be
in compliance with Policies BE20, BE21, and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
- Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (November 2012) in this respect.

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

London Plan Policy 3.5 seeks to ensure that all new housing development is of the
highest quality, both internally and externally and in relation to their context.

The London Plan's Housing SPG, November 2012 sets out the minimum internal floor
space required for new housing development in order to ensure that there is an adequate
level of amenity for existing and future occupants. Annex 4 requires a 3 storey, 5
bedroom, 10 person dwelling, to have a minimum size of 115 sq.m. The proposed new
dwellings would be approximately 372sq.m for Plot 1 and 412sq.m for Plot 2 and would
comply with the required standard resulting in a satisfactory residential environment for
future occupiers, in compliance with The London Plan, Housing SPG, November 2012
and Policy BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

Section four of the Council's HDAS: Residential Layouts states that developments should
incorporate usable attractively laid out and conveniently located garden space in relation
to the dwellings they serve. It should be of an appropriate size, having regard to the size
of the flats and the character of the area.

The minimum level of amenity space required for a five bedroom house is 100sgq.m of
amenity space to meet the standard. The scheme provides some 452sq.m for Plot 1 and
368sq.m for Plot 2 and would thus far exceed these standards.

The proposed bedrooms would have windows that face the front and rear of the property

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 107



and would therefore not be overlooked by adjoining properties.

It is also considered, that all the proposed habitable rooms would maintain an adequate
outlook and source of natural light, therefore complying with Policy 3.5 of the London Plan
(2011).

7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The application proposes a garage space and a parking space to the front of the property
while retaining landscaping in the front garden. Two parking spaces per dwelling would be
sufficient and would comply with parking standards in terms of their dimensions. Revised
plans were submitting showing visibility splays to the proposed crossover, therefore, no
objection is raised in this regard. In addition at least 25% of landscaping would be
retained. The garages would provide sufficent space for cycle storage. The details of the
landscaping, visibility splays and car parking layout will be conditioned.
7.11 Urban design, access and security

URBAN DESIGN

The design of the new building would be in a traditional style to reflect the design of
existing buildings in the surrounding area. Individuality has been provided for with each
plot being different. Taking into consideration the similar large size and design of houses
in the street, there would be no objection from a design point of view. Furthermore, the
crown roof would be acceptable in this instance due to its small size and it has been
allowed in other schemes on the street. The proportions of the windows, dormers and the
roof are considered acceptable.

SECURITY
Should the application be approved, a condition is also recommended to ensure that the
scheme meets all Secured By Design Criteria.

7.12 Disabled access

London Plan Policy 3.8 and the Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Document
HDAS: Accessible Hillingdon require all new housing to be built to Lifetime Homes
standards. Given the space available within the houses, this can be secured by means of
a condition. In addition, revised plans were submitted addressing the Access Officer's
comments. The Access Officer has recommended a condition which requires level access
into the building and this is incorporated.

7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
7.14 Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

The site is covered by TPO 90 and partly by TPO 366. The submitted tree report provides
an adequate level of protection for these trees and they can be successfully retained (as
part of the demolition and re-building process). Further details of soft and hard
landscaping should be provided and should strengthen the existing front boundary
screening and replace removed protected trees (where possible). This matter can be dealt
with by condition. No objection has been raised by the Trees and Landscaping Officer,
subject to Conditions RES9 (1, 2, 6) and RES10.

It is considered that the proposal would comply with Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), subject to appropriate conditions
being imposed.

7.15 Sustainable waste management

Section 4.40 - 4.41 of the SPD: Residential layouts deals with waste management and

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 108



7.16

717

7.18

719

7.20

7.21

7.22

specifies bin stores should be provided for, and wheelie bin stores should not be further
than 9m from the edge of the highway. No details have been provided with regard to this
issue, however it is considered this could be dealt with by a suitable condition.

Renewable energy / Sustainability

The redevelopment of the site allows the opportunity to significantly improve the energy
efficiency of the property and accordingly reduce energy demand and CO2 emissions.
The Design & Access Statement states there is scope for solar panels on the roof slope or
air sourced heat pumps. A condition requiring that the development meets Level 4 of the
Code for Sustainable Homes is recommended.

Flooding or Drainage Issues

The site does not fall within a Flood Zone and therefore the proposed development is not
at potential risk of flooding. The Drainage Statement states surface water will be
controlled and underground tanks will comply with national standards. The Flood and
Water Management Officer has reviewed the Drainage Statement submitted and is
satisfied subject to conditions.

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Comments on Public Consultations

Concerns raised over loss of privacy, loss of sunlight, overbearing, tree issues and
drainage are considered in the main body of the report.
Planning Obligations

Policy R17 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states that the Local Planning Authority will, where appropriate, seek to supplement the
provision of recreation open space, facilities to support arts, cultural and entertainment
activities, and other community, social and educational facilities through planning
obligations in conjunction with other development proposals.

The proposed scheme has more than six habitable rooms and would result in a
requirement for an education contribution of £12,796 if the application is recommended for
approval. The applicant has agreed to pay this financial contribution.

Community Infrastructure Levy:

The proposed scheme represents chargeable development under the Mayor's Community
Infrastructure Levy. At this time the Community Infrastructure Levy is estimated to be
£17,360.00.

Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
Other Issues

None.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware
of the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 109



Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

It is considered that the principle of two new houses on this site is acceptable, and that the
proposed building and use would not be harmful to the character and appearance of the
street scene and the ASLC, nor the amenities of nearby residents. Parking and highway
safety matters are also satisfactory. The application accords with the Council's planning
policies and is therefore recommended for approval, subject to appropriate conditions.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012)

London Plan (July 2011)

National Planning Policy Framework

HDAS: Residential Layouts

Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design

Supplementary Planning Guidance - Noise

Supplementary Planning Guidance - Air Quality

HDAS: Accessible Hillingdon

Hillingdon Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document July( 2008) and
updated chapter 4 Education (August 2010).

Contact Officer: Mandeep Chaggar Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 110



St Martin's
School

Aviemore

.
|
.
| ‘
BDormers |

)

30—

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the

Site Address

37 Moor Park Road
Northwood

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Planning Application Ref: Scale
4581/APP/2013/3765 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
North Appli¢atior| March 2014

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 112



Agenda ltem 12

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address LAND REAR OF 81-93 HILLIARD ROAD NORTHWOOD

Development: 2 x two storey, 3- bed detached dwellings with associated parking and
amenity space, involving demolition of existing material shed, office building
and material storage shelter.

LBH Ref Nos: 64786/APP/2013/1434

Drawing Nos: 5069/01
1158/P2/1A
1158/P2/2
1158/P2/3
1158/P2/4
1158/P2/5
1158/P2/6
1158/P2/7
1158/P2/8
Renewable Energy Assessment and Statement
Design and Access Statement
Photographs x 15

Date Plans Received:  31/05/2013 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 31/05/2013
Date Application Valid: 06/06/2013
1. SUMMARY

This scheme proposes to erect 2 x two storey, 3- bed detached dwellings with associated
parking and amenity space.

It is considered that the proposed development provides good quality accommodation,
whilst harmonising with the Old Northwood Area of Special Local Character and does not
unduly detract from the amenities of the surrounding residential occupiers.

2. RECOMMENDATION

2.1 That delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning, Culture and Green
Spaces to grant planning permission, subject to the following:

i) That the Council enters into an agreement with the applicant under Section 106
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and/or Section 278 of
the Highways Act 1980 (as amended) and/ or other appropriate legislation to
secure:

a)A contribution towards capacity enhancements in local educational
establishments made necessary by the development;

2.2 That in respect of the application for planning permission, the applicant meets
the Council's reasonable costs in preparation of the Section 106 Agreement and
any abortive work as a result of the agreement not being completed.

2.3 That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 113



proposed agreement.

2.4 That if any of the heads of terms set out above have not been agreed and the
S$106 legal agreement has not been finalised within 6 months of the date of this
report, or any other period deemed appropriate by the Head of Planning, Culture
and Green Spaces then delegated authority be granted to the Head of Planning,
Culture and Green Spaces to refuse the application for the following reason:

'The development has failed to secure obligations relating to capacity
enhancements in local educational establishments made necessary by the
development. Accordingly, the proposal is contrary to policies R17 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), the
Council's Planning Obligations SPD.’

2.5 That subject to the above, the application be deferred for determination by the
Head of Planning, Culture and Green Spaces under delegated powers, subject to
the completion of the legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 and other appropriate powers with the applicant.

2.6 That if the application is approved, the following conditions be imposed:

1 RES3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

2 RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 5069/01,
1158/P2/1A, 1158/P2/2, 1158/P2/3, 1158/P2/4, 1158/P2/5, 1158/P2/6, 1158/P2/7,
1158/P2/8, Renewable Energy Assessment and Statement, Design and Access
Statement & Photographs x 15 and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as
the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (July 2011).

3 RES7 Materials (Submission)
No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the

development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details and be
retained as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 114



4 RES9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Refuse Storage

2.b Cycle Storage

2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments
2.d Hard Surfacing Materials

2.e External Lighting

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance

3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within
the landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority
becomes seriously damaged or diseased.

4. Schedule for Implementation

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with
the approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13, BE38
and AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
Policies 5.11 (living walls and roofs) and 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan (July
2011)

5 RES14 Outbuildings, extensions and roof alterations

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General

Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that

Order with or without modification); no garage(s), shed(s) or other outbuilding(s), nor
extension or roof alteration to any dwellinghouse(s) shall be erected without the grant of
further specific permission from the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To protect the character and appearance of the area and amenity of residential occupiers
in accordance with policies BE13, BE21, BE23 and BE24 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

6 RES15 Sustainable Water Management (changed from SUDS)

No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the
provision of sustainable water management has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly demonstrate that
sustainable drainage systems (SUDS) have been incorporated into the designs of the

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 115



development in accordance with the hierarchy set out in accordance with Policy 5.15 of
the London Plan and will:

i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed
to delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken
to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and

iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development
which shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory
undertaker and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme
throughout its lifetime.

The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with
Policy OE8 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
London Plan (July 2011) Policy 5.12.

7 RES16 Code for Sustainable Homes
The dwelling(s) shall achieve Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes. No
development shall commence until a signed design stage certificate confirming this level

has been received. The design stage certificate shall be retained and made available for
inspection by the Local Planning Authority on request.

The development must be completed in accordance with the principles of the design
stage certificate and the applicant shall ensure that completion stage certificate has been
attained prior to occupancy of each dwelling.

REASON
To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development identified in London Plan (July
2011) Policies 5.1 and 5.3.

8 RES18 Lifetime Homes/Wheelchair Units

No development shall take place until a scheme showing all residential units within the
development being built in accordance with 'Lifetime Homes' Standards, has been
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Thereafter, the scheme shall be completed and maintained in strict accordance with the
approved plans for the lifetime of the development.

REASON

To ensure that sufficient housing stock is provided to meet the needs of disabled and
elderly people in accordance with London Plan (July 2011) Policies 3.1, 3.8 and 7.2

9 RES22 Parking Allocation

No unit hereby approved shall be occupied until a parking allocation scheme has been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 116



parking shall remain allocated for the use of the units in accordance with the approved
scheme and remain under this allocation for the life of the development.

REASON

To ensure that an appropriate level of car parking provision is provided on site in
accordance with Policy AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan . (July 2011).

10 RES24 Secured by Design

The dwelling(s) shall achieve 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the
Hillingdon Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the
Association of Chief Police Officers (ACPO). No dwelling shall be occupied until
accreditation has been achieved.

REASON

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote
the well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the
Local Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with London Plan (July 2011) Policies 7.1 and 7.3.

11 RES26 Contaminated Land

(i) The development hereby permitted shall not commence until a scheme to deal with
contamination has been submitted in accordance with the Supplementary Planning
Guidance on Land Contamination and approved by the Local Planning Authority (LPA).
The scheme shall include all of the following measures unless the LPA dispenses with
any such requirement specifically and in writing:

(a) A desk-top study carried out by a competent person to characterise the site and
provide information on the history of the site/surrounding area and to identify and
evaluate all potential sources of contamination and impacts on land and water and all
other identified receptors relevant to the site;

(b) A site investigation, including where relevant soil, soil gas, surface and groundwater
sampling, together with the results of analysis and risk assessment shall be carried out
by a suitably qualified and accredited consultant/contractor. The report should also
clearly identify all risks, limitations and recommendations for remedial measures to make
the site suitable for the proposed use.

(c) A written method statement providing details of the remediation scheme and how the
completion of the remedial works will be verified shall be agreed in writing with the LPA
prior to commencement.

(ii) If during development or works contamination not addressed in the submitted
remediation scheme is identified, an addendum to the remediation scheme must be
agreed with the LPA prior to implementation; and

(iii) All works which form part of the remediation scheme shall be completed and a
verification report submitted to the Council's Environmental Protection Unit before any
part of the development is occupied or brought into use unless the LPA dispenses with
any such requirement specifically and in writing.

REASON: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property
and ecological systems and the development can be carried out safely without

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 117



unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with
policy OE11 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

12 RES6 Levels

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not
be carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in
accordance with policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

13 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Notwithstanding the plans hereby approved, each of the dwellings shall be fitted with an
external electrical socket or electric vehicle charging point prior to its occupation.

REASON

To ensure that the development provides facilities for the charging of electric vehicles in
accordance with Policies 5.8 (Innovative energy Technologies) and 6.13 (Parking) of the
London Plan (July 2011).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

BES New development within areas of special local character

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 118



new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

H4 Mix of housing units

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 3.4 (2011) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 2011) Quality and design of housing developments

(2011)
LPP 5.13 (2011) Sustainable drainage

LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction
LPP 8.2 (2011) Planning obligations

LPP 8.3 (2011) Community infrastructure levy

3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies.
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan:; Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

4 14 Neighbourly Consideration - include on all residential exts

You have been granted planning permission to build a residential extension. When
undertaking demolition and/or building work, please be considerate to your neighbours
and do not undertake work in the early morning or late at night or at any time on Sundays
or Bank Holidays. Furthermore, please ensure that all vehicles associated with the
construction of the development hereby approved are properly washed and cleaned to
prevent the passage of mud and dirt onto the adjoining highway. You are advised that
the Council does have formal powers to control noise and nuisance under The Control of
Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other relevant legislation. For further
information and advice, please contact - Environmental Protection Unit, 4W/04, Civic
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250190).

5 147 Damage to Verge

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex,
UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

6 15 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 119



A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Councilis Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out
construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

7 121 Street Naming and Numbering

All proposed new street names must be notified to and approved by the Council. Building
names and numbers, and proposed changes of street names must also be notified to the
Council. For further information and advice, contact - The Street Naming and Numbering
Officer, Planning & Community Services, 3 North Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge,
UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250557).

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is a 0.0653 hectares (653m?) rectangular shaped site located on the
north-western side of Hilliard Road at the rear of Nos.81 to 93. The site abuts the rear
boundaries (gardens) of Nos. 81 to 90 Hilliard Road to the east, rear boundaries of Nos.
58 to 68 High Road (predominantly commercial with 1st floor residential accommodation),
the rear/side boundary of 79 Hilliard Road to the southwest and the rear/side boundary of
Woodlodge Montessori School to the north.

The site is currently used as a builder's yard. There are various buildings on the site,
predominantly single-storey, comprising office, workshop garage and covered storage.
The site is infrequently used with some of its structures in a poor state of repair. Access to
the site is via a 2.5m gap driveway between Nos.83 and 85.

Hilliard Road is characterised by a mixture of semi-detached and terraced houses. Nos.81
and 83 are semi-detached houses while Nos.85 to 93 are terraced houses. The road is in
the Old Northwood Area of Special Local Character and lies within the 'developed area' as
identified in the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposed development comprises 2 x two storey, 3- bed detached dwellings with
associated parking and amenity space, involving demolition of existing material shed,
office building and material storage shelter.

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 120



Plot 1 and 2 would both comprise a two-storey detached property with a traditional barn
hipped roof profile, measuring 7.178m and 6.650m high respectively, 9m wide and 7.2m
deep. The front elevations of the properties would include a front dormer roof addition, a
ground to ceiling height window, chimney features and a porch. On the rear elevation
three dormer roof additions are proposed and bi-fold doors at ground floor level. The
property would be finished in white render and soft stock brickwork.

The total internal floor area would be 108 square metres. The amenity space would be
between 98 and 100 square metres.

Four parking spaces are provided on a communal harstanding area in front of the
properties.

As noted in the planning history section in more detail, the main issues in relation to the
previous submission(s) related to the following:

1. The proposal by reason of its siting, overall layout, size and site coverage, would result
in a development that fails to harmonise with the character of the area

2. Poor levels of outlook from ground floor windows of Plot 1.

3. Inadequate internal floor area

4. Inadequate amenity space

5. Lack of Education Contribution

6. Failure to meet Lifetime Homes standards

The applicant seeks to address the above issues through the following amendments:
-Reducing the density and number of units from 3 units to 2 units

-Increasing the amount of landscaping and depth of the garden, reorganising the
ground floor layout to increase outlook from Plot 1 ground floor windows

-Increasing the floor areas of bedrooms to meet minimum standards

-Increasing the amenity garden areas to exceed minimum standards

-Agreeing to pay educational contributions

-Meeting lifetime home standards

-Removing the front 'gated’ entrance to the development

3.3 Relevant Planning History

64786/APP/2008/2373  Land Rear Of 81-93 Hilliard Road Northwood

TWO STOREY BUILDING COMPRISING 4 TWO-BEDROOM FLATS, WITH ASSOCIATED
CAR PARKING, CYCLE STORE AND BIN STORE INVOLVING DEMOLITION OF EXISTING
BUILDINGS

Decision: 15-12-2008 Refused

64786/APP/2009/452 Land Rear Of 81-93 Hilliard Road Northwood

ERECTION OF 2 TWO STOREY BUILDINGS EACH COMPRISING OF TWO 2-BEDROOM
MAISONETTE FLATS, WITH ASSOCIATED CAR PARKING, CYCLE STORE AND BIN
STORE INVOLVING DEMOLITION OF EXISTING BUILDINGS.

Decision: 21-07-2009 Refused Appeal: 04-03-2010 Dismissed

64786/APP/2012/2421 Land Rear Of 81-93 Hilliard Road Northwood
2 x two storey, 3- bed semi detached dwellings and 1 x two storey, 3- bed detached dwelling

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 121



with associated parking and amenity space, involving demolition of existing material shed, office
building and material storage shelter.

Decision: 07-03-2013  Withdrawn

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Application ref. 64786/APP/2012/2421 for a similar development comprising 3 houses was
recommended for refusal and due to be heard at Planning committee on the 7 March
2013, however the application was withdrawn shortly before Planning Committee.
However the potential reasons for refusal at the time are listed below:

1. The proposal by reason of its siting, overall layout, size and site coverage, would result
in a development that fails to harmonise with the established character of the surrounding
area to the detriment of the character and appearance of the Old Northwood Area of
Special Character. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies BE15, BE13 and BE19 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: 'Residential Layouts'.

2. The proposal by reason of its siting and layout would result in a poor level of outlook
from the ground floor windows to the detriment of the future occupiers of Plot 1, contrary
to Policies BE19 and BE21 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and Section 4.0 of the Council's HDAS "Residential Layouts".

3. The proposed units fail to provide an adequate amount of internal floor space for
individual bedrooms, and therefore would fail to afford an adequate standard of residential
amenity for their future occupiers. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policy BE19 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), the Mayor of
London's adopted Housing Supplementary Design Guide (November 2012) and the
adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

4. The proposed development fails to afford an adequate standard of residential amenity
space for future occupiers by virtue of the layout and size of the amenity space. The
proposal is therefore contrary to Policies BE19 and BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), the Mayor of London's adopted
Housing Supplementary Design Guide (November 2012) and the adopted Supplementary
Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

5. The development is estimated to give rise to a number of children of school age and
additional provision would need to be made in the locality due to the shortfall of places in
schools serving the area. Given that a legal agreement at this stage has not been offered
or secured, the proposal is considered to be contrary to Policy R17 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the adopted London Borough
of Hillingdon Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document (July 2008) and
updated Education Chapter 4 (August 2010).

6. The proposed dwellings, by reason of failing to provide units which would be easily
adaptable for use by a wheelchair disabled person, or to Lifetime Home standards, fails to
meet the needs of people with disabilities, contrary to Policy 3A.4 of the London Plan and
the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: "Accessible Hillingdon."

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 122



An appeal (ref. APP/R5510/A/09/211540) was dismissed with regards to application
64786/APP/2009/452 FUL, detailed below. However, the Inspector considered that the
proposed use of the existing vehicular crossover and access was acceptable.

Planning permission (reference 64786/APP/2009/452 FUL) was refused for the erection of
2 two storey buildings each comprising of two 2-bedroom maisonette flats, with associated
car parking, cycle store and bin store, and involving the demolition of the existing
buildings. The application was refused on the following grounds:

1. The proposal by reason of its siting, overall layout, size and site coverage, would result
in a development that fails to harmonise with the established character of the surrounding
area. The proposal would result in a scale of buildings and hard surfacing that is
inappropriate for the plot and would compromise residential development standards to the
detriment of the living conditions of prospective occupiers. This would also be to the
detriment of the character and appearance of the Old Northwood Area of Special
Character. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies BE13, BE19 and BE38 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007), the
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: 'Residential Layouts'

2. The proposal, by reason of overlooking and loss of privacy of the ground floor rear
habitable rooms from the shared communal garden, would fail to afford an acceptable
standard of residential accommodation for future occupiers. The proposal is therefore
contrary to Policies BE19, BE23 and BE24 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007) and the Supplementary Planning Document
HDAS: Residential Layouts.

3. The proposal by reason of its siting would result in the provision of a poor level of
outlook to the detriment of the future occupiers of the ground floor dwelling units, contrary
to Policies BE19 and BE21 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies,
September 2007) and Section 4.0 of the Council's HDAS "Residential Layouts".

4. The proposed development by reason of the restricted width of the vehicular access
represents a significant threat to highway and pedestrian safety, as it is likely to result in
vehicles needing to wait in the road until the access way is clear. As such, the proposal is
contrary to Policies AM7 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

5. The proposal fails to provide adequate refuse collection facilities, including its collection
point, which would be in excess of the travel distance of refuse operators. The proposal
would therefore be likely to create a poor quality of environment, result in refuse vehicles
stopping up the free flow of traffic on the public highway and be contrary to the Council's
recycling policies. The proposal is contrary to Policy AM7(ii) of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and policy 4.A3 of the London Plan.

6. The proposed dwellings, by reason of failing to provide units which would be easily
adaptable for use by a wheelchair disabled person, or to Lifetime Home standards, fails to
meet the needs of people with disabilities, contrary to Policy 3A.4 of the London Plan and
the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: "Accessible Hillingdon."

Planning permission (reference 64786/APP/2008/2373) for the erection of a two storey
building comprising 4 two-bedroom flats, with associated car parking, cycle store and bin
store involving the demolition of existing buildings was refused in December 2008 for the
following reasons:

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 123



1. The proposal by reason of its siting, design, overall layout, size, bulk, site coverage and
excessive density, would result in a cramped overdevelopment of the site and an
incongruous form of development which would detract from the character and appearance
of the surrounding area and the Old Northwood Area of Special Local Character therefore
failing to harmonise with the established character of the surrounding area. The proposal
would result in a scale of building and hard surfacing that is inappropriate for the plot and
would compromise residential development standards to the detriment of the living
conditions of prospective occupiers. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies BES5,
BE13, BE19 and BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007), the Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts
and Policy 3A.3 of the London Plan.

2. The proposal, by reason of overlooking and loss of privacy of the ground floor rear
habitable rooms from the shared communal garden, would fail to afford an acceptable
standard of residential accommodation for future occupiers. The proposal is therefore
contrary to Policies BE19 and BE24 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
(Saved Policies, September 2007) and the Supplementary Planning Document HDAS:
Residential Layouts.

3. The floor area of the proposed dwellings is below the minimum 63m? internal floor area
required for a two-bedroom flat. As such the proposal fails to provide a satisfactory
residential environment for future occupiers, contrary to Policy BE19 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and the Supplementary
Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

4. The development is estimated to give rise to a significant number of children of school
age and additional provision would need to be made in the locality due to the shortfall of
places in schools serving the area. Given that a legal agreement at this stage has not
been offered or secured, the proposal is considered to be contrary to Policy R17 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Part 2 Policies:

BES5 New development within areas of special local character

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 124



BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

H4 Mix of housing units
AM14 New development and car parking standards.
AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

HDAS-LAY  Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 3.4 (2011) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2011) Quality and design of housing developments
LPP 5.13 (2011) Sustainable drainage

LPP 5.3 (2011) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 8.2 (2011) Planning obligations

LPP 8.3 (2011) Community infrastructure levy

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1  Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations

External Consultees

32 neighbours were consulted and a site notice was erected adjacent the site, expiring on 11
November 2012. 11 individual letters were received and a petition with 32 signatories as follows:

2 individual letters of objection on the following grounds:

i. Design and Layout

ii. Cramped

iii. Dominance

iv. Traffic

v. Parking

vi. Poor Aspect

vii. Height

viii. Gate causing a nuisance to road safety and wheelchair users

A Petition with 25 signatories objects on the following grounds:

i. Over-dominant design, size and proportions

ii. Poor outlook

iii. Density

iv. Negative impact on open, light and airy verdant rear garden
v. Detrimental to amenities of adjoining occupiers

vi. Detrimental to the Old Northwood ASLC

vii. Detrimental to highway and pedestrian safety

Northwood Hills Residents Association object on the following grounds:

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 125



i. Layout and appearance
ii. Out of character with ASLC
iii. Traffic and congestion

Internal Consultees

Environmental Protection Unit:

As a number of sensitive receptors are being introduced and a works is indicated adjacent to the
site it may be advisable to include the standard contaminated land condition and imported soils
condition.

Highways Officer

NO OBJECTION.

When undertaking assessment of the development it is noted that the PTAL index within the area is
1a/1b, which is classified as very poor. Therefore, it is considered that the maximum parking
provision of 2 car parking spaces per dwelling is acceptable.

When considering the proposed means of vehicle access, it is noted that this measures
approximately 2.5m in width for a distance of approximately 20.0m into the site from the adjacent
highway. The adequacy of this access arrangement was a concern which was raised within the
refusal reasons of previous applications.

However, it is noted that there has been a previous planning appeal at the site (planning application
Ref. 64786/APP/2009/452), where the Planning Inspector considered access to be acceptable
even though 2 vehicles could not pass side by side. The Inspector considered visibility along the
access to be good and with sufficient room for on-site manoeuvring and given the modest size of
the proposed scheme, occupants would likely generate less traffic than the existing use at the site.
As a result, the scheme was not considered to be prejudicial to highway safety.

When considering the location of the refuse collection point, it is noted that the Manual for Streets
quotes Schedule 1, Part H of the Building regulations, which specifies that residents should not be
required to carry waste more than 30.0m Also refuse vehicles should be able access the storage
point from within 25.0m. From the submitted plans, it is considered that both criteria can be met by
the development proposals.

Therefore having considered the development and the Planning Inspector's comments, it is
considered that the proposals are acceptable and an objection is not raised in this instance.

CONSERVATION & URBAN DESIGN
NO OBJECTION

ACCESSIBILITY OFFICER
Whilst the development demonstrates that many of the lifetime home Standards full compliance
should be secured by condition should the application be recommended for approval.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

There is no objection in principle to the demolition of the existing buildings and the change
of use to residential use as Hilliard Road is predominantly residential. Although the site is
located to the rear of existing gardens on Hilliard Road, it comprises previously developed
land and does not constitute back garden development. Furthermore, the Inspector stated
in Paragraph 4 of his decision that 'in principle there is no objection to the redevelopment
of the site for residential purposes'.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 126



7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

Paragraph 4.1 of HDAS Residential Layouts specifies that in new developments numerical
densities are considered to be more appropriate to larger sites and will not be used in the
assessment of schemes of less than 10 units, such as this proposal. The key
consideration is therefore whether the development sits comfortably within its environment
rather than a consideration of the density of the proposal.

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

See considerations in section 7.07 below in relation to the impact on the Area of Special
Character.

The proposal is not located in proximity to any Listed Buildings or within a Conservation
Area. Nor is it considered that the proposal would have any adverse impacts on
archaeological remains.

Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
requires all new development to maintain the quality of the built environment including
providing high quality urban design. Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) seek to ensure that new development
complements and improves the character and amenity of the area. Policy BE5 requires
new developments within Areas of Special Local Character to harmonise with the
materials, design features, architectural style and building heights predominant in the
area. Policy BE22 requires a minimum of 1m separation distance to the side boundary for
the full height of a two storey building to maintain a degree of openness in residential
developments.

The design of the proposed development incorporates elements of arts and crafts design,
which would harmonise with the overall appearance and character of the area and as
such infuse more interest and character to the new group of buildings. Chimney features,
mock tudor cladding, render and soft facing brickwork reflect the architectural detailing
and materials prevalent within the locality.

The omission of a residential unit has now enhanced the overall layout, size and site
coverage of the properties, which is reflected in the increase in amenity space provision
and landscaping, an increase in separation distances to the rear boundaries and a internal
floor areas which meet minimum standards. The properties maintain the specified 1m gap
to the boundary of the site. Overall, it is considered that the proposed scheme provides an
improved layout and would now harmonise with the prevailing open and verdant rear
garden environment.

Overall, the proposed development would now provide a good quality of urban design and
would be in accordance with Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic
Policies (November 2012), Policies BE5, BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) Policies 3.5 and 7.4 of the London Plan
(2011) and the Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) HDAS Residential Layouts.
Impact on neighbours

Paragraph 4.11 of HDAS Residential Layouts states that the 45° principle will be applied
to new development to ensure the amenity of adjoining occupiers and future occupiers are
protected. Paragraph 4.9 states that a minimum acceptable distance to minimise the

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 127



negative impact of overbearing and overshadowing is 15m. Paragraph 4.12 requires a
minimum of 21m distance between facing habitable room windows to prevent overlooking
and loss of privacy.

The proposed dwellings would not affect the 45-degree line of sight nor would they project
beyond the rear of the nearest adjoining properties. Plot 1 and Plot 2 would be 22.3
metres away from the nearest adjoining properties to the south-east (Plot 1 to No.85
Hillard Road). In addition, the proposed properties would be approximately 2.0m lower in
height than the properties in Hilliard Road. As such, the proposed development would
maintain adequate separation distances from the adjoining properties and would not
cause an undue loss of daylight, sunlight, visual intrusion or loss of privacy. It is therefore
considered that overall the proposed development would not constitute an un-neighbourly
form of development in accordance with Policies BE19, BE20 and BE21 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Section 4.0 of HDAS
Residential Layouts.
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

HDAS Paragraph 4.7 indicates that consideration will be given to the ability of residential
developments to provide satisfactory indoor living spaces and amenities. Paragraphs 4.6
to 4.8 and Table 2 of the Council's SPD HDAS: Residential Layouts advises that 3
bedroom units should have a minimum floor area of 81 square metres. Furthermore,
London Plan Policy 3.5 and Table 3.3 states that a 3 bedroom, 4-person house should
have a minimum size of 87 square metres. On this basis, the proposed units provide 108
square metres which exceeds the policy requirement.

The Mayor's Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (November 2012) requires the
minimum area for a single bedroom to be 8 square metres and a minimum floor area for a
double bedroom to be 12 square metres. Furthermore, each home for two or more people
should contain at least one double bedroom/twin room. The proposed development
accords with guidance, each plot providing three bedrooms, comprising a single bedroom
providing 8.5 square metres of internal floor area, and two double bedrooms providing
between 12-13 square metres of floor area.

HDAS advises in Paragraph 4.15 that 3 bedroom houses should have a minimum private
amenity area of 60 square metres. Plot 1 would provide 98 square metres of amenity
space and Plot 2 would provide 100 square metres of amenity space, exceeding minimum
requirements.

In terms of outlook, a ground living room and landing windows on Plot 1 directly face and
would be 1m away from a 1.8m high brick wall to the side, however as this living room
window is a secondary living room window and the landing window would not serve a
habitable room the development would have adequate outlook and light. The distance
from the ground floor windows to the rear boundary has now been increased from 5.25m
(in the refused scheme) to 6.25m (in the withdrawn scheme) to 9.0m from the single
storey structure which measures 3.1 metres in height, which would provide adequate light
and outlook from the windows.

The proposed habitable room windows of plots 2 face away from neighbouring properties
to the rear of the garden. Although there is a 2.0m high wall to the side boundary and a
2.5m high wall to the rear, it is considered that the separation distance of 8.73m would be
appropriate. Notably, this relationship would not be contrary to the recommendations of
the Residential Layouts SPD and would be improvement to the previously refused scheme
which provided a separation distance to the rear boundary of 6.0m.

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 128



7.10

7.1

712

713

7.14

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

719

Overall, it is considered that the proposed development would provide good
accommodation for future occupiers in terms of internal floor area, amenity space
provision and outlook, and addresses the previous concerns and reasons for refusal. It is
therefore considered that the proposed development would accord with Policies BE19 and
BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012),
Policy 3.5 and Table 3.3 of the London Plan (2011), the adopted SPD HDAS Residential
Layouts and the Mayor's Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (November 2012).
Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Although the previous scheme (ref. 64786/APP/2009/452) was refused on highway
grounds, the Planning Inspector considered the existing access to be acceptable even
though 2 vehicles could not pass side by side. The Inspector considered that visibility
along the access was good and with sufficient room for on-site maneuvering and given
the modest size of the proposed scheme and the occupants would likely generate less
traffic than the existing use at the site. As a result, the scheme was not considered to be
prejudicial to highway safety.

The location of the refuse collection point would allow residents not to carry waste for
more than 30m and vehicles to access the point within 25m in accordance with Manual for
Streets. Therefore having considered the development and the Planning Inspector's
comments, it is considered that the proposals are acceptable and an objection is not
raised in this instance from Council's Highway Officer.

Urban design, access and security

Please refer to section 7.09 and 7.12.
Disabled access

All new development is expected to meet Lifetime Home Standard in accordance with
London Plan Policy 3.8 and the Council's Supplementary Planning Document HDAS:
Accessible Hillingdon. The proposed development would be conditioned to ensure it
complies with Lifetime Home Standards, in line with the requirements of the Accessibility
Officer.

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

No trees are present on the site and the site is considered to be of no significant
ecological value, however a landscaping scheme has been conditioned.
Sustainable waste management

The application has shown a suitable location for the bin stores at the entrance to the site,
which are acceptably located for the refuse lorry on collection days.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Policy 5.3 of the London Plan requires the highest standards of sustainable design and
construction in all developments to improve the environmental performance of new
developments and to adapt to the effects of climate change over their lifetime. The
proposal seeks to achieve Code for Sustainable Homes Level 4 and this would be
conditioned.

Flooding or Drainage Issues

The application site is not within a Flood Risk Area and the issue of sustainable water
management has been conditioned.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Comments on Public Consultations

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 129



The comments made by the individual responses are noted and are considered within the
main report.
7.20 Planning Obligations

The proposed development is CIL liable, however as the proposed floorspace is less than
the existing there is no charge (i.e. 267.40 of existing floorspace would be demolished, the
proposed floor area is 221 square metres, therefore the net additional gross internal floor
area is -46.40 square metres).

The proposed development would provide a total of 16 habitable rooms which would
trigger the requirement for Educational Contributions. The sum of £25,953 is sought which
has been agreed by the applicant in accordance with Policy R17 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
7.22 Other Issues

Not applicable to this application.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor
General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and
use of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to
the application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and
also the guidance contained in "Probity in Planning, 2009".

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related
to the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure
Levy 2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 130



Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have "due regard" to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality
of opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different "protected
characteristics". The "protected characteristics" are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have "due regard" to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular "protected characteristics" would be affected by
a proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances."

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

It is considered that overall the scheme has adressed all of the previous concerns and
reasons for refusal upheld in the Inspector's decision. As such the scheme is now
recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
HDAS: Residential Layouts

The London Plan 2011

The Mayor's Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (November 2012)
HDAS: Accessible Hillingdon

National Planning Policy Framework

Contact Officer: Henrietta Ashun Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 131



-}
(O QO —co Z
20 L 8% @)
29 2 3% a
5 ©
O o 82
oz »n =% s (U =
om = oD >H g
032 £5 ] Z &
oI & 3% ¥
[¢]
OT J ¢ —
Qu = =% —
NO n 32
e o -
O~ g =
| S
<
o «
10 m.
b S
o < o
-
14 ©
T L 0 S
P m ©
) %) o)
=3
9 3
3w 4 W
o - ™
-n 4 w
-
- O 6 =
0 =z o ™ —
R1 eI
o sl Q
= S N |£
] g & mA
S |E
» = WA o
o ®© < = [0 LK
o n8 c
‘d |7 ——
1< S c 0O
; c Y |c
o SO s Z
n o o
[0
c 2 £
T EB 1S @
> 25652 £ 8
C 5 208 5 £%
© Sb.m.w..n.a. = W <
cC o $58 0 © - >
3 8832 8. 2%
S i 2§ &8
o 2 %8tgg2% 58
2 5 2958323 58
N R 82222l S 80
o h.;WWD..m.eb 8oy
E =5 = = c =
H E 2225855 SR
- T S325285% 225
SLds 225838 958
=2 L FSnoOo<> © <+




Agenda ltem 13

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address MIDDLESEX STADIUM BREAKSPEAR ROAD RUISLIP
Development: Single storey front extension

LBH Ref Nos: 18443/APP/2013/3732

Drawing Nos: HSDO0O05 Proposed plans and Elevations (amended with ramp access)
BLOCK PLAN
LOCATION PLAN
HSDO001 EXISTING PLANS AND ELEVATIONS

Date Plans Received:  16/12/2013 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 26/02/2014
Date Application Valid: 07/01/2014
1. SUMMARY

The application seeks planning permission for a single storey front extension to the main
building. The extension measures 6.9m wide, 3.8m deep and 5.1m high(max). The
extension would be built of brick beneath a tile pitched roof. The application site is
located within an area of Green Belt.

The application site is located near the northern boundary of The Middlesex Stadium site,
located off of Breakspear Road. The Middlesex Stadium site is bordered by fields to the
west, north and east. Residential properties are located south-east of the site. There is a
clubhouse type building located within the site adjacent to the car parking area. It is this
building that is proposed to be extended.

The proposed scheme comprises the erection of a single storey extension at the
Middlesex Stadium. It is not considered that the proposal is harmful to the character of
the area due to its position, design and size. Similarly it is not considered that the
proposed development would constitute a disproportionate extension to the original
building and is therefore not inappropriate development and is not harmful to the
openness of the Green Belt.

Accordingly the application is recommended for permission.
2, RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 COM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, labelled BLOCK PLAN,
HSDO001 EXISTING PLANS AND ELEVATIONS & HSD005 PROPOSED PLANS AND

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 133



ELEVATIONS (amended with ramp access 27/02/2014) and shall thereafter be
retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (July 2011).

3 COmM7 Materials (Submission)

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces, have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details and be
retained as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

INFORMATIVES

1 147 Damage to Verge

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex,
UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

2 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to grant planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

3 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to grant planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 134



BE18 Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

OL1 Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new
development

oL4 Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings

OoL5 Development proposals adjacent to the Green Belt

4 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies.
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1  Site and Locality

The application site is located near the northern boundary of The Middlesex Stadium site,
located off of Breakspear Road. The Middlesex Stadium site is bordered by fields to the
west, north and east. Residential properties are located south-east of the site. There is a
clubhouse type building located within the site adjacent to the car parking area. It is this
building that is proposed to be extended.

The clubhouse building is single storey rectangular structure constructed of brick beneath
a tile roof. To the front there is a fenced area for storage of materials such as gas bottles,
small plant etc.

The application site is located within an area of Green Belt.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks planning permission for a single storey front extension to the main
building. The extension measures 6.9m wide, 3.8m deep and 5.1m high(max). The
extension would be built of brick beneath a tile pitched roof.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

18443/APP/2012/3037 The Middlesex Stadium Breakspear Road Ruislip

The installation of a 24m lightweight lattice mast with 3 no. antennas installed on 3m head
frame, 1 no. 300mm dish, radio equipment housing and ancillary development.

Decision:

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 135



Comment on Relevant Planning History
There is no relevant planning history relevant to the current application.

4, Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE18 Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.
OLA1 Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new development
oL4 Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings

OL5 Development proposals adjacent to the Green Belt

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1  Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

1 neighbouring occupier and the Ruislip Residents Association were notified of the proposed
development on 8th January 2014 and a site notice was erected. By close of the public
consultation, no consultation responses has been received.

Internal Consultees

The Council's Access Officer commented has no objection and considers the scheme acceptable
subject to a condition requiring a ramp at the entrance.

Officer Comment: It is considered that this could be provided under the buildings regulations
process, however, the applicant has provided an amended plan showing the ramp access.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 136



7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

The principle of the development

The first consideration is whether the development constitutes inappropriate development
within the Green Belt which would require very special circumstances to be approved.
Paragraph 89 of the NPPF states, "the extension or alteration of a building provided that it
does not result in disproportionate additions over and above the size of the original
building;

The original building has an area of approximately 246.8 sq.m, the proposed extension is
26.2 sq. m. This is an increase of approximately 10%. The height is lower than the main
building. It is therefore not considered to be a disproportionate extension and does not
constitute inappropriate development. It is considered, therefore, that the proposed
development complies with Policies OL1 and OL4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2
Saved Policies (November 2012) and does not conflict with the NPPF. As such the
principle of development is acceptable.

Density of the proposed development

Not Applicable to the current application.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not Applicable to the current application.
Airport safeguarding

Not Applicable to the current application.
Impact on the green belt

Notwithstanding the above conclusion that the principle of development is acceptable, the
impact upon the objectives needs to be considered, primarily with regard to the openness
of the Green Belt. The proposed development is of a small scale and is located within the
established stadium complex in close proximity to other existing development. The
proposed extension is small and will be seen against this existing development. Whilst any
development could impact on the openness of the Green Belt it is the degree of impact
that needs to be considered and whether this is material and harmful to the wider
openness of the Metropolitan Green Belt.

Policies OL4 and OL5 reflect current advice in the NPPF. The policies seek to ensure
development does not harmfully increase the built up area of the Green Belt. Given the
small percentage increase in the size of the building and the siting of the proposed
development, the proposed development will not have a detrimental impact upon the
openness of the Green Belt. As such the proposed development complies with Policy
OL1, OL4 and OLS5 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 Saved Policies (November 2012)
and NPPF policy.

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The clubhouse building is set well within the site at the rear of the car park area. It is
approximately 76m from the the vehicular access to the site. Therefore, the view of the
clubhouse from the road is not significant, due to this distance, which is also further
minimised by the presence of isolated trees.

The proposed extension is a small addition and is subordinate to the main building.
Indeed the introduction of the small pitched roof addition adds some interest to an
otherwise bland original building. The extension and roof design is in keeping with the
main building, the roof is set below the main roof by 0.6m. The proposal has a pair of
entrance doors which clearly identifies the proposed extension as the entrance to the
clubhouse. It is therefore considered that the proposed extension is not harmful to the
character and appearance of the subject property or wider area.

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 137



7.08

7.09

7.10

7.1

712

713

7.14

715

7.16

717

As such the proposal complies with policies BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan
Part 2 Saved Policies (November 2012).
Impact on neighbours

The proposed development has no windows and only has a pair of doors in the front
elevation and in the side elevation. The extension serves to provide an entrance area to
the clubhouse and a toilet area. It does not provide accommodation where customers
would be sitting or activities taking place.

The nearest residential property to the proposed extension is some 57m away. The
proposed scheme will not generate any additional noise and disturbance to that which
occurs now. There are now windows facing the residnetial properties and there is
established boundary treatment between the proposed extension and the houses.

Therefore, given the size and design of the proposed extension, the proposed use and the
significant distance to the nearest residential property it is considered that the proposed
scheme will not be have an unacceptable impact on neighbouring occupiers die to loss of
light, privacy, dominance or disturbance.

Accordingly the proposed scheme complies with Policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 Saved Policies (November 2012).
Living conditions for future occupiers

Not Applicable to the current application.
Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The proposed extension will not lead to a loss of any existing car parking, of which there is
an extensive parking area nor will it change the access arrangements. As the proposed
extension provides an entrance area it does not lead to an increase in traffic over the
existing use.

The proposed development therefore complies with policies AM7 and AM14 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 Saved Policies (November 2012).
Urban design, access and security

This matter has been addressed previously.
Disabled access

The Council's Access Officer has raised no objection subject to the imposition of a
planning condition requiring details of an access ramp to be submitted and approved, as
mentioned this could be addressed through the building regulations process, however, the
applicant has provided an amended plan that shows the proposed ramp access.
Therefore, it is considerd that the scheme is acceptable on this ground and complies with
the Council's requirements in Accessible Hillingdon.

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not Applicable to the current application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Not Applicable to the current application.
Sustainable waste management

Not Applicable to the current application.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not Applicable to the current application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not Applicable to the current application.

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 138



7.18

719

7.20

7.21

7.22

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not Applicable to the current application.
Comments on Public Consultations

2 letters were sent to local residents and The Residents Association on 8 January 2014
and the site notice was posted on 16 January 2014. No representations have been
received in response to the public consultation.

Planning Obligations

Not Applicable
Expediency of enforcement action

Not Applicable
Other Issues

No further issues.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor
General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and
use of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to
the application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and
also the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related
to the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure
Levy 2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 139



Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regardto the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The ¢ protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
None received.

10. CONCLUSION

The proposed scheme comprises the erection of a single storey extension at the
Middlesex Stadium. It is not considered that the proposal is harmful to the character of the
area due to its position, design and size. Similarly it is not considered that the proposed
development is inappropriate development and is not harmful to the openness of the
Green Belt.

Accordingly the application is recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved Policies (November 2012)
Supplementary Planning Document 'Accessible Hillingdon'(January 2012)
National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012)

Contact Officer: Mark Jones Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 140



Football

Ground

/ The Woodman

Football Ground

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database

rights 2013 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address LONDON BOROUGH
_ _ OF HILLINGDON
Middlesex Stadium Residents Services
Breakspear Road N o
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Planning Application Ref: Scale
18443/APP/2013/3732 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
March 2014

North Applic¢atiosi

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 142



Agenda ltem 14

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted

Page 143



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 150



Agenda ltem 15

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted

Page 151



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 160



Agenda Annex

Plans for
North
Planning Committee

25th March 2014




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 77 EASTCOTE ROAD RUISLIP MIDDX

Development: Change of use from Use Class C3 (Dwelling House) to Use Class C3/D1
(Dwelling House/ Non-Residential Institutions) for use of childcare within the
domestic setting

LBH Ref Nos: 62431/APP/2013/2341

Date Plans Received: 15/08/2013 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 21/08/2013

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 162



Mapping Ordnance
sourced from Eg Survey /\

509500 E

509600 E

Location Map

509631 E

187851 N 187851 N
187800 N 187800 N
187700 N 187700 N
o
187651 N D 187651 N
o [, w (4]
3 2 3 2
s o (25 [o7]
(%] o | o w
= o o —
m m m m

Produced 29/07/2013 from the Ordnance Survey
National Geographic Database and incorporating
surveyed revision available at this date. ® Crown
Copyright 2013

Reproduction in whole or in part is prohibited without

the prior permission of Ordnance Survey
0 20 40

Ordnance Survey and the OS Symbol are registered
rademarks of Ordnance Survey, the national mapping Scale 1:1250
agency of Great Britain.

The representation of a road, track or path is no Supplied By: A Boville Wright
SN STIRel A I T WA, Serial number: 001113541

The representation of features as lines is no evidence ~ Plot Centre Coordinates: 509531, 187751
of a property boundary.

Page 163

77 Eastcote Road
HA4 8BG



TOSEFTE

‘opg B3

ddtil 30T T

A manea avecy
o0C 05T

apessg

“fivp vz Bunnp Rypony aava

N2 v puy SEUIAT B3 i widy
|iwieg v 50 suowiad Rgaadoad a1

a0 jend £3/1d 03
|oivapisz €9 a5m 40 Abunga
v gy wargedde angaadsonay

L Sumusg

xﬂuwx_z
sy
pody 3033503 LL

AL qer

0D SN T IN
s

DOGTTY S6810 X¥
DOSTTY §6810 2L

oD ¥ Mued H'O
wEuidosy
SWONSIANY e

Y

N0 PR 34 ST SRS [y

synandoad pog Brynars 1 prppss
%iaﬂ:{fa pots B G @ 2 ooy TR
-y 00T T 9[oFs wH|d HIS

=

PO g e iiadad s iy
T Oy Fsaszs 0 desp paw iin 3 g e

srwaid 241 63 e s 0 s

[P SrRaaRIED 150 0

) g 03 ing

L EE e
food e
e S —
RS, . o 5]
e Pl 7
/.... &t
g I N A —
-_ 7 //\/\\
- = F ....n\. I”/u_
q_\ 1
_ a A .

Wg o Wy we  wz ow o]

g

W 0T PO

Page 164




Motes

Site boundary

For identification purposes anhy.

This ¢opy has been made by or with
the autharity of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, 0 esigns and Patents

At 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

@ Crovn copyright and database
rights 2013 Ordnance Surwey
00099252

T7 Eastcote Road
Ruislip

ILDNDDN BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDQON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Lidiridye, Midds, LIS 10100
Telephone Mo Usbrdge 250111

Flanning Application Hef; =cale
62431/APP{2013/2341 1:1,250
Flanning Committee Date
North Applicattopp| March2014




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 4A EASTBURY AVENUE NORTHWOQOD
Development: Part two storey, part single storey front/side/rear extension involving raising of
roof

LBH Ref Nos: 36828/APP/2014/184

Date Plans Received: 20/01/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 27/01/2014

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 166



LOCATION PLAN 4A EASTBURY AVENUE
SCALE 1:1250 Page 167 NORTHWOOD NA6 3LG



8 _ L _ 9 [ [ | A I I £ Z
) [p— 00Z 14 002:} 37VIS HY3ININ
. NY1d ¥0078
JOOMHLYON JAV AdNGLSVY3I VY SONIMYEQ DNINNYTd
002'L SL0ZL0°LE N ay wog gL 9l tl 21 0l g
ajels ajeq aweu a4 ajep - Aq parosddy Kg payray]y fq paubisag
3)UaJBaY/ ON 34y 343 voisuawip ‘|elsajew ‘vorjeubisap ‘awen a3y | Ajyuenp | Jasway

payIay) _w.__.__mr_m__m_ ajeq _ 340U UDISIATY _oz..,om _

Page 168

8 _ L 9 _ q _ o £ 7



8 L _ 9 [T [ [ 1] £ _ Z _
o [ — 10Z 1d 00L: 1 3TVWOS HY3INIT
) Nv1d HOOT4 LSHI 8 ANNOYD ONILSIX3
JOOMHLYON JAV AdNGLSV3I VY SONIMYEQ DNINNY1d
0oL 0Z10'6L E a woL 6 8 L 0
ajeis ajeq aweu a4 34ep - Ag parcsddy Kg payrayy Aq paubisag
3IUBJ343Y/ ON 3T 243 uoisuawip ‘e ew 'vorjeubisap 'awensayjiy | A4yuenp _ JaJway|
00L:t 00L:1
NV1d HOO1d LSHId DNILSIX3 NY1d HOO14 ANNOHD ONILSIX3
S 7]
N AT
~ 7 |
N B y / _
~ Wooya3a - | ONIAM
~ s |
~ P |
e N7 e
Y | L _ _
- /_ 7| | _,
_ _ >
WoOHa38 _ [} AvMTIVH 9INIa o
- | ©
NNV _ _ N N ©
— = _ >
- N y h : ©
~ _ _@_ | (jl__ o
~
~ _ N
_____Oow_ommf | NooHa3d NIHOL D
N\ | ~
AN
| I
||||||||||||| =
JOVHYD ALILN
 ON ONIQTING
payIay) _w.__:mr_m_m_ ajeQ _ 30U UOISIABY _oz__,wm _
8 L 9 | S £ l




8 _ 9 [ 1 [ ] £ _ Z _ l
- - FARY _ ]
jaays | uonipg 202 1d 00131 31WIS HY3INN
SNV1d HOOT4 1SHI4 8 ANNOYHYD d350d04d f
JOOMHLHON JAY AdNGLSVI VY SONIMYHA DNINNY1d _ _ _ _ _
0oL 0T 1061 = au woL 6 2 L 9 S ¥ e Z 0
ajels ajeq aweu a4 3jep - Aq parcsddy Kg payrayy Aq paubisag
33034334/ 0N 3214y 343 uojsuaWIp 'je1sajew ‘voiyeubisap ‘awen 3l | Apyuenp | jadway
00k 00F1
NV1d HOO4 LSHI4 d3SOd0Hd NY1d H0O714 ANNOHD d3S0Od0Hd
o — e e e i)
a K
< |
i _
s
WooHa3g W 7 _ AdvHa ONIAIT
y |
s |
4 |
~ P
NN S _
//_\ g |
| Wooxa3a _ ONINI
| o
I | N~
| | -
— : %
S _ ©
[ o _ o
I
_ NOOYa3g _
A _
g _
7
N |
~ |
sl T N |
~
~
Wooya3a NoOoHa38,
~ N |
N |
¥ ON ONIQTING
payIay) _w‘__.;mr_m_m_ ajeq _ 30U UDISIABY _oz__.wm _ _
8 9 | S | £ l l




F

|Signature| Checked

| Date

| RevNol Revision nofe

PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION

1:100

PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION

1:100

EXISTING REAR ELEVATION

1:100

NI AEINEEn

EXISTING FRONT ELEVATION

1:100

Scale
1:100

Sheet

Article No./Reference

Date

19.01.2014

File name

Approved by - date

LA EASTBURY AVE. NORTHWOOD

Edition

PL 203

Checked by

Itemref | Quantity | Title/Name, designation, material, dimension etc

Designed by

KB

PLANNING DRAWINGS
EXISTING & PROPOSED

FRONT AND REAR ELEVATIONS

10m

N

LINEAR SCALE 1:100

C




[ | L
i |
f D
H o_ |95
= =3 O3
] @ I
& 3 — | 5
| & | & o | =
3 O |d.
= gZ
» o8| i
3 Z|&3g| =
— <T
>_
a || .s
sl |2 &
Sl w
“n
S <C
s|le |
& | <
A -
el S
w| o
€l
HE
= 2| &
o = e 2
> o © S
= L gz <
L = g'u E
L | 28 o
o] w S | 88
2 a2 w ZO0 %
2 w =) z =5k
5 = w b= TG
@ T — S S
3 o I ) S o
3 — = ===
|| oc o 18 | E=%
2 (] o ¢le | ZB g
s L o Sloe| SX i
= 8 = s|lax| i
a o E o
oS €N s
cc >
o — w ~—
| ™
=
=
o
l—
<C
=
|
=z m
= w
—
< = £
3 @ :
— c
Ll w @
L —
o (]
7} = ©
'—
e ® 8 -
>
. w — 8
e © =
w w
3 - |E
o 8 @
[ z
o — =+ w
=
-
o]
o~
Page 172
- ’
[ ¥ L




Motes

Site boundary

For identification purposes anhy.

This ¢opy has been made by or with
the autharity of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, 0 esigns and Patents

At 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

@ Crovn copyright and database
rights 2013 Ordnance Surwey
00099252

Site Address

4A Eastbury Avenue

ILDNDDN BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDQON

North Appli¢attors March 2014

Northwood Residents Services
Civic Centre, Lidiridye, Midds, LIS 10100
Telephone Mo Usbrdge 250111
Flanning Application Hef; =cale
36828/APP/2014/1184 1:1,250
Flanning Committee Date

| CINTIIN




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 2 LINKSWAY NORTHWOOD

Development: Two storey, 5-bed, detached dwelling with habitable roofspace involving
demolition of existing dwelling.

LBH Ref Nos: 36910/APP/2013/2338

Date Plans Received: 15/08/2013 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 13/02/2014

Date Application Valid: 04/09/2013 04/09/2013
18/NR/2N13

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 174



INSSI ONINNYId

BO0Z PEDOMY SUrEn paonpoud SEm GUswED s3] BUWEI SR
W0 POEIE B0 O SLOIELBLIP GH R0 BUrisaunucs siojeq Bis uo
PTG B (SIL SUOIUSLIR [y “PEONPCIda) aRmsa0 o Dk
B0 10U 15T PUR 3 DI SEBMEY o 25 19 Aumdaud 5| Bupweip sl

PEEETERE T
"ASN0OH IASHY

% LoLd ovvl

uorsAR o Buaiig ‘o 1asiud
™ £L0Z 2NV dd

A pancuddy aeg Buwaig g uweig
0szZL-L e (]
a5 NG je9US L]

N¥Id NOILYD07 ONILSIXT
oy Bumeag

X2 9VH 'O00MHLMON "AYMSHNIT 2

ONITIEMA MIN A3SOL0Nd
oL pallg

WHOHA ‘M HW

e

Lo uogruag eg |aey

.\
o
V4
S/ N
\..\\\\ 5 qng 3

Y
/
o

\\J HL1HON

Page 175



INSSI ONINNYId

9O0Z PEJAITY BUrsn paanposd sem Dusesp S| Duwep sl
LIy PEDE B OF SUNSUBLID GN oM BURUBLILGD BI0jBq 8IS U0
PAYTNE B (STL SUGISUSLIR [y “PESNPoIda) asmsao & Pk
P49 10U TSI PUR G5 DI SEBMENY o 25 19 Aumdaud 5 Bupneip sl

g c0ld (012745

] -on By o g

™ FLOZ NI dd

A parouddy aeg Bumaig A uweag
00G:1 L Ho0d

sy ang g o4

NYid ¥3078 d3S0d0Hd

oy Buea

A%Z 9YH '000MHLHON "AYMSHNIT 2

DNITIIMA MIN 03S0d0Hd

oL pallg

YHOHA M HW

]

Lol uogduzsag eg |aey
a4 NOLLYOTYA SNINNYIE LINS OL) ELRIEE | v
au SNINNYTE LN 01 FiLioe0 |8

i
\\
/
7 4 .\\..
\\.\\.\
-
; Vi \
\\m\ "
»e Pl
\\\\ AH,.\ X
PN 4
7
.\\\ .\.\..\ N
/" eisans |3
\.\\ \.\
\\\
ke

siaquil|

\\J HLHON

Page 176



NOILWAZT3 LNOH4 (a (AWM 0OOM 3SHOD) NOILYAZTE 3ais (O

3NSSI ONINNYd

DOOE BEOY DU pospln] e D S st 303

NY1d HOOTd L8414 ONILSIXT

=
LNsNa
SHAVHDOLOHA § SNV ONILEXD
1 Buamegy
T PR DOONHLEON "AYMEANN Z
Woou038
ONITIAMG MEN TIS00t HIALSVW WOOHa3E
s i
WRCHA |l 7
L]
1_ isv!s_ -y T._ ]
| ) | o
(AYMSNNIT) NOILYATT3 3015 (8
WooHa3a WOOHHLYE
=
@
¥
NY1d OO T4 ONNOYD DNILSIXT NYId IOVHYD DNILSIXT

05Z1:L 3OS
NV1d NOILVOO

6

H1HON

AHOLYAHISNO

du._e

004-4 WUvE 3TWOS

b : — ]

wpg wgl wg wg iy 0




INSSI ONINNY I _

e 0 AL VAN WY DS
R o B

S Hm !
m ual!tl.i-n,lﬁ&_‘ \
reseiacindr
|
[ ]
P06 LEEUETTE
Aupzp IWIOL

WZ6 H0014 aNOD3S

99l HOOT4 LSHId
99l HOOT4 ANNOWD

JINAIHIS NOILYAOWWODDY

NY¥d ¥0078 0350d0dd

AVM SMHUNIT




WO SIS IPDIS MM
worspeyaedrs@euniu
81008 £Z6L0
LI00YE £ZT6LO0

Nk 9VH
¥ISTIOAWN

STUH QOCOMHLEON
133818 71307
FSNOH TTADHY

S1031IHOYY

SoAlj0adslad pasodold

Buljemq woolpag g maN pasodoid

POOMULION

‘Aemsyull z



oMy pEu =

WY o s s
[eRp NCUBP O3 PISN G5 - PIYSER - P = 1)
Aol =
anjg = g

UORINIISUCS PuE Lo cwap ulsap

O3 UDREIR UL 5994 ) T 10T LEBSSE Wod)
Auoane vopumas o1 JPJoIdT PIPO JNDICD
aut [sygy] sease vopzasosd ooy

SlIH POOMIDION "S139UYRIY DS
Bumeap eudug

yrrovasdiducuns mamm
snoryasliduowisiopu)
009.L9F ET610 1

dH8 STaM

‘PADAEAA

‘Aepp [oodsiangy
'asnoH 42

£V I Q0T | @5 |

q Aoy TOTITI Py
oz henu(7) meq |
ous Bupspe |
- asnoy mau pasode.d pue sl |
BpIL

AXT 9WH 2%2|ppip
‘poCMILION "KEAN SHUM T
=i
BIOUA A AW
D

a4myniLIogy 3341 uowig







Sevenoaks

EISub Sta i

g e
)
‘\ Linksway
.
'
'
v
.
\ D
.
\

v
v
\

Red Stacks

L

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

2 Linksway
Northwood

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale
36910/APP/2013/2338 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
March 2014

North Applicatica

LINNT L
LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 28 & 28A KINGSEND RUISLIP

Development: Variation of condition 27 of Planning Permission Ref: 5740/APP/2008/1214 to
allow resiting of bin store to front (Erection of a three storey building to contain
7, two-bedroom and 1, one-bedroom flats, together with associated parking
and amenity space (Amendment to previous approval ref. 5740/APP/2007/104
to allow for an additional flat at second floor level).

LBH Ref Nos: 5740/APP/2013/3520

Date Plans Received: 27/11/2013 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 28/04/2008
Date Application Valid: 29/11/2013 14/01/2014
07/06/2008
06/06/2008
09/06/2008
12/04/2011
11/05/2007
13/06/2008

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 183



(—— N

a0z T TEE TS DU SGeuny.

— BAOOP DU SMOPNMN
- -t L |||||||I|||I|I|I|I||
T et sa-m_
A | osweargico, . o iy h o G o posadostibonsd Z°1£1
el ) Juo4 ! — ===
—_— | ewsemesn s y s _ ANISONIA A3H
welg Burdeaspuet =
s (6.4 unprn gyt |
PUBSBUN P97 B B2 s i i ot fmmenpe
e——
( b i
LD03LIHIYEY
po3[2eN M
————"
(e | . [
proeoy ¥ NOILLDIS TVIIdAL
o] ¥
Infascal
T ) L
i
nsefe
el ]
1R
Fifea)
e

T . 0S:T 3/ess
, FHOLS FTOAD

B0 0 30044 0 DT BUOLI Ly Y00 OF KT
IS S0 SERIN LA PUD TRIIAA (4] s o i b = b

s jo L

T SRS Pl Sasey a0 Bugsew jaaum (4 sy e P

PAYILD SYIOM LOGYOLT (1) s )t 1l e At e Login s 2 e

e ey e e, s oo W o o o8 o e 3 ST

00" 03 UAROL S -:AG o DY BUrsiTA (1) v Aty e 310y P
DU LTS & O 300 DOUND B9 e SNOM ML (1) oot a3 s et o e bt v e 4 e et
it A A Kt o A o, LS A Pt P

MR LSS

e B LA 0 . ) R B T i et TP

g i Al o
e i e
e b ot st B L T s o By Sy ey
o i T 8 o e 8 Bt B B ek PRt RS
s S, L s
o L ]
e ol e it
i T
e e e i ot e e s e
&= o s i St e i
e T e T T e o e el
P O g
o)
2 el
i i
s B S e e e G,
18 o A S .
x i
it o
£ L
o s st
— e
som i s A
igrmas i S et S et
- & L L
L prhactele 2 M B T o e e o e 43 7 % i,
- ' . EAnna) W 20800 #T €3 S R ATE
2 Pt 2o A b o =
ek ag P U PORSONA 34 00 GTLMD) SAL TR ‘AL 4 TULT S R e = 1 Wi TR o
By B P il QL 83 S By LRt LOOT LU 54 s RamOnn ant IS 0w el
5 un s T s RUE———
R . o =
e R e it s R i et el
Shioe [ s et e g 10 1 s 0 5 S g SISO
Py iy
e ———
e ans




Ful illp
Matiodint
chureh

(]

(e ey

[

Motes

Site boundary

For identification purposes anhy.

This ¢opy has been made by or with
the autharity of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, 0 esigns and Patents

At 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

@ Crovn copyright and database
rights 2013 Ordnance Surwey
00099252

Site Address

28 & 28A Kingsend

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDQON

Residents Services

Ruislip _ ; ;
Civic Centre, Lidiridye, Midds, LIS 10100
Telephone Mo Usbrdge 250111
Flanning Application Hef; =cale
5740/APP /20133520 1:1,250
Flanning Committee Date
North Applicatéaps| March2014 | 4LILLINGDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address LAND ADJACENT TO WIDEWATER LOCK (BARN FARM) MOORHALL
ROAD HAREFIELD

Development: Change of use of land to a residential caravan site for one Gypsy family,
involving the siting of one static and one touring caravan, with associated
parking for two vehicles, water treatment plant, hardstanding and landscaping
works (Part retrospective application).

LBH Ref Nos: 69682/APP/2014/32

Date Plans Received: 06/01/2014 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 06/01/2014

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 186



]2

Shfsge.info

i~

LOCATION

Mr S. Smith
Moorhall Rd,
Harefield,
Uxbridge,
Middlesex,
UB9 6PD

' BFSGC
Saga Ct, Unit 3 Sibleys Rise,
South Heath, HP16 900, UK

Email: GRT.Councli@gmail.com
Tel: 07756917937

Pragased by J Jowe, 18-07-2013




________

Geazng

o gy

o

T
O SN SRRl T Y
\hT
L &

I e S L

KEY

e

THERN [0

C s avan
Static

Caa avan
Haldsiami'.;,
Parking
Waste &
Recyling

Screening

Water Treatment
Plamt

S5m 10m 15m 20m 25m 3J0m 35m 40m
Scale: 1:500, paper size: A4

Page 1

Mr S. Smith
Moorhall Ril,
Harefield.
WUxbridge.
Middlasex,
VB3 ePD

BFSGC |
So0a CT, Urit 3 Shisvs Rke,
Soult Tienlh, 1PTS 900, UK|

§'1t‘l- e 1 Cuaa g cw
wl. ITTEE TEAT

A %=

Sbfsge.info

G~

Drawing Ho.
BLP-01

Date: Jan 2014




37 2m

The Horse
and Barge (PH)

Motes

Site boundary

For identification purposes anhy.

This ¢opy has been made by or with
the autharity of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, 0 esigns and Patents

At 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

@ Crovn copyright and database
rights 2013 Ordnance Surwey
00099252

Site Address

Land Adjacent to Widewater Lock
{(Barn Farm), Moorhall Road, Harefield

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDQON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Lidiridye, Midds, LIS 10100
Telephone Mo Usbrdge 250111

North Appli€atéop

Flanning Application Hef; =cale
69682/APP/2014/32 1:1,250
Flanning Committee Date
March 2014

| CINTIIN




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 37 MOOR PARK ROAD NORTHWOOQOD

Developinent: 2 x two-storey, 5-bed detached dwellings with habitable roofspace with
associated parking and amenity space, installation of vehicular crossover to
front, installation of fence to front involving demolition of existing dwelling
(Resubmission)

LEBH Ref Nos: 4581/APP/2013/3765

iate Plans Received: 17/12/2013 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 17/12/2013
Date Application Valid: 17/12/2013

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 190



37 Moor Park Road, Northwood

Sept 13

1:1250

2013054

Site location plan
P 1

P06




JETRTORN SN | ] 1L 3E
§ il ynn o 1 iedee it il : 2"
§ gpidbiShy yybestur 13 dabepy it Ul ) :
5§s§i§§§§§§séwl§£§i§§i%ié§§§§ﬂ§‘ i, m i! zi;q 5D} SE25SE 83856 g
£ zustBofaeazcodssndonsisi. colotananBRosenin g i hii: 8-‘5% i‘:f_ifem %g;; g 2 i ;
i i . H g £E3530 P 2 £ :
Qs | ohal | SR o | B | g o
gl T | HE | =glF | BE 2
JEh gki §  pphhfm :| gk g1 3| 2 n853 s |8
gt E’%g;i hiisdinan AR R <] - w 8| [
ER g flest % 3 iansSasufn il g h! ﬁ'!g = ! g E g 3 E_
P s T : %
[ obemos FRH ER
§
il L i Ji
: ‘Eukgmmumi zmg Ei%;iaiae
i gE|s[asa=e]z|=ezl;[ezaszs slslsjslalslslels
¢ £ §Ij$ i§|;!== BEEEH R SRR R R SRR
b 3 |i|:s:s| |::=:::[::=:is§:==
: g u/ : BEE e -
I3 odemos 3 00980¢]
3 ofiseos 3 oBSEOS|
13 odseos 3 095604]
3 obsEos ENT=E
3 ofseos 3 0zSROS)
Page 192




= |

e
asnoy Bunsixe jo uoeas|g _ }

ot . T a
woskoz | vy,
v@ooL:L 4
I I o, £l
£102 By POOMULION ‘PEOY YJed JOOW /E : AN
Sauten]
171843aNYA
A
uonenaja jsea uoneasjs ypou
E - EVE
/ —
i /yQb )
0))
h et
(0]
(@]
©
uoneAg|a yinos uoneAas jsam o
T T1

T

S N

A



FSOELOT
8% 5

ELOZ 290 POCMULON ‘PRON Y8 JOOI LE

sy

LBEIGNYA

uoneAR[e Uyinos

uoneAs|a jsam
J100}j puooas
x.~| i u! | I.“a l_l\_
_l. B . Apngs s | -
T _ il lis
| L,
[ =" Tl
|
m S
e

ol

uopeasja yuou

JLLTTRENN

—_ [ E—

A AET

| 10ld

1oo|} punoib

ikl
mji

|

I

_ _g__:

e




acid = NEE-Q..E.E%__.EHI_ _

—F A—a_—

w00z e ....n«_o

a0 | N M.\t

sk

b, 4 ——

£10720 DOOMULON "PEOY Hied J0OW LE -

-
LUBEIANYA

A

uonas uolneAs|d 1sem

VHTTETERTIL I

o st TR o

o Bt o s
UOIEeAS|D I1SED

L]
e o e 20 Bk s LS )
pelopmaild

To)
o))

h et

@ (0]
l%}ig‘-i#iiﬂ >
©

o

- Z 1old
= i 100|} puooses 100} 1811} Joo}j punoib




/

— eild __ g_mmonoa aweyog _ et

¥SOELOZ
Zv@ooz:L

£10Z 220 POCMULION ‘peoy 3Je L€

episw|3

aaaaa

A

paysiginjal pue
paujejal abeseb

e — I = 0 e = e
o pasop I ted wo, y ; R
ssaooe Buysixe | Iy o - ey

Aeids uoisia Wgpwy'g mwmmﬁmm w_w_emn__> ..%Nwﬁwmw

————— POLLIO} SSO00E MaU

y

Aeids uosin wepwpz O BOy MJ Bd Joo N




E10Z 260

POOMULION ‘PECY YEd JOOW LE

Iy
LIgE3aNYA

A

ab




St Martin's

'
;
R
il
v
il
il
. .
-
i .
N il
N .
Bmclde = 4
] ]
' '
) »
I i
. il

Site boundary

For identification purposes anhy.

This ¢opy has been made by or with
the autharity of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, 0 esigns and Patents

At 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

@ Crovn copyright and database
rights 2013 Ordnance Surwey
00099252

S

37 Moor Park Road
Northwood

ILDNDDN BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDQON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Lidiridye, Midds, LIS 10100
Telephone Mo Usbrdge 250111

Flanning Application Hef; Scale
4581 /APP/2013/3765 1:1,250
Flanning Committee Date
North Appligatign | March2014 4L LINGDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address LAND REAR OF 81-93 HILLIARD ROAD NORTHWOOD

Development: 2 x two storey, 3- bed detached dwellings with associated parking and
amenity space, involving demolition of existing material shed, office building
and material storage shelter.

LBH Ref Nos: 64786/APP/2013/1434

Date Plans Received: 31/05/2013 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 31/05/2013
Date Application Valid: 06/06/2013

North Planning Committee -25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 199



MR G FORD

LAND REAR OF 8193 HILLIARD ROAD,
NORTHWOOD MIDDLESEX HA®& 1SL

12/03/2013 Y

—

=11
[]

54 [ 0 |12
= a'E‘*:”: 103 |14

'U ] 1)
@;LIE'I ﬁ Retail
- SﬁbD Retail 1
]—t O elly &

use
b ol |
EE

] Al
73|750 79 Ha1(3|[85(87(89( 91(93[H 4 ﬁwmsm 091

\ HILLARD  ROAD __—

80 —_
823 B
\K !ﬂ@'

LOCATION PLAN SCALE 1:1250 Ak

application site

F
DE\J

SCALE BARM1:1250
[S— [EES—

0 25 50 15 100 125

DRAWING NO 1158/P2/5

Page 200

ez
DUSEK DESIGN ASSOCIATES

LTD




ST L TEALATISE BT VB G] RTINS

R B ey | e e e

Y04 MY
VLS e 75004 B0M
SHUTICTEY N0 w5l ||

Y049 W -

155 G¥H A3STT00M D0CMHLHON

OV QHITIK €648 30 838 0Ny .L

SWSO0Ed TURNY It

NYd LADAYT 305 g

s S wtes

copume fpoprd pransas el | RalEd

WEvE 37VIS

§sii:l 37¥15 N¥Y1d NDILYIO?T

EXIM

AR AL W i Sl

ags coprasde

iy

i gy

- wpueb | o iy —

ety

Paise anes dbeals

whesnys wiads apaed pasadesd
ten Bt s g

Ll
Py oy wg Sugs:
Py unays dbesays
o g o

WajAap buis

[ T pAUR (A
&} qued ssanw By

YOy o4vi77)4

I SR 35

iy 11 gl g Al
Tudg Eae Lapueh e

slupmgs diegs il bayvas

-ﬂ_.‘vg\#aﬁ.i

Bappnqits Dasays ofers butyes.
ad

I
/ /.I-s.ezi
k) ) ol WL [ g g e Bned

L)

Boppaq bases

T e ») e

0

.._....o.slr bl ..%_.z.s ~BUITIAY SRR A pasotaid

Sjan i s

gt 1 s0 0 wary

il swmaeney wlmap wen gelalday ()

4 n ks

1] 5 ]

e —

DAL EISTE 4|8 SRR 1 e e o 5| woiejoad ey
sazcramns buyapl wogey simeed 30 35 o) Dayunid Aop Sae R s
T66L L bRd SORESE &) By s put 334

Fri o) st
Bumef Buung ap1nag 50N om BAEAL 33 8 32 G308 S0UA,

16A3E8E 58 o Beang ty
papaas siape® Sras por pag o o) sieh (uoss Tamemen: Baprd sapg
DU PUT PATRAIL BRIRINI0S P TR FACNT (I R DAJEID 3] & WS

YIRS A ST 090 BSTL GNP GO 633 SAGC AMTY PSS

B L L ]

390 PAUENEITI 3] 0} 1599 Bl RRd T4 T 40 SE U e poE
“Animsay aom g 0 Badein gL yjin 515200 i DRl S84
T L 84 HEEST 04 WS BRI 1oL Do -0 [ 460 Ran]
RS PSS SRAECRE PGS P D g o) SEAl, s g
BITYIR GEA BRNIE 5 G PR 33 0y Lmabuat budersaty

KOILY¥2I2133d5 3d¥ISONY

Huasdala) SHEIAUIE (116 4on ARADRIR W
RN OS] e R 8 PO 3] 0 Sstias

“thated dj3eten: yan Bl B 8 S0y
BB g RSO0 JRIRIR00 UT BURITNRE BpgeRjsab ue BERgRe

ayefasB5e pane mmgp-g wo avtucuia THIGII0R 50 pubs datgs wsp € piRosy
SIRIRG 33090 FfRRAd AP PO SRR PR PSS ] 01 SiEeaLg

NOILYI14i133d5 AVMIAIHO

Sagerpl sy
et Bumnd sa0s gy Bang o3 o Jatun on demys By

ANEE 8 M ) L ) PRI G0 D GG RGeS
[astiipean ganash s Bapandaz)

3| puneb mapg g R P Fenad asse eepl 8 Bepsayn
sneis Sorin juoddes oS E-BE 0BRY €0 SR Dasues TS By
NETLY3I1d103745 NIRYLS 3381

MY LIG DNIAVLS 3341

R W
B e e
P W] AR

mive 31v35

Page 201

g ) v el 1




i LR LASYOR T AN 1 DAY

e a1 sagroanty wlisag yasng yullde) ()
WOR D e ey dapy pasd |

5 13 9 o § ]

g,
R ]
I8 S L

mwnﬂruwm

Wyyeg 31¥15

ved 5ImT1
ALVISH Y4 35008 00

silvoossy v s |

0504 9 WM - _
1 9H ISTIOOH COOMHLEON
| OV DRYITIM £6°18 40 BY3H ONYT swit |
M NYTd SHHOM LIS ]
STHSOG0Hd DNNKYTd  sames
: — ERARRIT
P T

T B R

Shbew | ]

ON3T37 SHHOM AHYHOdWIL

iy amisaad Bagien piin

PRITbIs Sayn JRFICRs M

0 o) R PR

Page 202

/Iw.i!_ e vl

Buslfang a8 Rt

A
o
— L
PP pr— .
Beaang nas o derline A
e LY §

oML pRjNS "

s g S 4 ki

‘k..:....._....!c&x...f...
e e S oy ol L
B s O A B 8 P
- i B s 40 e 1

L e g
L, apan s, g e st
B 14 T b
g B P by

L g




il o 400 L T ONlAYa]

2102 onk o v g02st S

ONILSINT 3%

A3ANNS 3L
3L

181 SvH
aQ0o0mHLE0N
ov0E QuvITIH E6-18

s

017 S3IVII0SSY NOIS3A H3SNQ

ENAID

WEISASANSEUND G une
worsdansnsgunosBgamg yoa
0QESBY B22I0 3

00258F 82910 3

Ng& 975
L
DA WoYHODD
aun| Gusds
WDy SPUTIRGON
olie Sxiun

Bachan s BuipaiBus § But)

” py sAaninspunolb
A8 T3LIAENS

- o &
L nu-l‘-“mh!ﬁi (3
Pfiiren]
T b wE e |
R T
EERIID AIANT TREHD — STIATY
ARONESI T WACILLW AIABNS JANDAD - D183
Wivg

A A
HOLLLAIEEY. By R ]

LU ESER

O3HS TWigaLw)

114 0 b8 [ 5 0

— e

{u) yvg IS

(N30 AT1HYd)
HILTIHS FIVECLS TYHILYH

Page 203




AR BTN ORI WS ST

B sapnasy ubian wsnd iade) (3
[ e oe e denm .E_ o g8 9 i i ]
S —
L m Myvd 31¥IS
03 50 11
AR
FouRe
o K
avos A
RUP153 Y TS0 800
SIS NS 300
004 T o4
5k 9¥H “X3STI00H DOOMHLHON whs (4 |woospag uesad 7
| V0 OHYIT I €618 30 Y38 ONVT ) whs ¢ woospaq ubssad |
w—&wh..“:w._m ONY SNY1d g.—.hm sjuamasabas eaue Joojy (eusajul wrmisw FjoN 5
s L wits)
HOE/E0/ D e | W 00 o kit Lt B s i
[T = ki) oW whs 7, piuis) 7 woospaq pasodbig i H
whs gi[anon) | wonspaq pasedosg ' u
whs g swoouy e pasodold
whs ge Buwip g Buw pauiguoy
wos gy Bupaup pasodaig =] =
[eade peusagu 5598y Sy IHY 40 ITNO03IHIS | 1
NOILYAZTZ 301§ NOILYAITY LNOHA
iz g S e
sﬂ FARLEN 2 1 RN M
» s Bt i
] i By ey ua (q\]
L (0]
=
Sy FRARA e w
o
s oo s paacang

104 Wit 0S¥ 10 woRepay A

SR A PR ¥ 8] 48 1ot
SREE] SN G| R
amtondlr asaga Lugore 13 gany Specy
S i s Bt At paatlg

.rt....uu_ia.a
P 4 L NOILYA3Z13 3015 :ﬂ\?u..h.ﬂ.ﬁ NOILYAITI d¥3d
o ajresems pm

B ey 9 i ik e

i e et hsn loind

ﬂ%ﬁﬁ gﬁ_a S

o Doyl Ky 00 e

o vt a1 4 e

B o Y 8 TR 1 1

.
e Tadedn]
T g g v L g s
P8 AR 0 gy

|§l_.l_:.l=r
ey o g a1,

niperierian
s i g o oy
o e e s e 1
s 1 ey |

T




|t e miasme st nem s gy |

e N P sajraesy eag Wug pbuldn) G)
=a- E«.__.:ui.j_ _.-...:-n

myve 31vI1S

Yo
o
Al
(&)
(@)
Q)
o

0604 1 B

[ T AT 0079 15812
T4 9YH XISTN0W TO0MHLEN whs (| |wooupaq uossed 7
”.n___azg!m,.a R e ] ot Wt 59 woospan vosad |
SHMLVATH NS T SjUIINbD) BIJE J00)) JPUIB whwNE TTEN I - 4 7 =1
wbs 5| [@bus] £ wo0upag pasatosd g
whs 2y| afuis) 2 woospaq pasotoly LAY |l " .
uhs £ 21g00p) | wooupag pasodosy J u
whs g SWOOJyieg pasedtsg M £
whe ggl  Guup g B paugeo)
sbs gl fusjap pasodosg = - i 1L
leaz eussju sseif] SY3IHY 40 3IN03IAHIS L |
) *
3w g d beaa ﬂuﬂ”ﬁummwﬂm - rernT e fxﬁxsﬁuﬁ”ﬂh RHER =N ._,_amiﬁ.,ﬁﬂﬂ.“

W g buory was fjeg- uiin spas baoey s i

i

syl Aje pawg ag 8 bt vaney
TG N R PR G
ageake Ao Laaried &) pau) Spesy
2qm) won ypu Bogurag sy paoeis —

"o Sl NOOY1 00 R

ivd Bhowys wony 30 weasny
e A —
.na«.._l.!»urzl_te NBILYA3ITI 3008 NOIIYA3IT 6vis
sl
bosliblelil WALy prucut 1g S g Buieas

i w2
AR PR wop R
g g ey Wi 5

shampi ks s bagsa
sy Byt e panediuy

—_— A
o s g it ¢ it
1 laweg) yoov1 0 -.sﬂ.__l\.\\\ .

P 4 S

ety
i i s S
i o e s
v o v 1
e, s g v

o s
g b e

e e ) i oy i
0 g by
1944 s e 7




- 1) 9¥H 'X3STI00IW ‘T00MHLYON
S, | e B = || tbd"2 i s || 'OY0Y QUYITIH 6718 40 ¥Y3Y ONYT -t
{ & > . 4
sy s 1 = _g_ e _mém“ 2 (fdwen | 0/2d/8GH o sumen SIHOH WL
S3LVDOSSH HOIS30 43500 \ §07/€0 /0 fsi EY  00L: ) =es || 7% S107d STYSOd0dd ININNYTd Bumesp
NY1d 400174 LSHld NV1d 40074 ONNOYD

Page 206

Jsejyeadq

b

{510y ypey Sues Jog woisnosg @) aeds un ans) ey (§) ssae (23] aney 0] eale R (F)
3Ag] J00]) PRUSIUL] 3A00E LWQQZ) PUe WG
U33M|30 Paxl) SJ3%I05 PUB SBUIJIMS 1BIIYR)T @ ey aungny jo Buigy Joj 31geyins Jiejs @ seade Buwip g Buiyyis-aeds uoigemu) @ $3UeJJU3 |8 04 Yeodddy @
Bunised woyy ssadze fsea pue
2A3] Jooj3 paysiulg anoge uw wuggg S MopuM (7)) sjeJ yloddns Jo By doj ajgeyns s Q) 4PUEP WHOOS) ~IBPIRAA Jo buwany Joy a1eymns Keusajul s0RES (G axa) ag o) ssane pue yied Je3 uaanjaq aseds Suyed Je) @
suoiyeinbay Guipyng 1 4sed jo sjuauainbas yjim sJeyljEaym Aq asn
553238 Jo 3sea buipinosd ‘wooJyjeq 3jqissane Uy @ J3MOYS Y}iM IM Joo)f punaJB 3gissade JieyajBaym @ 3IUBPJOIIE U] SSIIIE JEY|IAYM JOj 3|GE4NS YipIM Joog ® Joj 2eds ajenbape yym papinoud Bupyied Je) @

SIWOH MIN NIHLIM 0301A0Yd
p47 sagepossy ubisag yasng Jybuidey () SITLITIIYY JWOH IWILIAIT




BT} il v (T RV DABUAON

e sl 201 sty kg Weeng (Ul )
R Ee e g2 deprey dagtn s
Ly

o ] § ¥ i ]

e 3 m Wyvg 31¥35
[T

a5 s

Bosen

a0 K

ovoH wima1
U153 M4 25000 k0

SIO0SSY NS0 WS

0404 0 "W i |

|5 9 Y35TI00M ‘DOOMHLEON
“OV0Y QH¥ITIH €618 40 83 ONYT e
SIS 133415 0350008 3 IMLSO3

LIl JI¥3s
3115 40 ¥Y3¥ HONODYUHL 3INIIS L3ITJYLS 03504084
i ot e Rl it
- e — _.
oyl By S 35 o e by L okl s Sy B 1 oy 11w \\ o shaging 9 hess
A= ) £
“
ey
_I_ 7 L e )
: { A
| )
PI.._”.,._,H” | S ; %./f}?.___. w
B P |\ 3 e wiiEnose
AR NN % g s by busm ) . DI
e e
o gt thuraap 1w

AR R
3115 40 ¥Y34 HONOEHL INIIS 13ITJHULS DNILSIXT

L
VA gl ?_EJ__,

23
N EL
HLLTL P v bbbl
BBV oW i B
o ey imasuag
thaping 2 dnae

-
Il o 1 o e R

i i )

{ \,M%\a

i dm e 8 b
e i s % o
,ﬂ/\ (s v ey

s ) s 8 g
a4
B 3 0 gy

L




£ L TUNLASYR ST FEAMA-TIS SANIINT i sagrsssy wfimag yesng pyfiaide) G

TR Ol g g fiegan gy gt o i q v 7 0

[HEYE 31¥1S

AUNIST WS 00 B0

SAFOOSTY MM NTnD ||

0804 9 WM

o

| 754 94 Y3STI00 D0DMALYON

"0¥0H OHYITIH £649 40 Y3H ONY) i
[ (SMIIN Y38) SIS 33415 03504084

SHSD0N THNNYIE tonn
[ g wmn 8/7d/35I) = bt

(G007 ] ¥ Su e
wepdaup | e | |

SZLL 3T¥ IS
NIDHYD HY3IH ONILSIX3 HONOBHLI INIDIS 133415 03504084

Ll

Page 208

SZLIL 31¥3S
SNIDHEYD BV3IW E6E8 HOHd MIIA 03504084

g G T

8 g g




ILDNDDN BOROUGH

OF HILLINGDON
Residents Services

Civic Centre, Lidiridye, Midds, LIS 10100
Telephone Mo Usbrdge 250111

i....m.:
-+
=r
D -
10 m
= Noc
o S 0
1'a o o
[nk]
f v |22
m 3] ]
= T
T 8 &
2 D
m = = -l
L2 B L]
= = ®
= 9 5 e ©
o Z %3 —
s o
O =0 (o O
v S IE o
s |E A
e = =
w £ o< |2
w ® £ = |0 L
5 =% |2 £
3 £ W | S
« g & e 0
- = | C
= L T I
(5] o o
L1}
o2
z Ex E o
ooz o588 FOA
L= .W,Cne ] G
B L R
c o =0 oL g d_.._H_-._
w S muﬂ.m L .ME
- =
8 3 380,32 25
o e mmm.mmmw.wm
ﬁ_..m.,_.rm _._....n.lﬂﬁn_..mm =5
mm.mxw._umm.m mq.._mm
H T BZwimsE cqpy
b z mm.m.ngﬁm.uu1
o B o BiE ol ¥ ST
= S EsSS5E5SE 22




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address MIDDLESEX STADIUM BREAKSPEAR ROAD RUISLIP
Development: Single storey front extension

LBH Ref Nos: 18443/APP/2013/3732

Date Plans Received: 16/12/2013 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 26/02/2014
Date Application Valid: 07/01/2014

North Planning Committee - 25th March 2014
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 210



05ZL:| e[edg
g -
oy -
i |- =
[y
e
e
(q\|
E (0]
(@)
\ ©
g
aques Buppey) pue
dumD) 061 MORM
3 kS

Le esnoygnjo depy uoneso]




punois

[leqiooH

(wnipejg xes8|pPIN) snoyanio
00S:| Ueld 3oo|g




st B3
g 4 UoSSILLISd YL INoYIM padnpid)
2q 104 PROYS pUr IBlIAdo3 5 Buwmep
SILLL S 0 PN 26 08 SUBSUSUID Y |
P UYL LUCY PAJESS 3G o) Suojsuaip oy | £
g 001 01 | 9|BJS sallaul||l
o posas | 3 : L5 NV1d 40O
.M [ _ — _ _ 1 ] ] |
s
g 0l g 0
-]
5
&
&
2
m.
W 'l
¥ y
m| -
w .\..
B ¢
. -
L00ASH ‘ONONIMYHa |~
Baly pasiey 2o

WooY UopIung = B
ieg N
(O]
(@]
v (G
o
j ] | — % ) A =
_ \| _\\,. \_ _
NOILWAT T3 3aIS NOLLWAZ T LNOHA

B
EEmEnmn e
Rttt
s




P41 Jo LosEILR A1 IO v-nﬁ&&.
!. 100 pInoys pur 1 Bpkdos) u:!iﬂ

S00ASH “ON ONIMYHA

WO I I>aly2ue | OIpnEsEuB s Wos'an1ds1iyaie | GIpnIsmmm

001 01 | 9jeds salaulljjiy

NOILYAZI3 30IS

NOILYAZI3 30IS

| | I I |
S

I N¥1d HOOT4
]
1
| .__ —
_.lllrl
r _— Wiooy §eory
| 1 |
easy pasiey 240
— —r
Ho
9] V.
J

Wwooy vapung | M

1eg N

(0]
(@)

UG

o

} | q 1 | =]
i Bunsis NOILYAITNI LNOYS

.



Foottall Ground

Football

Ground o R

; g . TaL
.;_ ": The o ddm an /} "-._‘ uﬁ_ -
= W'I .

Notes Site Addre ss ILDNDDN BOROUGH
Site boundary OF HILLINGDON

For identification purposes anhy. Mlddlesex Stadlum Residents Ser-,.,-ices

: , Breakspear Road
This copy has been made by or with P e Centre, Usbridge , Midd. LIBS 1L
the autharity of the Head of Committee Telephone Mo.: Usbridge 250111
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Fatents Flanning Application Fef: Scale
Act 1988 (the Act) .1 1 25':'
Unless the Act provides a relevant 1Edd3fAPPf201 3!‘3?32 m
exception to copyright. - -

Flanning Committee Date

@ Crovn copyright and database
rights 2013 Ordnance Surwey

00018288 North Appll(f’aﬂ@iﬁ March 2014 HILLINGDON

| CINTIIN




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 216



	Agenda
	6 77 Eastcote Road, Ruislip - 62431/APP/2013/2341
	7 4A Eastbury Avenue, Northwood - 36828/APP/2014/184
	8 2 Linksway, Northwood - 36910/APP/2013/2338
	9 28 & 28A Kingsend, Ruislip - 5740/APP/2013/3520
	10 Land adjacent to Widewater Lock (Barn Farm), Moorhall Road, Harefield - 69682/APP/2014/32
	11 37 Moor Park Road, Northwood - 4581/APP/2013/3765
	12 Land rear of 81 - 93 Hilliard Road, Northwood - 64786/APP/2013/1434
	13 Middlesex Stadium, Breakspear Road, Ruislip - 18443/APP/2013/3732
	14 Enforcement Report
	15 Enforcement Report
	Plans for North Planning Committee

